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AWARDS & RECOGNITION

RIERE

Significant awards won by
the Group in the Financial
Year 2017/2018:
EER2017/20188 R F [E &
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HKR INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
EREXEBREEERAR

"10 YEARS PLUS CARING COMPANY" LOGO
105 Plusl 5 RIRBRIR JiZ3%

"BUSINESS FOR SUSTAINABILITY" LOGO
(AR IEE

Organiser = i #1&

The Hong Kong Council of Social Service
EBLERBHE

BRONZE AWARD FOR VOLUNTEER SERVICE
6 TEZ R

2017 TSUEN WAN & KWAI TSING DISTRICT

CARING SHOP AND COMPANY AWARD

17FEEREZBFREVOBFREHE

Organiser = i #1&

Social Welfare Department

HEEFE

GOOD MPF EMPLOYER 2016-17 PRESENTED WITH

2016-17F EE ST EE - WE

— SUPPORT FOR MPF MANAGEMENT AWARD
EERESEERE

— E-CONTRIBUTION AWARD
BEMREFLE

Organiser i #iE

Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Authority

BHEMABETEEER

"LOVE AND PEACE OF MIND" CORPORATE ENGAGEMENT

PROGRAM 2016

20165 E[ & o T2 [HRSHENE

— COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT AWARD
HESHR

Organiser i #iE

Senior Citizen Home Safety Association

REZEWHS

HONG KONG RESORT COMPANY LIMITED
EBEEARAT

CAPITAL & CAPITAL WEEKLY THE OUTSTANDING

DEVELOPER AWARDS 2017

BEREEHBRBAR2017

— URBAN DESIGN & MASTER PLANNING AWARD
W R RABRRR B KR

— GREEN DEVELOPMENT AWARD
BRELCBR AR

Organisers = PiE

CAPITAL and CAPITAL Weekly magazines

EXRMgR - EXER

ECO-BRAND AWARDS 2017
IRIRMAR AR 2017
Organiser E3i#iE
East Week magazine

RAET

LA CRESTA
1 7

CAPITAL & CAPITAL WEEKLY THE OUTSTANDING

DEVELOPER AWARDS 2017

B BREAIR2017

- LUXURY MID-LEVELS LOW DENSITY LANDMARK
RESIDENCE AWARD
BERIRZE MR FERALE

Organisers F i #i&

CAPITAL and CAPITAL Weekly magazines

BN BAEA

INTERNATIONAL PROPERTY AWARDS

THE ASIA PACIFIC AWARDS 2017

— 5 STAR AWARD — BEST MIXED-USE INTERIOR HONG
KONG

— AWARD WINNER — MIXED-USE INTERIOR HONG KONG

— AWARD WINNER — OFFICE INTERIOR HONG KONG

— AWARD WINNER - INTERIOR DESIGN SHOW HOME
HONG KONG

Organiser F i ti&

International Property Media

IDA DESIGN AWARDS 2017

— HONORABLE MENTION — INTERIOR DESIGN

— HONORABLE MENTION — OTHER INTERIOR DESIGN

Organiser £ JH 48

Farmani Group
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INTERNATIONAL PROPERTY AWARDS

THE ASIA PACIFIC AWARDS 2017

— AWARD WINNER — OFFICE INTERIOR HONG KONG
Organiser &

International Property Media

GOLDEN A' DESIGN AWARD WINNER FOR INTERIOR
SPACE AND EXHIBITION DESIGN CATEGORY 2016-2017
Organiser 3 H#AE

A' Design Award & Competition

HKRI TAIKOO HUI
HEATE

AMAZING SHANGHAI AWARDS 2017

20175 EERE

— MOST POPULAR COMMERCIAL LANDMARK
FEARBEEMEZ

LOVE SHANGHAI AWARDS 2017

— SHOPPING DESTINATION OF THE YEAR

Organiser E3i#iE

TimeOut Shanghai magazine

LB HBEE TR

MOST POPULAR LANDMARK AWARD 2017

017 B BEFRBIRR

Organiser E3i#iE

SHANGHAI TIMES

UL AR R

BEST 50 — BEST SHOPPING MALL AWARD 2017

B {E505TE 2 2017 FE R {ER 1552

Organiser = 3i#iE

Shanghai WOW

Eswow

GOLDEN LIGHT AWARDS 2018

SE4£2018

— BEST PERFORMANCE AWARD
RESEE

Organiser = 3i#iE

MCWzg.com R4

2017-2018 CHINA FEAST RESTAURANT AWARD

2017-20185F & [BRE e | BETE

— ANNUAL GOURMET LANDMARK
FEEMZR

Organiser ¥ JH#AE

Restaurant Review B{1& & BT R




Fabulous

43 o

RIVIERA ONE
ERERREE

HABITAT OF HONOUR AWARD 2017

2017 RfERBEAER

Organisers i1

Jiaxing Broadcast and Television Group and
Jiaxing University Real Estate Research Center
EETEREREERZAEREHE
FHL

0ASIS ONE
BRAXRE

SOHU PROPERTY AWARDS

I E S5

— CREATIVE PROJECT 2017
2017E AR AL

Organiser = 18

Sohu Focus

EINEE

DISCOVERY BAY SERVICES
MANAGEMENT LIMITED
MREREEEERAT

2017 HONG KONG AWARDS FOR ENVIRONMENTAL
EXCELLENCE
017BBRIEEMAR
— BRONZE AWARD — PROPERTY MANAGEMENT
(RESIDENTIAL)
YEEE(XE) - 9
Organiser = J#ig
Environmental Campaign Committee
BIREHEEE
FOODEVER WASTENEVER AWARDS
BEERAE
— FOODEVER AWARD — DIAMOND CLASS
ERERE - EBAR
Organiser &
Hong Kong Women Professionals and
Entrepreneurs Association
ERUIBREXABHE
CLP GREEN™'S AWARD 2017
B[ IRRETEEMAE I=RTRT 212017
— JOINT ENERGY SAVING AWARD
B ETRE R ER
Organiser = #i1&
CLP Power Hong Kong Limited
HESHERDA

HEALTHWAY PHILIPPINES

TRUSTED BRAND 2018

— GOLD AWARD IN THE AMBULATORY &
MULTI-SPECIALTY CATEGORY

Organiser EH#AE

Reader’s Digest magazine

AUBERGE DISCOVERY BAY HONG KONG
BRMSEEE

CTRIP TRAVELERS' TOP SPOT

BRI D8

— GOLD AWARD - MOST POPULAR HOTEL 2016
016FERZEIMEB/E S5

CTRIP 2016 BEST SELLING HOTEL
EBR2016FERIGHEE
Organiser FJHH#E
Ctrip 172
2017 MOST LIKED WEDDING MESSAGE AWARD
017 2 ELKERE
— WEDDING CATEGORY - MOST LIKED

FAIRY TALE WEDDING

EEA R - ELKEEEIEE

Organiser = #i#iE
Wedding Message magazine
IS BEMR
CUSTOMER REVIEW AWARDS 2016
— SCORE 8.2 OUT OF 10

8.2 (LL10R BHS)
Organiser = ¥ #4E
Agoda

LOVED BY GUESTS AWARDS 2017
2017 HR B K EIE
— SCORE 4.3 OUT OF 5

437 (A5 Him)
Organiser ¥ JHH#AE
Hotels.com

THE SUKHOTHAI BANGKOK

READERS' CHOICE AWARDS 2017
— TOP 10 HOTELS IN BANGKOK
Organiser 18
Condé Nest Traveler, USA
2017 & 2018 EXPERTS' CHOICE AWARD
Organiser E3i#iE
TripExpert
STAR AWARD WINNERS
— 4 STAR RATED HOTELS
Organiser 18
Forbes Travel Guide
CERTIFICATE OF EXCELLENCE 2017
Organiser E3i#iE
TripAdvisor

SPA BOTANICA

STAR AWARD WINNERS

— 4 STAR RATED SPAS

Organiser A&

Forbes Travel Guide

2017 HAUTE GRANDEUR GLOBAL SPA AWARDS
— BEST HOTEL SPA IN THAILAND

Organiser ¥ JHH#AE

Haute Grandeur

CELADON
MENTIONED IN MICHELIN GUIDE 2018
Organiser = #i#iE
Michelin

THE SUKHOTHAI SHANGHAI
LERIRBEE

AMAZING SHANGHAI AWARDS 2017

2017HETERE

— MOST ANTICIPATED NEW OPENING HOTEL
FERESHEEE

Organiser = #i#8

TimeOut Shanghai magazine

L HES M
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ABOUT HKR INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
FRAEERXEREERRAA

OUR VISION, MISSION & VALUES
RANES - EoMEESR

[ | [ |
,EE To be the pioneer of innovative living space

VISION 8= YEREE AlEEEH

MISSION 1%@ We strive to create a healthy, stylish and distinctive living experience through teamwork
and passionate pursuit of innovation and excellence
HEREN  AIFRL  SHAXK  BEAR  BHESETER

VALUES Tg@;& PIONEER RESPECT INNOVATION

B Break new grounds Value the individual and Think outside the box
—_— PRIZDE R PR 3 —I— cherish our environment —|— NENAEY
BAEL

INTEGRITY DEVOTION EXCELLENCE
Uphold high ethical Be committed and Consistency in the pursuit
standards passionate of our quality standards
BFHE UG IEREE

4 B HKR International Limited Annual Report 2017/2018 H
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COMPANY HISTORY
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In 1977, the family of Dr CHA Chi-ming, the late founder and
chairman of the Group, acquired the equity interest of Hong
Kong Resort Company Limited (“Hong Kong Resort”) which is the
registered owner and developer of Discovery Bay on Lantau Island.
The shares of Hong Kong Resort and the other Group company
were once listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”). During the years 1988 and 1989, the Group
underwent a series of reorganisation and scheme of arrangement
and formed HKR International Limited (“HKRI” or the “Company”)
(Stock Code: 00480) in May 1989 as its new listed holding
company. The Company is also a constituent of Hang Seng Global
Composite Index, Hang Seng Composite Index and Hang Seng
Corporate Sustainability Benchmark Index.

Today, HKRI has diversified interests in real estate development
and investment, property management, luxury hotels and serviced
apartments, healthcare services and other investments in Hong
Kong, mainland China and Asia.

SEHEHREAIMAREFEERBLZRER
1977 FBA A R BEEXNR LGS ENES
EEERAB([EBEE ) ZBRAER - &
% BAEFEESENS —KXAGMBRNER
EABMARSGHABERAG ([HRAT]) £ °
E1088=1089F Hifd] - EEEET T —EE 2
SRS P1989F5 ALK E
EEEEREEER AR ([EFBRERE K
[ARRAR]) (BRI - 00480) @ WA AL
ZE EIERAR c ARFIMAEBERREGS
BY - BEGAEHRELETHEERDER
EREBADRZ— o

FEEEBRRBERE - PEAM LMK
BZLCER  BRHMEZRRRKRE  WXE
2 REBEEMRBAEE  BERERER
HipREIHA -

B FEEXEREEERAT 2017/2018 £ W 5




SIGNATURE PROJECTS
AERRMENERER

HONG KONG &8

T TR R

M,

=

DISCOVERY BAY 1 =%

Approx. Total GFA #BEEEELN

1,006,000m?

Located on Lantau Island,
Discovery Bay is the Group’s
flagship project comprising
garden houses, low—, mid-and
high-rise developments, a 27-
hole golf course, a marina, two
recreation clubs, a manmade
beach, a resort hotel, two
shopping malls and a number
of international schools.

RIS AR L 9 e 52 = SR B Y
EEIRE - BEAEERE
& F - sEmE 27TREH
KRR - e - MIESH
ANEDE - EREE - AR
RS RSB SER -

HONG KONG & &

CDW BUILDING 3% A &

HONG KONG &5

LA CRESTA /5 %7

Approx. Total GFA

12,.500n¥

BRREEELD

Approx. Total GFA ZZHEHEELN

91,000n7

CDW Building is a commercial
complex comprising a
shopping mall named 82

and an office tower located in
the heart of Tsuen Wan. The
pbuilding is conveniently linked
to Tsuen Wan MTR Station via
an air-conditioned walkway
and is connected with other
parts of the territory by the
well-established transportation
network.

RARNE AL ENZETH O
MERREXET 255 A8
KERBEY R ORI AE - I
REBEFTARGEEDE
BEYE . BEETEE DA
A=

H HKR International Limited Annual Report 2017/2018 W

Located in the traditional
prestigious and high-end
residential area of Kau To,
Sha Tin, this residential
development project provides
houses and low-density
residential tower units.

iR HTAL A & B B =
BB - BFEMEEE
SREFETEMARK -

MAINLAND CHINA = Bl Ay 3
— SHANGHAI L&

HKRI TAIKOO HUI £ 3 X4 2 B

Approx. Total GFA
RIBEEELD

322,000n7

Located in Jing’an District,
Shanghai, HKRI Taikoo Hui
is a world class mixed-use
development comprising

a prime retail centre, two
premium Grade-A office
towers, two boutique hotels,
one serviced apartment
building, a number of event
venues and Cha House, a
revitalised historic building.

I EEmaF R Em e EMEA S
ERtAMESERRAR &
HEE—([EAsREDTL - W
EHEEERRRAE  MRE
mBE - —EEERAE
ZETRANNZINEEEE S
i AR B R REE
MBS R



Mainland China & Bl A #: R

MAINLAND CHINA A & (R it
— JIAXING = 5

CITY ONE & 8 S #1142

Approx. Total GFA #ZHEmEELN

83,000m?

(plus approx. 30,000m? basement carpark)
(B A %730,000F 75 KithE(FE 5 )

City One is the first ever
residential project developed
by a Hong Kong-based
developer in Jiaxing city,
Zhejiang Province. Located at
the centre of the international
business district, it comprises
seven 18-storey apartment
blocks, one nine-storey duplex-
on-duplex apartment block and
20 garden houses.

BRFEEERE RIS 5= 8
MEEHASEEEEAEN
FEIEE - MR EREGEER
o ZIEEAEEISERA
B —EhBEnEEERD
¥ R20EIEE BIZE A -

} Hong Kong &7&

}Thailand 26

MAINLAND CHINA A Bl (A 3t
— HANGZHOU #i

0ASIS ONE & & 52 3 75 &

Approx. Total GFA ##ZHEmEELN

671,600m?

Situated in Zhejiang Hangzhou
Future Sci-Tech City and
adjacent to Xixi National
Wetland Park, Oasis One is a
low-density residential project.
Around 400 units, including
low-rise apartments and villas,
will be provided.

EEREBEAENEETE
B - RIETAMN R R
5 BHTEERRRMARE -
R G400 BIEE A B R
B -

THAILAND =[]
— BANGKOK E2&

THE SUKHOTHAI BANGKOK

No. of Rooms EREIZ(H

210

Approx. Total GFA #2HE EEL

40 400me

The Sukhothai Bangkok is a
world-renowned and award-
winning hotel in Central
Bangkok, highly regarded
by international travellers for
its unparalleled services and
facilities.

URSATH L

The Sukhothai Bangkokt: 5
ME - EEEY - HEFHR
B RBIEEHEZIRIRIREHES

Situated in Roppongi, one

of Tokyo’s most sought-

after addresses, the project

is only steps away from the
hubs of business, culture and
entertainment like Roppongi
Hills and Tokyo Midtown. The
project was redeveloped into
luxurious residential apartments
for sale.

I8 B AL R R B 3
BZ——R"AKE - RAKH
WRERRPWERE - UM
REMLAAERR - IREES
BRFEEETHE -

B FEEXEREEERAT 2017/2018 £ W 1




HIGHLIGHTS OF THE YEAR
FEARERHE

MAY £ A - 2017

HKRI Taikoo Hui’s shopping mall opened
its doors
EENEEBYHORMER

SEPTEMBER LA - 2017

The Company was included as a
constituent in Hang Seng Global
Composite Index, Hang Seng Composite
Index and Hang Seng Corporate
Sustainability Benchmark Index
RAREMARBERRGESIEH - BE
FERBRIELETHERRELXEERY
B 17 IR

M HKR International Limited Annual Report 2017/2018 H

JULY £ A - 2017

e HKRI Shanghai office officially moved in to
HKRI Centre One in HKRI Taikoo Hui

s KELBHERBAMREENLEN
EREERL—E

-

OCTOBER + A -2017

e La Cresta, a low-density luxurious
residential project in Kau To, Sha Tin, was
launched for sale by tender arrangements

e URPHIMILNEZERETEIER

[1E5H7] UBEEXRAE

OCTOBER +TA -2017

Championing the “Space Sharing Scheme
for Youth” rolled out by the HKSAR
Government, the Group leased out 20,000
square feet office space at CDW Building
to Hong Kong Cyberport Management
Company Limited at one-third of the market
rent to set up its first off-site Smart-Space
office to promote technology development
and encourage youth entrepreneurship

s KEXKHEBRERNELN [FFHEZE
Berdl] U= —mEESEPRAE
mpm$ﬁ%m%ﬂzﬂﬁﬁ%%§%ﬁ
WEEEERAR  RLBEEEIIIHL
T /RS (Smart-Space) ?’Eibﬂ&ﬁ)ﬁ&ﬁ
BEFAIZE



NOVEMBER +—H - 2017

The Group’s flagship project in Shanghai,
HKRI Taikoo Hui, celebrated its grand
opening and became the new leisure
landmark in the Nanjing West Road
commercial district

SEMR EEMERIRE BT ERK
F% AR B B A B i O D
Ho 1%

FEBRUARY —H - 2018

The Group acquired a residential site in
the Jiaxing Economic and Technological
Development Zone (No. 2017-34), the
fourth residential land lot acquired by
HKRI in Jiaxing city
EEREBEHLMAE2017-345E 51 » 5
MERSBEEDTHLMEEEERE

DECEMBER +=H —2017

The Group acquired a land plot in the
Jiaxing Economic and Technological
Development Zone (No. 2017-28) and will
provide approximately 200 residential units

SEREGEEECERMARE (ZREHRE ]

2017-2855 b1 - #&IRMHAI2001EF EEN

FEBRUARY —H - 2018

Hong Kong Resort was awarded the
“Urban Design & Master Planning Award”
and the “Green Development Award” by
CAPITAL and CAPITAL Weekly magazines
EBEXLE (BAXMR) kR (EAERE)
e EmHREARAREE | KEE [RR
REBR | KR

B EEEEEREEARLT 2017/2018 £ H
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

ERE®E

| wish to report to shareholders on our annual report for 2017/2018
(the “year”) in respect of HKR International Limited (“HKRI” or the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”).

ANNUAL RESULTS

The Group’s turnover for the financial year ended 31 March 2018
was HK$2,222.3 million, representing a decrease of 0.5% against
last year's HK$2,234.1 million. Profit attributable to shareholders
of the Company for the year is HK$2,305.1 million, representing
an increase of 179.8% as compared with HK$823.9 million in
2016/2017. The basic earnings per share was HK170.7 cents,
compared with HK61.0 cents last year. As at 31 March 2018,
the net asset value attributable to shareholders of the Company
stood at HK$19,717.8 million (HK$14.6 per share), compared with
HK$16,385.8 million (HK$12.1 per share) last year.

The Board of Directors has recommended a final dividend of
HK7 cents per share for the year. Together with the interim dividend
of HK3 cents per share, the total dividend amounts to HK10 cents
per share for the year. In 2016/2017, a total dividend of HK7 cents
per share was paid to shareholders. The Board has also resolved to
recommend a bonus issue of shares of HK$0.25 each in the capital
of the Company on the basis of one (1) bonus share for every ten (10)
existing shares held by the shareholders.

] [] B HKR International Limited Annual Report 2017/2018 W

.,Vlr CHA Mou Sing Payson

Chairman
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AAMRARABRREE2EFEREEREEFREA
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HE2018F3ANAIUEHHFE  fE &
¥EE22023F8B L BEF2,23417H
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i A2,305.1 B BB T 0 2016/2017F E 8l
B823.9FEAE T - HI179.8% - BIREAR
BF AE170.78W - ZF R A61.081L - B
20184 3A318 ' ARRIRRELEEFES
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MARKET OVERVIEW

In 2017, global stock markets soared ahead as developing
countries experienced growth and investors sought to benefit
from falling corporate tax rates in the United States. Meanwhile,
back in Hong Kong, the property market remained active, with the
number of sales and purchase agreements for residential properties
increased by 13%. The local economy experienced a notable
expansion as well, enjoying a 3.8% growth rate for the year as a
whole. The government implemented a series of cooling measures
on the property market, however the results of this are yet to be
realised, and demand for residential properties remains high. As
a result of the favourable market environment, as well as our solid
foundation, the launched units of our La Cresta and 2GETHER
were highly sought-after and attained excellent sales records,
enabling the Group to enjoy a steady and stable performance
throughout the year.

China reached the government’s GDP growth target of around 6.5%
for this year and the country also maintained its rate of expansion,
dispelling fears concerning a sharp slowdown. Since late 2016,
new restrictions on home purchases have been enacted, such as
increasing the minimum down payment. Relatively tight liquidity
conditions also cooled the property market. The Group is set to
benefit from a more regulated market.

The Asian economy enjoyed a steady and fairly strong growth,
and Asia is predicted to remain the world’s fastest-growing region
through to 2030. Despite this positive outlook, geopolitical tensions
and rising trade protectionism present risks.

SUSTAINED DEVELOPMENT

During the year, by consolidating our 40 years of experience,
we have largely attained our goals to place more emphasis on
investment properties and to diversify our businesses across
Asia. The Group moved forward with various projects, including
office buildings, retail malls and residential developments. We also
performed conversion and renovation work on different properties,
making improvements and changes according to our needs and
those of residents.

In Hong Kong, we are working closely with the HKSAR
Government on new developments in Discovery Bay, including
residential projects, targeting to provide more home options for our
community. Meanwhile, we are also enjoying excellent progress in
regard to other undertakings in Hong Kong. The transformation of
the industrial CDW Building in Tsuen Wan was completed in the
middle of 2017, and the property is now a busy retail and office
building, boosting our asset valuation and recurrent income.

miEER
R2017F - HERPBERLEERFBIER - AR
EEBEZBNERRRFEHHRE Tﬂ S

Hﬂﬁ B o FIFE - BAEWEMSRE
CEEVMEEEAS %%;t%m% %E

ﬁ%ﬁ%i‘ﬁs 8% - MY MEMBEER—F

HIRRYE - AMAB KRN EFER - E%

VEFSFESD XENFTMHERE - I

BERMBEMNRE  £SEFAHENN ST R

%E%ﬁuﬁxm%L% SHEKEIEE -
SEEFEERRE -

TESENEANEEREERLN65%
FFBER  WRFRERESE  BRTSHEES
BITBHNER - B2016FFIK EPIEEm%ﬁ
BERS  LRSKEENESRE  WELEHER
MRBES  RYETHRE - THEBR
2 REMSHEEEF -

= BZ

TEMNEERFBEREE R - BFTEE2030%F
EMEEAREHIERFROE - BERR

—REE - BMEBUAER  EZREIEHR
S22 RGN o

FEERRE

SECEEBIOEFE - RANBBRIE MK
iéf%%ﬁ’\]ttfﬁﬂ  BRESMNOEBRE - F

 BEMRBEZENER - CRIEDIE
F - A - SEESEEZERQE  BYR
SREEHEB - RREERFTELERNT
Ko BATRAT ARMENSE BT

12 e

SEEFEFRBAM AR ENHTRREIE

B ETERERETHRER  AUERREHREZ

FEEE - RANBENEMEBTERR

o o R EE R PR AKER2017 FF H 5

BF - AR TEREFLR S ARG

BERRAE  WRAHESEMANEERE
R AEE WA -
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EE®E

CDW Building R K E

'“_!_. .. : o =
Discovery Bay i = &

In mainland China, our focus continues to be on the Yangtze River
Delta. We have already established a very strong foundation in
the region. On one hand, the grand opening of HKRI Taikoo Hui
marked a significant step of the Group’s venture into commercial
properties, while on the other hand, the expansion of our residential
projects in Jiaxing city and Hangzhou city look promising, as the
connection between these two cities and Shanghai is expected to
strengthen further.

In Thailand, we continued to broaden our investments as
development costs are relatively low and the market shows great
potential. The Group acquired three plots of land on Ramintra Road
in Bangkok, and planning is currently in progress. Our businesses
across Asia became more diversified when we set foot in Japan,
where our investment properties continued to be a solid revenue
source.

OUTLOOK

Looking ahead, potential rise in the US interest rates may have
adverse impact on the Hong Kong Dollar and local lending rates,
which in turn may affect property prices and cause fluctuations in
stock prices. The Company may adopt a more cautious approach
in the years 2018 and 2019.

The escalating trade tension between the United States and China is
expected to affect various industries. Real estate sector, being an
important pillar of the economy, has a high possibility to experience
adverse impact should there be any significant interruption to the
manufacturing and industrial sectors caused by the trade war. This
will result in negative impact on our investment in mainland China
and increased exposure to currency risks.

] 2 H HKR International Limited Annual Report 2017/2018 W

BPETFEHEREEZEENR=F5 " I
ERZREFRENRE - —HH - BERS
ENFARARE  SREREENERER
BEE—KY : m—JrmE - FAHZEET KM
MR ANRE EISEE - BN M ER TR
EEHB B ARFHRES -

FEMERKAAERIEETSENEXN - &
M FEEZHINAIRE - RERFABA=
1217 72 2 A Ramintra Roadi) -1 - B A Ei
TS - BARE  BREFFRZMEGE R
MEZMNOEBREZ I - BARIREDEN

RE

ENZBENEEHE LH  GEETRA M
EFNEERARTE G EBRERK
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JrEt e

S—hmE BEXEEGEEZERE LI
& BETEARTE - FHEXRNMEE
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Riviera One &8 E ¥ IZ[EE

HKRI Taikoo Hui 3 X & E

Determining what will happen in the years ahead is never easy, and RRBFMERETER - B AL E R
fluctuations in the economy, as well as political and fiscal concerns g BUOAMEH EFERE - ATISERTH
throughout the region, present uncertainty. Fortunately, the Group ARZ - EHEERBESERK - BAINERE

has a talented team and | believe our investments will continue to IHE MEEBEERSENIA - RIFIEZ)E
generate a reasonable income. A more vigilant watch over debt to EARNBIFEERL RN BAEF S EEH -

equity ratio and revenue to interest coverage is warranted.

APPRECIATION &

| am thankful to our Board of Directors, whose guidance and BELANEFSEAFE PN ERENIEE
wisdom have helped the Group enjoy many successes and SEERESEARKD - BRITHRRFEEREIE
accomplishments, often in the face of challenges. The Group’s BRET ML RBEEMSEBK R
management and staff have also earned my sincere gratitude. B BREmREK -

Their hard work and dedication play a vital role in helping us grow,

develop and look towards the future with excitement.

CHA Mou Sing Payson Ey
Chairman EE
Hong Kong, 20 June 2018 2018F 6 A20H &S
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MANAGING DIRECTOR’S

OPERATIONS REVIEW
EEAKEEKOE

.,Vlr CHA Mou Zing Victor

Deputy Chairman & Managing Director

BEERESELE
B TE

For the year under review, the Group celebrated its 40th anniversary
with a number of remarkable achievements. Since starting as
a property developer with a key focus on Discovery Bay years
ago, we have transformed into a conglomerate with diversified
businesses across Asia. At home in Hong Kong, our property
development business has enjoyed a healthy performance for
years, buoyed by Hong Kong’s robust economy. However, a long-
term sustainable development requires the Group to go beyond
Hong Kong and look for investment opportunities in markets where
development costs are lower and turnaround time is shorter. In the
meantime, the Group has also actively sought suitable opportunities
for our property investment business to generate stable recurrent
income.

14 H HKR International Limited Annual Report 2017/2018 W
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We successfully accomplished this mission when we turned a
new page in this milestone year. The grand opening of HKRI
Taikoo Hui that took place in Shanghai in early November 2017,
and the transformation of CDW Building into a modern retail and
office space, made major contributions to our property investment
business. The retail arcade in Discovery Bay is also undergoing a
facelift renovation project, which will further strengthen our foothold
in commercial properties.

Across Asia, the Group continued to search for promising
investment opportunities. Our residential projects in Jiaxing city
and Hangzhou city received great acclaim from the market, and
we have already added two new plots of land in Jiaxing city to our
portfolio, increasing our prominence in the Yangtze River Delta
Region. Meanwhile, in Thailand, we also have a number of quality
residential projects in the pipeline and we are expanding our land
bank for future development. Leveraging our experience gained
from creating a quality lifestyle concept in our property development
sector, we entered into the hospitality and healthcare businesses as
we believe these two businesses fit in our “We Create a Lifestyle”
motto well, and both have enjoyed solid growth ever since.

To ensure future success, we also prioritised investing in the
environment and our people. During the year, HKRI was included
as a constituent in Hang Seng Global Composite Index, Hang
Seng Composite Index and Hang Seng Corporate Sustainability
Benchmark Index, signifying our outstanding performance in regard
to sustainable development.

PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT AND INVESTMENT

The Group’s turnover of property development and investment
(including proportionate share of joint ventures and associates
of HK$796.1 million) for the year was HK$1,957.8 million. The
Group’s contribution from property development and investment
(including proportionate share of joint ventures and associates of
HK$37.6 million) for the year was HK$337.1 million.
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MANAGING DIRECTOR’S OPERATIONS REVIEW

EESHKEEKOE

HONG KONG
Discovery Bay

To further enhance facilities for residents, our subsidiary, Hong
Kong Resort, has been upgrading the Discovery Bay bus terminus
and expanding the DB Plaza retail podium. Construction work is
scheduled for completion in 2019.

Meanwhile, we have various residential projects in the pipeline and
are working closely with the HKSAR Government in regard to the
new developments in Discovery Bay.

The Group holds a 50% interest in the Discovery Bay development.

La Cresta, Sha Tin

La Cresta, a 50:50 joint venture development between the Group
and Nan Fung Development Limited, consists of three high-end
residential towers and a number of villas with a total gross floor area
(“GFA”) of approximately 12,500 square metres. A sale in the form
of tender was launched in October 2017. As at 31 March 2018, 16
units were sold and the revenue of 11 sold units was recognised
upon transfer of ownerships during the year.

The project was completed during the 2017/2018 financial year.
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2GETHER, Tuen Mun

This residential development project comprises a tower of premium
apartments and a retail podium with a total GFA of approximately
12,300 square metres. The project was launched in October 2016
and completed in 2017. All 222 residential units were sold and
the revenue of two sold units was recognised upon transfer of
ownerships during the year.

The Group holds a 75% interest in the development.

Kap Pin Long Project, Sai Kung

The project, involving a total GFA of approximately 350 square
metres, was sold in March 2018 and is expected to be handed
over in the second half of the year.

Tai Po Town Lots Nos. 223 and 229

The land will be developed into a luxurious, low-density residential
development together with a joint venture partner, Hysan
Development Company Limited, at a 40:60 ratio. The project is
scheduled for completion in 2021.

R

Kap Pin Long Project R Bi1E B

R
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DB North Plaza e =t &5

DB Plaza and DB North Plaza, Discovery Bay

As at 31 March 2018, DB Plaza and DB North Plaza continued to
generate steady rental income and achieved occupancy rates of
85% and 98% respectively.

The Group holds a 50% interest in both DB Plaza and DB North
Plaza.

CDW Building, Tsuen Wan

Renovation and conversion work on CDW Building (which has 27
storeys and a total GFA of approximately 91,000 square metres)
was completed in mid-2017. The property has been transformed
from an industrial space into a retail and office building. As at 31
March 2018, the occupancy rate of the retail podium (known as
“812") was 99%, whereas commitment rate of the entire building
was close to 70%.

20,000 square feet of office space at CDW Building has been
leased to Hong Kong Cyberport Management Company Limited
under the HKSAR Government’s “Space Sharing Scheme for
Youth”. It will be used to promote innovative and creative industries
as well as arts and cultural development.

West Gate Tower, Cheung Sha Wan

During the year, West Gate Tower achieved an average occupancy
rate of 93% and generated stable rental income for the Group.

Tuen Mun Central Square Public Car Park, Tuen Mun

The 325 parking spaces in Tuen Mun Central Square continued
generating satisfactory rental income.

] 8 H HKR International Limited Annual Report 2017/2018 W
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MAINLAND CHINA
HKRI Taikoo Hui, Shanghai

HKRI Taikoo Hui is one of Shanghai’s most prestigious and
sought-after commercial properties. The complex has a total GFA
of approximately 322,000 square metres, including two premium
Grade A office towers, two boutique hotels, a serviced apartment
building, a high-end shopping mall with extensive parking facilities
and Cha House, a historic building commemorating the Group’s
late founder, Dr CHA Chi-ming.

The two office towers, HKRI Centres One and Two, are home
to many important multinational and domestic tenants. As at 31
March 2018, the two office towers had achieved a commitment
rate of 86%.

A soft opening was held for the shopping mall on 4 May 2017 and
a grand opening took place on 3 November 2017. At the end of
March 2018, the mall achieved a commitment rate of 96% and
it has become a popular attraction for people working and living
nearby, as well as individuals from across the city.

The two boutique hotels and the serviced apartment building,
The Sukhothai Shanghai (operated by Beaufort Hotels Limited, a
subsidiary of HKRI), and The Middle House and The Middle House
Residence (operated by Swire Hotels), were open in 2018.

The Group has a 50% interest in HKRI Taikoo Hui.
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City One, Jiaxing City, Zhejiang Province

City One comprises 577 apartment units and 20 villas, and has a
total GFA of approximately 83,000 square metres. As at 31 March
2018, 98% of units were sold and the revenue of 27 sold units was
recognised upon transfer of ownerships during the year.

Riviera One, Jiaxing City, Zhejiang Province

With a total GFA of approximately 102,000 square metres,
Riviera One is a prime residential project adjacent to City One.
Upon completion in late 2018, this luxurious project will provide
approximately 700 low-rise and high-rise apartment units. A pre-
sale began in January 2018. As at 31 March 2018, 94% of 168
launched units were sold, and will be recognised upon completion
and transfer of ownerships.

Oasis One, Hangzhou City, Zhejiang Province

Situated in Zhejiang Hangzhou Future Sci-Tech City, Oasis One has
a total GFA of approximately 61,600 square metres and will provide
396 low-rise apartments and villas upon completion in late 2018. A
pre-sale began in 2017, and approximately 96% of 108 launched
units had been sold at the end of this financial year, which will be
recognised upon completion and transfer of ownerships.

City One H B2 EEH 42 &
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The Exchange, Tianjin

The Exchange is the Group’s 15%-owned investment property
in Tianjin and has a total GFA of over 152,000 square metres.
During the year, Heping Joy City, two office towers and Hotel Nikko
Tianjin, all of which are part of the property, maintained occupancy
rates of 87%, 89% and 64%, and continued generating stable
rental income.

Elite House, Shanghai

This 30-storey residential building is located in Shanghai’s
Changning District, close to Zhongshan Park. It comprises 120
units and has a total GFA of approximately 21,700 square metres.
A strata title sale of the property was launched in early October
2017 and received a positive response from the market. As at 31
March 2018, 34 units were sold and the revenue of seven sold
units was recognised upon transfer of ownerships during the year.

Land Lots Nos. 2017-28 and 2017-34, Jiaxing City, Zhejiang
Province

The Group acquired two land plots in Jiaxing Economic and
Technological Development Zone (Nos. 2017-28 and 2017-34) in
December 2017 and February 2018. Land plot No. 2017-28 has a
total GFA of approximately 33,000 square metres and will become
a prestige residential project with roughly 200 low-rise apartments.
Additionally, low-rise apartments and villas are planned for land
plot No. 2017-34, which has a total GFA of approximately 19,900
square metres.
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Rama 3 Road Project
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The Sukhothai Residences

THAILAND
The Sukhothai Residences, Bangkok

This luxury condominium tower, located on Sathorn Road, is a
leader in Bangkok’s high-end residential market. Over 95% of its
196 units have been sold, and the revenue of two sold units was
recognised upon transfer of ownerships during the year.

Wireless Road Project, Bangkok

The Group’s freehold land on Bangkok’s Wireless Road covers a
site area of approximately 12,600 square metres. The Group holds
a 49% interest in this project.

Rama 3 Road Project, Yannawa District, Bangkok

The project is located on Rama 3 Road by the Chaophraya River
in the Bang Phongphang Subdistrict, which is part of Bangkok’s
greater Yannawa District. The project will provide around 1,500
residential units. The design for the development is currently in
progress and construction will start in 2019.

Ramintra Road Project, Khannayao District, Bangkok

In February 2018, the Group acquired three plots of land located
on Bangkok’s Ramintra Road in the Khannayao District. The plots
cover an area of approximately 56,467 square metres and master
planning is currently underway.
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Veneo Minami-Azabu

T

Proud Roppongi

JAPAN
Proud Roppongi, Tokyo

The Group and Nomura Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. have
jointly redeveloped Proud Roppongi, a premium residential project
located at Roppongi 4-chome in Tokyo. Nearly all of its 35 units
were sold and handed over in the fourth quarter of 2017.

The Group holds a 51% interest in the project.

Niseko Project, Hokkaido

The Group holds residential plots at Niseko, located close to the
Niseko Annupuri ski area in Hokkaido. The plots have a total site
area of approximately 60,000 square metres and are currently held
as land banks.

Investment Properties in Tokyo

In July 2017, the Group acquired a new investment property,
Haluwa Shibakoen, a 15-storey residential building in Minato-ku,
Tokyo. The property achieved an occupancy rate of 97% as at 31
March 2018. The Group also owns four other properties in Tokyo:
Horizon Place Akasaka, a high-rise residential block; Graphio Nishi-
Shinjuku, a centrally-located office building; Souei Park Harajuku,
an en bloc residential apartment building in Shibuya; and Veneo
Minami-Azabu, an en bloc residential apartment building in Minato-
ku. As at 31 March 2018, Veneo Minami-Azabu achieved an
occupancy rate of 74%, while the other three properties recorded
close to 100% occupancy.
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Auberge Discovery Bay Hong Kong & % i1 5 & & /5

Club Siena /&% B < Fr

SERVICES PROVIDED

During the year, upgrade programmes were planned for, or taking
place at, the four clubs in Discovery Bay — Discovery Bay Golf Club,
Discovery Bay Marina Club, Discovery Bay Recreation Club and
Club Siena. These programmes will enhance facilities and service
offerings while improving overall efficiency.

The Group’s subsidiaries operate various transport services in
Discovery Bay, including ferry, land transport and tunnel operations.
However, rising labour costs, due to enhanced remuneration
packages needed to retain staff and attract suitable new
candidates, remained a challenge.

The Group’s property management services in Discovery Bay, and
elsewhere in Hong Kong, continued to operate at a normal pace
during the year.

The Group holds a 50% interest in these Discovery Bay service
providers.

HOSPITALITY
HONG KONG
Auberge Discovery Bay Hong Kong

Business for the hotel industry in Hong Kong as a whole remained
positive, and Auberge Discovery Bay Hong Kong recorded an
average occupancy rate of around 80% during the year. The
hotel also received several awards from the travel and leisure
industry, including the “Most Liked Fairy Tale Wedding” in Wedding
Message’s Most Liked Awards 2017.

The Group holds a 50% interest in Auberge Discovery Bay Hong
Kong.
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The Sukhothai Shanghai L8 &% /E

The Sukhothai Bangkok

THAILAND
The Sukhothai Bangkok

During the year, the hotel’s average occupancy rate was 60%
and it continued receiving honours from industry partners. The
hotel’s upscale eateries (Celadon, La Scala and Colonnade) were
recognised at the 19th Bangkok’s Best Restaurant Awards and
the hotel has repeatedly earned the “Certificate of Excellence”
from TripAdvisor. Now a member of Design Hotels™, the hotel will
further leverage this brand in its global marketing initiatives.

MAINLAND CHINA
The Sukhothai Shanghai

The Sukhothai Shanghai is the latest addition to the Sukhothai
brand and features 201 rooms in addition to dining and leisure
facilities. It is a member of Small Luxury Hotels of the World and
forms an integral part of the HKRI Taikoo Hui complex. The hotel
has soft opened on 28 April 2018.

HEALTHCARE

GenRx Holdings Limited (“GenRx”), the Group’s wholly-owned
subsidiary, operates a comprehensive healthcare service
network. Guided by the motto of providing people with “longer,
happier lives”, GenRx established chronic disease management
and integrated medical centres (Qualigenics Medical), Chinese
medicine centres (Discovery TCM Centre), dental clinics (Health &
Care Dental Clinic — 57%-owned), a centre for the diagnosis and
treatment of cancer (AmMed Cancer Center) and multi-specialty
outpatient centres (Healthway) across Hong Kong, Macau and
Manila.

During the year, Healthway Philippines delivered a revenue
growth of 6%, driven by the stability of its network of mall-based
ambulatory surgical and multi-specialty clinics, and the strength of
its clinic management services.

The Sukhothai Bangkok
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Healthway Philippines completed one of its clinic expansion in
Metro Manila during the third quarter of 2017, paving the way for
the introduction of integrative medicine and merging of its central
laboratory with wholesale operations. Ground works have also
been finalised for the establishment of an inpatient hospital facility
located in Quezon City, the largest city in the Philippines.

As a culmination to another auspicious year, Healthway Philippines
was a recipient of the “Gold Award — Trusted Brand in the
Ambulatory & Multi-Specialty Category” for the sixth consecutive
year.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

Being part of the Hong Kong community, we strive to improve
the city and the communities we serve. By reaching out to those
in need (especially the elderly and underprivileged families) and
supporting non-governmental organisations (“NGQO”) through
volunteering, in-kind sponsorships and donations, we demonstrate
our care and love for society. We continued incorporating
sustainability principles into our business operations and issued
our third standalone Environmental, Social and Governance
(“ESG”) Report, which details our related initiatives, policies and
performance in Hong Kong and mainland China throughout
the financial year. To guide the implementation of sustainability
strategies and ensure their alignment with the Group’s sustainable
development objectives, HKRI took a further step and formulated
the Sustainability Policy. Apart from regularly monitoring our
ESG performance, we also welcome any feedback from our
stakeholders. Interested stakeholders may refer to our online ESG
Report for more details.
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https://www.hkri.com/-/media/hkri/documents/esg-report/esg-report-2017-18.pdf?sc_lang=zh-tw
https://www.hkri.com/-/media/hkri/documents/esg-report/esg-report-2017-18.pdf?sc_lang=en
https://www.hkri.com/-/media/hkri/documents/esg-report/esg-report-2017-18.pdf?sc_lang=en

COMMUNITY SUPPORT

HKRI promotes the concept of good citizenship to employees, and
residents of Discovery Bay and other communities we manage
through activities designed to encourage giving back to society.
To recognise our contributions to the community, HKRI received
the “10 Years Plus Caring Company” logo and the “Business for
Sustainability” logo from The Hong Kong Council of Social Service.
Additionally, we earned the “Bronze Award for Volunteer Service”
from the Social Welfare Department of Hong Kong.

Our corporate volunteer team, HKRI Care & Share, as well as
volunteer teams from other operations have been collaborating
with NGOs to serve vulnerable people in Hong Kong. Our NGO
partners include Chinese YMCA of Hong Kong, Asbury Methodist
Social Service, Produce Green Foundation, Outlying Island
Women’s Association, Ocean Park Conservation Foundation
Hong Kong and Food Grace. Besides offering voluntary tutoring
and caring services to primary students in Tung Chung, we also
sponsored underprivileged school children in the region, providing
a year-long English Learning Programme to improve their social
mobility. To spread the volunteer spirit, summer interns, along
with the family and friends of our employees, were invited to
enjoy a farming project with the children and visit the elderly.
We also donated stationery to help children prepare for the new
school year and provided in-kind sponsorships and donations to
NGOs and charitable groups, including The Hong Kong Down
Syndrome Association, The Society for AIDS Care, Harmony Home
Association, Taiwan and Hong Kong Breast Cancer Foundation.
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MANAGING DIRECTOR’S OPERATIONS REVIEW

AKX OE

Echoing HKRI’s core values of creativity and innovation, we
launched a number of initiatives which supported arts development
and talents in 2017. We have sponsored the drama “The Legend
of Those were the Days”, which was presented by Neighbourhood
Advice-Action Council and a group of talented seniors in Discovery
Bay. We have also supported Hong Kong Arts Festival for ten
consecutive years. In March 2018, the Group sponsored “Pas
de deux for Toes and Fingers”, performed by renowned ballerina
Svetlana Zakharova and violinist Vadim Repin.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

The Group adopts a holistic approach to govern environmental
protection initiatives in all of its business operations. Committed to
adhering to green building standards in our property development
projects, we pursue the Hong Kong Building Environmental
Assessment Method (BEAM) Plus certification for all our new
developments. HKRI Taikoo Hui, the Group’s flagship mixed-use
development project in Shanghai which opened in November 2017,
incorporated various sustainability elements in its building design,
including a 250-metre glass canopy to invite natural daylight into the
space. Both its office towers and retail mall respectively obtained
pre-certifications for LEED® Platinum (Core & Shell Version 2.0) and
Gold. Our new offices in Hong Kong and Shanghai also adopted
sustainability principles in building design to create a green,
positive and comfortable working environment. Across business
units, different energy saving measures have also been adopted.
The concerted efforts have led to a 2.8% reduction of electricity
consumption in Hong Kong operations compared to 2016/2017.
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Resolute in contributing to a cleaner and healthier air quality in
Hong Kong, we continue to replace our bus fleet with greener and
cleaner models, and use Marine Light Diesel with a sulphur content
of less than 0.05% in our entire ferry fleet. Old generators of
vessels have also been progressively replaced with lower-emitting
generators.

We are committed to adopting waste recycling practices across
all operations. Through collaboration with tenants, residents and
guests, we collect and recycle various types of materials from our
commercial and residential properties. At Discovery Bay, over
25,640 kg of food waste were turned into compost during the year.
As a responsible property developer, the Group also engages with
its contractors to ensure proper handling of construction waste,
and maximise the use of recyclable construction materials.

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 March 2018, the Group had a total of 2,384 employees
in Hong Kong and overseas. We strive to provide a supportive and
positive work environment to attract new talent and retain current
employees. Development programmes are also offered.

We regularly review our human resources policies, employment
terms and benefits. This year, we modified the post-retirement
policy, working hours and leave terms to further enhance our
remuneration packages.

The Group offers a range of development opportunities and
incentives to encourage personal growth and enhance staff
performance. These include the Maritime Trainee Programme,
which strengthens the internal talent pool in our transport
operations division, and our “Outstanding Team Award”, which
recognises teams that pursue excellence.
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MANAGING DIRECTOR’S OPERATIONS REVIEW

EESHKEEKOE

Following the success of the first HKRI Summer Internship
Programme, we expanded this initiative and recruited 20 interns for
the ten-week HKRI CaRe programme. In addition to participating
in various business-centred tasks, the interns joined HKRI
Care & Share and worked on an organic farming project with
underprivileged children.

CUSTOMERS

The pursuit of quality, which involves providing quality services
and ensuring customer satisfaction, is reflected in our PRI2DE
commitment. In our city management operation, we provide various
communication channels for our residents in Discovery Bay to give
feedback and suggestions such as suggestion boxes, a 24-hour
customer service hotline and walk-ins at the business centre and
local management offices. To foster a two-way dialogue in sharing
and exchanging ideas with different parties, regular meetings
were set up with resident group representatives, including the
City Owners Committee, the Village Owners Committee and the
Passenger Liaison Group.
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To act in the best interests of our patients, our healthcare
operation operates in accordance with established guidelines
for general nursing and treatment to maintain consistency and
standardisation. Our dental section has also voluntarily applied for,
and has been assessed and certified under the ISO 9001:2008
Quality Management System. To enhance our services, customers
are welcome to give feedback through our established customer
complaint handling procedure or the feedback card.

SUPPLIERS

The Group strives to spread best practice across our business
network through building trusted partnerships and collaborating
with our suppliers and contractors. Other than taking the
environmental criteria into consideration in our procurement
process, we also encourage our suppliers and contractors to
advance their green practices, minimise the environmental impact
arising from projects, and exercise sound governance of supply
chain management.
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MANAGING DIRECTOR’S OPERATIONS REVIEW

EESHKEEKOE

The Group upholds the highest ethical standards and fair
competition practices in the supplier selection process, which
is impartial and based on competence, experience, service
quality, track record and our operational needs. Monitoring and
management controls are also in place to detect and prevent
bribery, fraud or other malpractice in the process of procurement
and tendering.

OUTLOOK

Celebrating our 40th anniversary has brought me, and everyone
at HKRI, great joy over the past year. We look toward the future
with renewed optimism, but there are challenges ahead of us
nonetheless. Political and economic concerns around the world, as
well as shifting trends in the areas in which we operate, will require
hard work and creativity to overcome. However, | have great
confidence in our abilities and we will continue progressing with our
many projects.

In the coming years, HKRI will prioritise maintaining a balanced
income from different business operations. To diminish risk, we
have created a diverse portfolio and acquired land banks across
Asia over the years. We will pursue this course in the future to
ensure our ongoing profitability.

Various factors expose HKRI's property interests to risk, including
heightened competition, shifting demand and the impact of
changes in different economies around the world. New policies
enacted by the HKSAR Government, which include plans to offer
affordable homes, as well as market-cooling measures in the
mainland, will affect us. However, we have policies and plans
designed to help us handle challenges skilfully, ensuring our
well-being over the long term.
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We believe that 2018 will be equally exciting, with several new
developments lying ahead. We will continue enhancing our skills
and abilities, while using our experience to increase the value of our
holdings.

Lastly, | would like to thank our Board of Directors for the advice
and guidance they generously provided throughout the year. | must
also offer my deepest thanks to our staff, customers and business
partners. Without their support and dedication, success would
not be possible. | am also indebted to our shareholders, as their
confidence in our abilities continues to be an inspiration.

/’(/\A’\‘

CHA Mou Zing Victor
Deputy Chairman & Managing Director

Hong Kong, 20 June 2018
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
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Ms WONG CHA May Lung Madeline
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Non-executive Director
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Ms HO Pak Ching Loretta
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
EEZEE

CHAIRMAN =&

Mr CHA Mou Sing Payson e, pssc Hons), aged 75, was appointed Executive Director and the Chairman
in 1989 and 2007 respectively. He is also the Chairman of the Nomination Committee and a director of some
subsidiaries of the Company. Mr CHA has over 50 years extensive experience in property development and
investment. He is the chairman and non-executive director (“NED”) of Hanison Construction Holdings Limited
(“Hanison”), executive chairman of Mingly Corporation (“Mingly”), independent non-executive director (“INED”)
of each of New World Development Company Limited (“NWD”), Eagle Asset Management (CP) Limited being
manager of Champion Real Estate Investment Trust (“CREIT”) and Hongkong International Theme Parks
Limited. Mr CHA ceased as an INED of Munsun Capital Group Limited (“Munsun”) effective from 23 December
2016. Hanison, NWD, CREIT and Munsun are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). He is a member of One Country Two Systems Research Institute Limited, governing board member
of China-United States Exchange Foundation, board member of the Real Estate Developers Association of Hong
Kong, the chairman of Qiu Shi Science & Technologies Foundation (“Qiu Shi Foundation”), trustee of Sang Ma
Trust Fund (“Sang Ma”) and honorary trustee of Oregon State University Foundation. Mr CHA is a sibling to Ms
Madeline WONG, Mr Victor CHA and Mr Johnson CHA. He is also a director of CCM Trust (Cayman) Limited
(“CCM Trust”) and LBJ Regents Limited (“LBJ Regent”), both are substantial shareholders of the Company within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance and together whose interests in the Company
represent the substantial interests of the Cha Family in the Company.

BB L Jp pssc Hons * 758% D BIFA1989F 2007 FREE AARFMTEERERE - BINALKA
AIREZEGZERRETHBRARIZES - BEAATYELRERKRETHABA0FEZLR - BAHE
BIZERERARI(TEHE D2 ERRIFNTER((IERE]) BHEEERERQRA(RBAHD ZHTEF
FHRERBERAR(IHER]) BEEEEETR(BE)BRAF(GZARMABEBEXGER(BE D ZEEA)
NREABERFBLEER AR ZBIUIIFNTES([BE]) - ELER2016F 1223 BT EREREEH
RAGI(TER]DBECRK - B - it R  BSERERYIREBRAERIMERAR([BRAT]) £ - &
A—EMHAEPOARATIZKE  FEIRESCSEETEKE  EIHEEZRESSE  KeRFEESE
([RREELDEF  EMESG((EMESDITA  URBIRMMNIABESSLEITA - BLEERT
BEEXT 2% BRKAEERERBIEEZ I © IABCCM Trust (Cayman) Limited ([ CCM Trust]) & LBJ
Regents Limited([LBJ Regents|) 2 &% - MR A AREBEZLHFRHAEKRAIEXVHE AR AR EERER - BER
RRA 2 ERRRERRGRARR X EfE o

36 B HKR International Limited Annual Report 2017/2018 H



DEPUTY CHAIRMAN AND MANAGING DIRECTOR Bl X EHES 4 K1E

Mr CHA Mou Zing Victor sa msa, aged 68, was appointed Executive Director, the Managing Director
and the Deputy Chairman in 1989, 2001 and 2007 respectively. He is a member of the Remuneration Committee
and director of some subsidiaries of the Company. Mr CHA is responsible for the overall and day-to-day
management of the Group. He has over 35 years extensive experience in real estate development and textile
manufacturing. Mr CHA is an INED of SOHO China Limited and alternate INED of NWD, both companies are listed
on the Stock Exchange, and NED of Mingly. He is the chairman of each of the Hong Kong-Japan Business Co-
operation Committee of Hong Kong Trade Development Council and Hong Kong Arts Festival Society Limited and is
also a member of the board of trustees of The Better Hong Kong Foundation and trustee of Sang Ma. Mr CHA is a
sibling to Ms Madeline WONG, Mr Payson CHA and Mr Johnson CHA.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS #1T=5

Mr CHUNG Sam Tin Abraham rcpa, aged 72, was appointed Executive Director in 1994 and is also a
director of some subsidiaries of the Company. He has been serving the Group since 1978 and is now the head of
finance and group operations overseeing the Group’s finance, accounting, tax, insurance, information technology
functions, all operating units in Discovery Bay and hospitality operation. Mr CHUNG is a certified public accountant,
fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales. He has over 45 years extensive experience in financial management and
property development in Hong Kong.
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Mr TANG Moon Wah 3, (Arch Studies), BArch, aged 64, was appointed Executive Director in December 2004
and is also a director of some subsidiaries of the Company. He has been serving the Group since 1985 and is
now the Country Head of Greater China (Hong Kong and the People’s Republic of China) and the Head of Group
Projects to assist the Managing Director of the Company in the day-to-day management of the Group and oversee
the project management of real estate development in Greater China. Mr TANG has over 39 years extensive
experience in property development. He is a fellow member of The Hong Kong Institute of Architects and has been
the Authorised Person and Registered Architect since 1982 and 1991 respectively.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
EECEE

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS JE#{T7& =

The Honourable Ronald Joseph ARCULLI csv, cvo, ess, o8t up, aged 79, joined the Board
in 1989 and was re-designated as Non-executive Director in June 2005. He is a senior partner of King & Wood
Mallesons. Mr ARCULLI is an INED of Hang Lung Properties Limited, NED of Sino Hotels (Holdings) Limited, Sino
Land Company Limited, Tsim Sha Tsui Properties Limited, HK Electric Investments Manager Limited (as trustee-
manager of HK Electric Investments) and HK Electric Investments Limited. Save for HK Electric Investments
Manager Limited, all the aforesaid companies are listed on the Stock Exchange. Mr ARCULLI holds directorships
in other public and private companies in Hong Kong and overseas. He is now the chairman of FWD Group, an
honorary fellow of Hong Kong Securities and Investment Institute and vice patron and former directors committee
member of The Community Chest of Hong Kong. Mr ARCULLI is also a board member and the vice-chairman of
the board of The West Kowloon Cultural District Authority and chairs its executive committee and development
committee.
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Mr CHA Mou Daid Johnson gs, vsa, aged 66, joined the Board in 1989 and was re-designated as
Non-executive Director in December 2004. He is also a director of some subsidiaries of the Company. Mr CHA has
nearly 40 years extensive experience in venture capital and investment management and currently a director of C.M.
Capital Advisors (HK) Limited. He is a NED of Hanison, Mingly and China International Capital Corporation Limited
(“CICCL"). Hanison and CICCL are listed on the Stock Exchange. Mr CHA is also an INED of Shanghai Commercial
Bank Limited and director of a number of other companies in Hong Kong and overseas including LBJ Regents. He
is active in non-profit making organisations including Qiu Shi Foundation and Moral Education Concern Group and is
also a member of the finance committee and of the council of The Hong Kong University of Science & Technology.
Mr CHA is a sibling to Ms Madeline WONG, Mr Payson CHA and Mr Victor CHA.
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Ms WONG CHA May Lung Madeline, aged 78, joined the Board in 1989 and was re-designated as
Non-executive Director in December 2004. She is also a director of some subsidiaries of the Company. Ms WONG
is the deputy chairman of Mingly and also director or NED of a number of public and private companies in Hong
Kong and overseas, including CCM Trust and LBJ Regents. She retired as a NED of Chinney Investments, Limited,
which is listed on the Stock Exchange, in August 2015. Ms WONG is the chairwoman and a trustee of Sang Ma.
She is a sibling to Mr Payson CHA, Mr Victor CHA and Mr Johnson CHA.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS B IEH{TE =

Mr CHEUNG Wing Lam Linus gssc, Jp, aged 70, joined the Board in January 2006 and was re-
designated as Independent Non-executive Director in March 2012. He is also the Chairman of the Remuneration
Committee and a member of the Audit Committee of the Company. Mr CHEUNG is an INED of China Unicom (Hong
Kong) Limited which is listed on the Stock Exchange and the board of directors of Sotheby’s which is listed on the
New York Stock Exchange. He was the chief executive of Hong Kong Telecommunications Limited from 1994 to
2000, deputy chairman of PCCW Limited from August 2000 to February 2004 and INED of Taikang Life Insurance
Co. Ltd. from 2005 to 2011.
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Ms HO Pak Ching Loretta rcu feties), aged 71, was re-designated as Independent Non-executive
Director with effect from April 2010. Prior to her re-designation, she was appointed as Executive Director in 1994
and re-designated as Non-executive Director in April 2008 upon her retirement from all executive roles in the
Group. Ms HO is also a member of both the Audit Committee and Nomination Committee of the Company. She
is a retired member of the Chartered Institute of Housing Asian Pacific Branch and has over 45 years extensive
experience in property development, property investment and management.
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Mr FAN Hung Ling Henry s, 115 sss, Jp, aged 70, was appointed Independent Non-executive Director
in November 2017. He is also a member of Remuneration Committee of the Company. Mr FAN has over 30 years
experience in business management. He is currently an INED of Sun Hung Kai Properties Limited, a company listed
on the Stock Exchange and the managing director of Hong Kong Glory Limited, a family investment company. Mr
FAN also served as a director and then managing director of CITIC Pacific Limited (now known as CITIC Limited)
from 1990 and 1992 respectively to 2009 and the deputy chairman of Cathay Pacific Airways Limited from 1997
to 2009. He has a long record of public services in the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region and is currently
a member of the Chief Executive’s Council of Advisers on Innovation and Strategic Development, the Financial
Services Development Council and the Task Force on Review of Self-financing Post-secondary Education. Mr FAN
was also a non-official member of the Executive Council of Hong Kong, chairman of the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Authority, NED of Securities and Futures Commission of Hong Kong and INED of Hong Kong Exchanges
and Clearing Limited. He is an Attorney-at-Law in the State of California, U.S.A. and Barrister-at-Law in Hong Kong
and England and Wales.
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Mr TANG Kwai Chang FCCA, FCPA, aged 65, was appointed Independent Non-executive Director in
September 2014, He is also the Chairman of the Audit Committee and member of Nomination Committee of the
Company. Mr TANG was a partner of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu (“Deloitte”) with extensive experience in auditing
and audit risk management, the vice chairman of Deloitte China and board member of Deloitte Global when he
retired in May 2013. He is currently an INED of Bank of Communications (Hong Kong) Limited, Baosteel Resources
Company Limited and Baosteel Resources International Company Limited (subsidiaries of China Baowu Steel
Group Corporation Limited), Tsit Wing International Holdings Limited (“Tsit Wing”) and Foxconn Interconnect
Technology Limited (which carries on business in Hong Kong as FIT Hon Teng Limited (“FIT”)). Both Tsit Wing and
FIT are listed on the Stock Exchange. Mr TANG is a fellow member of both the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and the HKICPA. He is also currently a court member of Hong Kong Baptist University and member
of the disciplinary panel of the HKICPA.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEEHE

The Board of Directors (the “Board”) of HKR International Limited
(the “Company”) is pleased to announce the audited final results of
the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the
year ended 31 March 2018.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
activities of its principal subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures
are set out in note 42 to the consolidated financial statements on
pages 192 to 207.

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

Results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2018 are set out
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss on page 90.

The Board has recommended the declaration of a final dividend of
HK7 cents per share for the year ended 31 March 2018 (2017: HK7
cents) to the shareholders whose names appear on the registers
of members of the Company on 31 August 2018. The proposed
final dividend will be paid on 17 September 2018 following approval
at 2018 annual general meeting of the Company to be held on 22
August 2018 (2018 AGM”). The proposed final dividend together
with the interim dividend of HK3 cents per share for the six months
ended 30 September 2017 makes up a total dividend of HK10
cents per share for the year ended 31 March 2018 (2017: HK7
cents).

BONUS ISSUE

Apart from the final dividend, the Board has also recommended
a bonus issue (“Bonus Issue”) of shares of HK$0.25 each in
the capital of the Company (“Bonus Shares”) on the basis of
one (1) Bonus Share for every ten (10) existing shares held by
the shareholders of the Company whose names appear on the
register of members of the Company on 31 August 2018. The
Bonus Shares will be issued and credited as fully paid at par and
will rank pari passu with the existing issued ordinary shares of the
Company in all respects from the date of issue, except that they
will not rank for the proposed final dividend for the year ended 31
March 2018 or the Bonus Issue. The Bonus Issue is conditional
upon the Shareholders’ approval at the 2018 AGM and the Listing
Committee of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) granting listing of, and permission to deal in,
the Bonus Shares. Subject to the aforementioned conditions, the
certificates for the Bonus Shares are expected to be despatched
to the qualifying shareholders of the Company on or around 17
September 2018.
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CLOSURE OF REGISTERS

The main and branch registers of members of the Company will
be closed from 17 to 22 August 2018 (both days inclusive) for
the 2018 AGM as well as from 29 to 31 August 2018 (both days
inclusive) for the final dividend and Bonus Shares. During the
periods, no transfer of shares will be registered. In order to be
eligible to attend and vote at the 2018 AGM, and to qualify for the
final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2018 and the Bonus
Shares, all properly completed transfer forms accompanied by the
relevant share certificates must be lodged for registration with the
Company’s share registrar in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong
Kong Investor Services Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong
not later than 4:30 p.m. on 16 and 28 August 2018 respectively.
The notice of the 2018 AGM will be published on the websites of
the Company and the Stock Exchange and despatched to the
shareholders of the Company in due course.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Review of the Group’s business and analysis of the Group’s
performance using financial key performance indicators during the
year, a description of the principal risks and uncertainties facing by
the Group and an indication of the likely future development of the
Group’s business are provided in the sections of this annual report
headed “Chairman’s Statement” (on pages 10 to 13), “Managing
Director’s Operations Review” (on pages 14 to 33), “Directors’
Report” (on pages 41 to 58), “Financial Highlights” (on page
78), “Financial Review” (on pages 79 to 81), “Five-year Financial
Summary” (on page 211) and in the notes to the consolidated
financial statements. For review of the development, performance
or position of the Group’s business, the Group’s environmental
policies and performance, compliance with the relevant laws
and regulations that have a significant impact on the Group and
understanding of the Group’s key relationships with its employees,
customers and suppliers and others that have a significant impact
on the Group, please see sections of this annual report headed
“Managing Director’s Operations Review” (on pages 14 to 33),
“Directors’ Report” (on pages 41 to 58) and “Corporate Governance
Report” (on pages 59 to 77) as well as the Environmental, Social
and Governance Report of the Company which is published online
at the same time of this annual report.
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During the financial year ended 31 March 2018, the Company has
complied with the requirements of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”), the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”) and the applicable
companies laws. Details of the Company’s compliance with the
code provisions set out in the Corporate Governance Code and
Corporate Governance Report contained in the Listing Rules are
provided in the “Corporate Governance Report” on pages 59 to 77.

The Group has set up proper procedures to ensure adherence to
the relevant laws and regulations which have a significant impact
on the Group in conduct of its business, including but not limited
to the Residential Properties (First-hand Sales) Ordinance, Hotel
and Guesthouse Accommodation Ordinance, Personal Data
(Privacy) Ordinance, Minimum Wage Ordinance, Employment
Ordinance and Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance. Any
new enactment of or changes in the relevant laws and regulations
would be communicated to the relevant departments and staff to
ensure compliance. Reminders on compliance would also be sent
out where necessary. During the year under review, there were
no recorded cases of non-compliance with relevant standards,
laws and regulations regarding occupational health and safety, the
environment and data privacy.

RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group’s businesses, financial conditions, results of operations
and growth prospects may be affected by risks and uncertainties
directly or indirectly pertaining to the Group’s businesses. The
risk factors set out below are those that could result in the Group
businesses, financial conditions, results of operations or growth
prospects differing materially from expected or historical results.
Such factors are by no means exhaustive or comprehensive, and
there may be other risks in addition to those shown below which
are not known to the Group or which may not be material now but
could turn out to be material in the future. In addition, this annual
report does not constitute a recommendation or advice to invest in
the securities of the Company and investors are advised to make
their own judgment or consult their own investment advisors before
making any investment in the securities of the Company.
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A)  RISKS PERTAINING TO PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT AND
INVESTMENT

Property development and investment are the Group’s core
businesses, primarily in Hong Kong, mainland China, Thailand
and Japan. There exist a number of factors which could affect the
property market in these regions, including among other things,
changes in economic, political and legal environment, as well as
changes in the government’s policies and regulations such as the
escalating trade tension between US and China which may result
in negative impact on the Group’s investment in mainland China.
These inherent risks may affect the Group’s investment strategy,
business model and the performance of the Group’s overall
financial results and positions. To mitigate the risks, the Group
actively assesses overall economic, political, legal and property
market developments as well as their changes in these regions
and continue to review and evaluate its investment strategy to
ensure the Group responds to the changes promptly and adopts
appropriate strategies. For each potential project, detailed feasibility
and stress test with regard to all aspects will be carried out before
making any commitment and will also engage joint venture partner
if considered appropriate to minimise commercial and legal risks.

B)  RISKS PERTAINING TO OPERATIONS OF THE GROUP

The Group’s operations are subject to a number of risk factors
distinctive to the operation of property development and
investment, hospitality, services provided and healthcare business.
For instance, default on the part of contractors or sub-contractors,
buyers, tenants and strategic business partners; or inadequacies
or failures of internal processes, systems and staff members; or
other external factors such as rising construction cost, increasing
competition and seasonality. In addition, accidents which may
happen despite policies and procedures are set up for their
prevention, which may lead to financial loss, litigation, damage
of reputation and cause various levels of negative impact on the
results of operations.
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To mitigate the relevant risks, the Group regularly reviews its
existing policies and procedures to ensure their effectiveness
and adequacy, imposes straight guidelines on carefully selecting
and engaging vendors, closely monitors project time plans and
statuses, up keeping assesses market condition and anticipates its
changes to react with appropriate business strategies, continuously
improves its service quality and facilities and maintains sufficient
diversity in tenant-mix for its investment properties in order to
preserve its competitiveness. The Group has also arranged
appropriate insurance such as business interruption insurance
which covers the loss of income that our businesses suffer due to
disaster.

C)  FINANCIAL RISKS

The major financial instruments of the Group include held-to-
maturity investments, available-for-sale financial assets, trade
receivables, other receivables, other assets, amounts due from
associates, loans to joint ventures, amounts due from joint ventures,
bank balances and cash, trade payables, deposits received and
other financial liabilities, bank and other loans and other liabilities.
The risks associated with these financial instruments include market
risk (currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk), credit
risk and liquidity risk. Details of these financial instruments and the
policies on how to mitigate these risk are set out in note 40 to the
consolidated financial statements of this annual report.

D)  HUMAN RESOURCES RISKS

The Group’s success is dependent upon its ability to attract, train,
retain and motivate highly skilled and qualified staff members in
every aspect. The loss of key personnel, or the inability to find
additional qualified personnel, could materially and adversely affect
the Group’s prospects and results of operations. To mitigate such
uncertainty, succession planning is adopted to identify successors
for key management positions and continuously provide coaching
and training, both in-house and external, for talent development.
The Group also regularly reviews its compensation and benefit
packages to ensure such packages are in line with the market and
creates a bonding culture to heighten the sense of belongings of
staff members.
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E)  COMPLIANCE RISKS

Whilst the Group has a diversified portfolio of business operations
across Hong Kong, mainland China and various Asia Pacific
regions, any failure to anticipate the trend of regulatory changes or
cope with relevant requirements may result in non-compliance with
local laws or regulations, leading to not only financial loss but also
reputational damage to the Group. To mitigate the risks, the Group
continually monitors changes in relevant local laws and regulations,
actively assesses the effect of relevant developments and seeks for
legal advice when necessary to ensure relevant requirements are
properly complied with in an effective manner.

Risk management is closely linked to the Group’s internal control
framework. Key control for mitigating high risks identified in the risk
management process are subject to independent review by the
Internal Audit Department. During the year under review, the Audit
Committee, on behalf of the Board, has reviewed the effectiveness
of the Group’s risk management and internal control systems.
Details of the aforesaid review of the effectiveness are disclosed in
the “Corporate Governance Report” on pages 59 to 77.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in note 30
to the consolidated financial statements on page 174.

DIRECTORS

During the financial year ended 31 March 2018, Mr Henry FAN
was appointed and Dr Henry CHENG resigned as an Independent
Non-executive Director (“INED”) of the Company with effect from
1 November 2017 and 31 March 2018 respectively. The Directors
during the financial year ended 31 March 2018 and at the date of
this annual report are those set out on pages 34 and 35.

In accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association (the
“Articles”), the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”)
and Corporate Governance Report as set out in Appendix 14 to
the Listing Rules, Mr Payson CHA, Mr Victor CHA, Ms Madeline
WONG, Ms Loretta HO and Mr Henry FAN will retire by rotation at
the 2018 AGM. Al the retiring Directors, being eligible, have offered
themselves for re-election at the 2018 AGM. Other remaining
Directors will continue in office.
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None of the Directors offering themselves for re-election at the
2018 AGM has a service contract which is not determinable by
the Group within one year without payment of compensation
(other than statutory compensation) and all Directors are subject to
retirement by rotation and re-election at the AGMs of the Company
in accordance with the Articles. The rotation clause sets up a
mechanism to ensure that all Directors shall retire at least once
every three years.

Each of the INEDs of the Company has confirmed his/her
independence pursuant to rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company is of the view that all INEDs of the Company meet the
independence guidelines set out in the Listing Rules and are
independent accordingly.

Assisted by heads of functional units, the Executive Directors (“EDs”)
of the Company have the direct responsibilities for the business
and operations of the Group and hence the EDs of the Company
are regarded as the Company’s senior management. Biographical
details of the Directors are set out on pages 36 to 40. Details of
the Directors’ emoluments are also provided under note 12 to the
consolidated financial statements on pages 145 to 147.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY AND DIRECTORS
AND OFFICERS LIABILITY INSURANCE

The Articles provides that every Director is entitled to be
indemnified out of the assets of the Company against all losses
or liabilities which he/she may sustain or incur in carrying out his/
her duties or otherwise in relation thereto. Directors and Officers
Liability Insurance Policy is in place to protect the Directors against
potential costs and liabilities arising from claims brought against the
Directors.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 March 2018, the interests or short positions of the
Directors and their respective associates in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or any associated
corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded
in the register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO
or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules and adopted by the Company were as
follows:
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A)  LONG POSITIONS IN THE COMPANY’S SHARES OF A RARRBRIEREE2SE TR
HK$0.25 EACH N
Number of ordinary share
EERYE
Approximate
percentage
of issued
Personal Family Corporate Other share capital
Name of director Capacity interests interests interests interests HERTRA
ES2B &4 fEAEZ REEE  ARER Hftgss ZBREA
Payson CHA Beneficial owner, interests of a 3,113,113 - 16,867,074" 618,895,387 638,875,574 47.31
EE controlled corporation and
beneficiary of discretionary trusts
Balb A  SEMERR
BEEAREA
Victor CHA Beneficial owner and beneficiary of 1,140,253 - - 629,498,3832 630,638,636 46.70
B, discretionary trusts
ERBEAARBBREEZEA
Johnson CHA Bengficiary of discretionary trusts - - - 628,200,885 628,200,885 46.52
e BiEEEXHEA
Madeline WONG  Founder and/or beneficiary of - - - 627,487,463% 627,487,463 46.47
ITEEE discretionary trusts
HEEFALAR/EZRA
Ronald ARCULLI  Beneficiary of a trust 241,472 - - - 241,472 0.02
Ef BREXHEA
Abraham CHUNG  Beneficial owner 315,084 - - - 315,084 0.02
BLH ERAEA
Loretta HO Beneficial owner 85,600 - - - 85,600 0.01
g ERAEA
TANG Moon Wah Beneficial owner 135,200 - - - 135,200 0.01
HRE ERAEA

48

The shares were held by Accomplished Investments Limited, a corporation 100% owned by Mr Payson CHA.
ZERD TR BB A 2 E A 2 A FAccomplished Investments Limited$ 4 ©

The shares belonged to certain but not identical discretionary trusts of which CCM Trust (Cayman) Limited (“CCM Trust”) and LBJ Regents
Limited (“LBJ Regents”) were the corporate trustees and the relevant Directors were among the members of the classes of discretionary
beneficiaries.

ZERMBRE T AEBIS(E5EAHE %A BCCM Trust (Cayman) Limited([CCM Trust|) & LBJ Regents Limited([LBJ Regents |) Z & H
RAARE  MEREFERBIBEXHEA -

577,842,756 shares belonged to certain but not identical discretionary trusts of which CCM Trust and LBJ Regents were the corporate
trustees and the Director was among the members of the classes of discretionary beneficiaries.
577,842, 7568 IR D BN E T T RBIEEE R HA%E ACCM Trust X LBJ Regents ZEBIZ AR E - MEZESTBREBEZEA ©

The Director was, under two separate discretionary trusts of which CCM Trust and LBJ Regents were the corporate trustees, the founder
and member of the classes of discretionary beneficiaries thereof. Such trusts were deemed to be interested in 49,644,707 shares in
aggregate.

ZEERAEF/CCOM TrustLBJ Regents SEB T AR 2 MEATRABBEENBZAREFHRBEZRA - ZEETRERES
& 3£49,644, 707 BRI 19 2 R o
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B) SHARE OPTIONS

Certain Directors have been granted share options of the Company,
details of which are set out in the paragraph headed “Share Option
Scheme” below.

Save as disclosed above and for certain Directors holding non-
beneficial interests in the share capital of some of the subsidiaries
of the Company as the nominee shareholders, as at 31 March
2018, none of the Directors or their respective associates had any
interests or short positions in any shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any associated corporations (within
the meaning of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be
kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code
contained in the Listing Rules.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company has adopted its share option scheme, namely 2011
Scheme and the listing status of the shares issued (if any) under
this scheme was granted by the Stock Exchange. Particulars of the
2011 Scheme as required to be disclosed under the Listing Rules
are set out below:

A)  PURPOSE

To provide the participants who have been granted share
options to subscribe for ordinary shares in the Company with the
opportunity to acquire proprietary interests in the Company and to
encourage the participants to work towards enhancing the value of
the Company and its shares for the benefit of the Company and its
shareholders as a whole.

B)  PARTICIPANTS

All Directors, full-time employees and any consultants (employed
on a contract basis) of the Company, its subsidiaries and/or
its associated companies are eligible to participate in the 2011
Scheme.

C) MAXIMUM NUMBER OF SHARES AVAILABLE FOR ISSUE

A maximum number of 135,027,436 shares of the Company may
be issued upon exercise of all share options granted or to be
granted under the 2011 Scheme.

B) RxfnHitE
ETEFRELARZRG B - EHFER
R IRt Bt B — 8% -

BrENEEERBAETEEUREAZERTE
RABAETHBRARRAZ EERE=SI - B
2018 3H31H ' EFhFEXE I BMEAL
RAR B SRR BB EE (Ex R FBHEH)
MR - BRI RERER - BEESR
R RRIRIBEBF GO EI2KAFTEZLE
A - AR ET R R AEEETRZBAE
RAB MR T2 S IOA R ©

R4 B R &

ARAEEANE R B8 (B12011 F 5
2)) - MRBEZF B BT 2R (0B 2 &R
R H ETHAL o i EMRARERAKESR
FA2011 At Bl 2 BRI T

A BHEY

B ERER TR PEARBEA AR L AN
ZBBRERMBEARTEN R IHE X
BESEERRRRRERR 2 BEN R -
NhEESARENRERDZEE -

S=E!

&

B) Z&HiFE

ARNFE - EMBAR M/SREBENR A
BE  2BESRIMUAOENER2BEH
HEBRZE2011F512] -

C) Al TEIToxZRHEE
HATERE2011F 8Bk TFTEL 2
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135,027,436H% °
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D)  MAXIMUM ENTITLEMENT OF EACH PARTICIPANT

The total number of shares of the Company issued and to be issued
upon exercise of the share options granted and to be granted to
each participant (including both exercised and unexercised share
options) under the 2011 Scheme or any other share option scheme
(if any) adopted by the Company in any 12-month period must not
exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in issue unless otherwise
approved by the shareholders of the Company.

Where any grant of share options to a substantial shareholder or
an INED of the Company, or any of their respective associates
(as defined in the Listing Rules), would result in the shares of the
Company issued and to be issued upon exercise of all share
options already granted and to be granted to such person in any
12-month period up to and including the date of the grant:

- representing in aggregate over 0.1% of the shares of the
Company in issue; and

- having an aggregate value, based on the closing price of the
shares of the Company as stated in the daily quotations sheets
issued by the Stock Exchange on the date of grant in excess of
HK$5.0 million,

such grant of share options shall be subject to prior approval of the
shareholders of the Company who are not connected persons of
the Company as defined in the Listing Rules.

E)  PERIOD WITHIN WHICH THE SHARES MUST BE TAKEN
UP UNDER A SHARE OPTION
A share option must be exercised within 10 years from the date

on which it is granted or such shorter period as the Board (or the
relevant committee thereof) may specify at the time of grant.

F)  MINIMUM PERIOD AND REQUIREMENT, IF ANY, FOR
WHICH A SHARE OPTION MUST BE HELD BEFORE IT CAN BE
EXERCISED

At the time of the grant of a share option, the Board (or the relevant

committee thereof) must specify the minimum period(s), if any, for
which a share option must be held before it can be exercised.

5[] B HKR International Limited Annual Report 2017/2018 W
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G) PERIOD OPEN FOR ACCEPTANCE OF A SHARE OPTION
AND AMOUNT PAYABLE UPON ACCEPTANCE

The offer of the grant of a share option (of which the date of grant
must be a business day of the Stock Exchange) must be accepted
within 14 days from the date on which the offer letter is delivered
to the participant and a consideration of HK$1 must be paid upon
acceptance.

H)  BASIS OF DETERMINING THE SUBSCRIPTION PRICE OF
A SHARE OPTION

The subscription price of a share option shall be no less than the
higher of:

- the closing price of the shares of the Company as stated in
the daily quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange on the
date of grant;

- the average closing price of the shares of the Company as
stated in the daily quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange
for the five business days of the Stock Exchange immediately
preceding the date of grant; and

- the nominal value of a share of the Company on the date of
grant.

) REMAINING LIFE

The 2011 Scheme has a life of 10 years and will expire on 7
September 2021 unless otherwise terminated in accordance with
the terms of the 2011 Scheme.

DETAILS OF SHARE OPTIONS GRANTED AND AVAILABLE
FOR GRANT

The total number of shares in the Company available for grant
of share options under the 2011 Scheme is 135,027,436 shares
which represents 10% of the issued share capital of the Company
at the date of adoption of the 2011 Scheme (i.e. 8 September
2011). During the year, the Company granted share options
to certain Directors and employees to subscribe for a total of
25,800,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.25 each in the share capital
of the Company under the 2011 Scheme which represents
approximately 1.9% of the issued share capital of the Company at
the date of grant. No option was exercised, cancelled or lapsed in
accordance with the terms of the 2011 Scheme during the financial
year ended 31 March 2018. Details of the movement of share
options during the year and the outstanding share options as at 31
March 2018 under the 2011 Scheme were as follows:
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Number of share option
it d

Exercise price Balance as at Granted Exercised Balance as at
Name or Category of per share (HK$) 1 April 2017 during during 31 March 2018
participant SRITHEE 20175 the year’ the year 120185
SRERERER Date of grant® Rt A fgses (&7 4A1R &8 ERRAT ERfTE 3A31ALE
Payson CHA 28 February 2017 201727288 4.23 2,900,000 - - 2,900,000
thg 12 March 2018 2018E3A128 4.81 - 5,000,000 - 5,000,000
Victor CHA 28 February 2017 2017F2A288 423 2,900,000 - - 2,900,000
BN 12 March 2018 2018437128 481 - 5,000,000 - 5,000,000
Abraham CHUNG 28 February 2017 2017%52R288 423 2,000,000 - - 2,000,000
E0H 12 March 2018 2018E3A128 4.81 - 3,000,000 - 3,000,000
TANG Moon Weh 28 February 2017 2017F2A288 423 2,000,000 - - 2,000,000
iz 12March 2018 2018%3A12H 481 - 3,000,000 - 3,000,000
Madgline WONG 28 February 2017 201727288 423 1,100,000 - - 1,100,000
I5%e 12 March 2018 2018F3A128 4.81 - 1,600,000 - 1,600,000
Johnson CHA 28 February 2017 2017F2A288 423 1,100,000 - - 1,100,000
EiiE 12 March 2018 201837128 481 - 1,600,000 - 1,600,000
Ronald ARCULLI 28 February 2017 201752288 423 1,100,000 - - 1,100,000
B 12 March 2018 2018E3A128 4.81 - 1,600,000 - 1,600,000
Henry CHENG® 28 February 2017 2017F2A288 4.23 1,100,000 - - 1,100,000
Bxige 12 March 2018 201837128 481 - 800,000 - 800,000
Loretta HO 28 February 2017 2017%52R288 4.23 700,000 - - 700,000
& 12March 2018 201837128 481 - 800,000 - 800,000
Linus CHEUNG 28 February 2017 2017F2A288 423 500,000 - - 500,000
FKF 12 March 2018 201837128 481 - 800,000 - 800,000
TANG Kwai Chang 28 February 2017 201727288 423 200,000 - - 200,000
HEY 12March 2018 201837128 481 - 800,000 - 800,000
Employees of the Group 12 March 2018 2018F3A128 481 - 1,800,000 - 1,800,000
£EV[ES
Total #03t 15,600,000 25,800,000 - 41,400,000

5 Share options granted on 28 February 2017 are exercisable during the period from 28 February 2017 to 27 February 2027.
Share options granted on 12 March 2018 are exercisable during the period from 12 March 2018 to 11 March 2028.

5 A201792 A28 BRI 2 i) Bi#E r] 742017452 B 28 H 22027472 B 27 A Hif R AT{E ©
#2018F3 A 128 % 2 D EARE ] 74201843 5 12 A 2202843 A 11 A HARI A T{E ©

6 The share options vested immediately on the respective dates of grant.
6 RDEENFRL B EBIREE

7 The closing price of the shares of the Company immediately before the date of grant was HK$4.78 per share.

T BERHASNARRRDKTESSRATSET o

8 Dr CHENG resigned as an INED of the Company with effect from 31 March 2018.
8 EETE2018F3A31 AR AR RIEE 2 B -
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Details of the value of the share options granted during the financial
year ended 31 March 2018 and the accounting policy adopted
for the share options are set out in note 31 to the consolidated
financial statements on pages 174 to 176.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed under the heading “Share Option Scheme”
above, at no time during the year was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or
debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESSES

During the year, the interests of the Directors in businesses. which
competed or were likely to compete, either directly or indirectly,
with the businesses of the Group as required to be disclosed
pursuant to the Listing Rules are as follows:

a)  The Honourable Ronald ARCULLI is an INED of Hang Lung
Properties Limited (“HLP”) and also NED of Sino Hotels (Holdings)
Limited (“SHH”), Sino Land Company Limited (“SLC”) and Tsim Sha
Tsui Properties Limited (“TSTP”). The businesses of HLP, SHH, SLC
and TSTP involve at least some of property investment, property
development, property management and hotel management and
ownership. HLP, SHH, SLC and TSTP are all listed on the Stock
Exchange.

b)  Mr Payson CHA is the chairman and NED of Hanison
Construction Holdings Limited (“Hanison”) and INED of New World
Development Company Limited (“NWD”), Eagle Asset Management
(CP) Limited (“EAM”) being manager of Champion Real Estate
Investment Trust (“CREIT”) and Hongkong International Theme
Parks Limited (“HITP”) being owner and operator of Hong Kong
Disneyland hotels. The businesses of Hanison, NWD, EAM, CREIT
and HITP involve at least some of property investment, property
development, property management, healthcare services and hotel
management and ownership. Hanison, NWD and CREIT are all
listed on the Stock Exchange.

c)  Mr Victor CHA is an INED of SOHO China Limited (“SOHO”)
and alternate INED of NWD. The businesses of SOHO and NWD
involve at least some of property investment, property development,
property management and hotel management and ownership.
SOHO and NWD are both listed on the Stock Exchange.
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d)  Mr Johnson CHA is a NED of Hanison whose group’s
businesses consist of property investment, property development,
property management and healthcare services. Hanison is listed on
the Stock Exchange.

Save for the INEDs of the Company and save as disclosed above,
none of the Directors was interested in any business apart from
the Group’s businesses which competed or was likely to compete,
either directly or indirectly, with the businesses of the Group during
the year.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 March 2018, the following persons (other than the
Directors) had interests or short positions in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register
required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO:

LONG POSITIONS IN THE COMPANY’S SHARES OF HK$0.25
EACH

Name of shareholder

Capacity
RERER &4

CCM Trust (Cayman) Limited

Corporate trustee
EEZTEA
LBJ Regents Limited Corporate trustee
EEZFEA

d BRRLEREBZIFLE  ZAFZ
SEXGEEMERE  MEER WEEE
FARGEBRFS © SLBSTABER AT £

BRARRBER EXHBEEIN EFRFAH
ENEERBUIMEMRRBXBER B
BRRARTERT ZEBTREES

FERR
H2018FBAS1 A - IRIEAD ARSI
sselE ARE 2 BRMARE - THIAL
(EEBINRAR A 2RI BRI P
B2 HAWT

KA A B & R (E0.2578 TTAX {0
Sy

Approximate

percentage

of issued

Number of share capital
ordinary share HEBITRAZ
EEKREE BHBEDL
560,153,905¢ 41.48
91,894,801 6.81

9 The shares were held by CCM Trust as corporate trustee of certain but not identical discretionary trusts of which members of the classes of

discretionary beneficiaries comprise the late Dr CHA Chi Ming’s issue.

° ZEBRBMTIHCCM TrustVEBIRFEAS N AE T IRBNBERERE - MRSHEXEACRCHREERBLZ&HE -

0 The shares were held by LBJ Regents as corporate trustee of certain but not identical discretionary trusts of which members of the classes

of discretionary beneficiaries comprise the late Dr CHA Chi Ming’s issue.

0 ZEBREMTIALB) RegentsVEBEZFTEA SN RETIRBBETHE  MRSHEZAABEREREBERBL 2K -

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2018, no other interests
or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the
Company were recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under Section 336 of the SFO.

DEBT SECURITIES

As at 31 March 2018, principal amount of unlisted notes issued by
the Company which due 2020 amounted to HK$798.0 million in
aggregate. Details of the debt securities are disclosed in note 27 to
the consolidated financial statements on page 172.
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CONNECTED AND RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS

The related party transactions as disclosed under paragraphs
(@) and (b) of note 43 to the consolidated financial statements
on pages 207 and 208 constitute connected transactions or
continuing connected transactions under the Listing Rules but
are exempt from shareholders’ approval and disclosure and other
requirements under Chapter 14A.76 of the Listing Rules. Save
for the aforesaid transactions, the other related party transactions
shown in note 43 to the consolidated financial statements do
not constitute connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions under the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ AND CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS,
TRANSACTIONS AND ARRANGEMENTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed above, no contract, transactions or
arrangements of significance to which the Company or any of
its subsidiaries was a party and in which a director or controlling
shareholder had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS
UNDER RULE 13.21 OF CHAPTER 13 OF THE
LISTING RULES

In accordance with the continuing obligation set out in rule 13.21
of Chapter 13 of the Listing Rules, the following are the details of a
loan agreement with covenants relating to specific performance on
the controlling shareholders of the Company as at 31 March 2018
pursuant to rule 13.18 thereof. There exists no reporting obligation
by the Company under rules 13.17 and 13.19 of the Listing Rules
accordingly.

The Company is the borrower of a loan agreement entered into on
8 September 2015 (the “Loan Agreement”) for a transferable term
loan and revolving credit facility in an aggregate principal amount of
HK$8.0 billion with final maturity date falling five years from the date
of the Loan Agreement.

Under the Loan Agreement, among others, an event of default
is triggered when the existing individual shareholder of the
Company (together with his associate(s)) holding the single largest
shareholding (direct or indirect) in the Company on the date of
the Loan Agreement ceases to be the Company’s single largest
beneficial shareholder at any time during the term of the Loan
Agreement.
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As at the date of the Loan Agreement, Mr Payson CHA, the
Chairman of the Company, who personally and together with
his associates including a controlled corporation and certain
companies acting as corporate trustees of certain discretionary
family trusts of which Mr Payson CHA (to his knowledge) was
among the discretionary beneficiaries, held direct and indirect
an aggregate interest in 638,875,574 shares in the Company,
representing approximately 47.31% of the issued share capital
of the Company and he was treated the then individual beneficial
shareholder holding the single largest shareholding in the Company
under the Loan Agreement.

As at the date of this report, the shareholding in the Company held
by Mr Payson CHA remains unchanged and he is still treated as the
single largest individual beneficial shareholder of the Company.

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS
UNDER RULES 13.20 AND 13.22 OF CHAPTER
13 OF THE LISTING RULES

In accordance with the requirements of rules 13.20 and 13.22 of
Chapter 13 of the Listing Rules, the following were the details of
financial assistances and guarantees given for facilities granted to
affiliated companies of the Company as at 31 March 2018 pursuant
to rules 13.13 and 13.16 thereof.

a) As at 26 May 2017, the Group committed to advance to
Gainwick Limited (“Gainwick”), a joint venture formed by the
Group (owned as to 40%) and Hysan Development Company
Limited (owned as to 60%) for the purpose of a residential property
development in Tai Po, New Territories, in a form of shareholders’
loan in a total amount of HK$1,437.2 million which is unsecured
and has no fixed terms of repayment (the “Shareholders’ Loan”,
comprising loan for land premium amounted to HK$1,357.2 million
which is non-interest bearing and loan for working capital up to
HK$80.0 million with an interest rate of 2% per annum over 1-month
Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate (“HIBOR”)). The Company
also provides guarantee up to HK$2,000.0 million in favour of
a syndicate of financial institutions in Hong Kong as a security
for Gainwick’s obligation under the banking facilities granted to
Gainwick by the financial institutions (the “Guarantee”). The interest
rate for the banking facilities is a sum of HIBOR of 0.65% per
annum and relevant interest period (one, two to three months or
subject to availability six months at the selection of Gainwick and
mutually agreed with the financial institutions). Further details of
the repayment terms and security of the Guarantee are disclosed
in the announcement of the Company dated 26 May 2017. As at
31 March 2018, the outstanding Shareholders’ Loan amounted
to HK$747.9 million and out of which HK$55.2 million was loan
for working capital. The guarantee given in respect of the banking
facilities granted to Gainwick amounted to HK$666.1 million.
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b) As at 31 March 2018, the Group advanced to Dazhongli
Properties Limited and its subsidiaries (“Dazhongli group”) an
aggregate amount of HK$4,921.4 million. Dazhongli group is
engaged in the development of certain properties in Jing’an District,
Shanghai, the People’s Republic of China in which the Group has
50% interest. The advances were provided by the Group in the
form of equity and loans in proportion to its shareholding interest
therein, for the purpose of financing the development expenditure
of Dazhongli group. Out of the advances, HK$286.6 million are
unsecured, interest bearing at 1.71% per annum and repayable in
December 2019. The remaining of the advances are unsecured,
non-interest bearing and have no fixed terms of repayment.

c) As at 31 March 2018, the Group also advanced to and
guarantees given for other several affiliated companies an
aggregate amount of HK$1,891.0 million. The Group has interests
ranging from 31% to 50% in these affiliated companies.

As at 31 March 2018, the aggregate amount of advances provided
to and guarantees given for these affiliated companies by the
Group amounted to HK$8,226.4 million representing 23.8% of the
consolidated total assets of the Group of HK$34,636.7 million as at
31 March 2018.

The financial information of these affiliated companies as at 31
March 2018 are set out in notes 17 and 18 to the consolidated
financial statements on pages 155 to 161.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

No contract for the management and administration of the whole or
any substantial part of any business of the Company was entered
into or existed during the year.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The aggregate turnover attributable to the Group’s five largest
customers was less than 30% of the total value of the Group’s
turnover.

The aggregate purchases attributable to the Group’s five largest
suppliers were less than 30% of the total value of the Group’s
purchases.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
ESEHRE

None of the Directors, any of their associates, or shareholders of
the Company (which to the knowledge of the Directors, own more
than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any interest in
the Group’s five largest customers and suppliers.

DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable and other donations
amounting to approximately HK$1.0 million (2017: approximately
HK$1.0 million).

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles
although there is no restriction against such rights under the laws
of the Cayman Islands.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

According to information available to the Company, the percentage
of the Company’s shares which are in the hands of the public
exceeds 25% of the Company’s total number of issued shares.

REVIEW OF THE ANNUAL REPORT BY AUDIT
COMMITTEE

The Group’s annual report for the year ended 31 March 2018 has
been reviewed by the Audit Committee of the Company established
in compliance with rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules and the relevant
provisions of the CG Code.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

A resolution will be proposed at the 2018 AGM to re-appoint
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, being eligible and offering themselves
for re-appointment as the Independent Auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board
REEEE

CHA Mou Sing Payson
Chairman

ERE

FrE

Hong Kong, 20 June 2018
2018F6 A20 AN &EE
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

J/J-_\\ :A\Aiﬁi

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES AND
FUNCTIONS

The Company is committed to good corporate governance which it
believes to be core to the success of its business and operations.

The corporate governance functions are undertaken by the Board
of Directors (the “Board”) as prescribed by code provision D.3.1
of the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as set out in
Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
(the “Listing Rules”) which are included in the Board’s terms of
reference.

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Company fully complied
with the code provisions of the CG Code save for a deviation of E.1.2
(Chairman of the Board’s attendance of the annual general meeting
(“AGM”)). Details and reasons for the deviation are set out below in
the paragraph headed “Attendances of General Meetings, Board
and Board Committee Meetings”.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

BOARD COMPOSITION

Mr Henry FAN was appointed and Dr Henry CHENG resigned as an
Independent Non-executive Director (“INED”) of the Company with
effect from 1 November 2017 and 31 March 2018 respectively.
The Board currently comprises eleven Directors of which four are
Executive Directors (“EDs”) and seven are Non-executive Directors
(“NEDs”) of whom four and hence, with more than one-third of
the Board, are Independent Non-executive Directors (“INEDs”).
Each Director possesses skills and experience appropriate to the
business of the Group and the particulars of Directors are duly set
out in the section headed “Biographical Details of Directors” on
pages 36 to 40 of 2017/2018 annual report.

Save for Mr Payson CHA, Mr Victor CHA, Mr Johnson CHA and Ms
Madeline WONG who are siblings, all other Directors have no family
relationship with each other.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TREBHRE

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES

The Board has the responsibility for strategic leadership, control
and providing guidance to Management to ensure the Company’s
objectives are achieved.

Upon appointment to the Board, every Director is given
comprehensive and formal induction documentation of the business
operation of the Group and information for his/her understanding
and awareness of his/her responsibilities as Director under the
Listing Rules, legal and other regulatory and statutory requirements
together, if required, with brief meetings with senior executives and
department heads of the Group.

Each Director ensures that he/she can give sufficient time and
attention to the affairs of the Group and has informed the Company
in a timely manner for any change, the number and nature of offices
held in public companies or organisations and other significant
commitments. Details of Directors’ other appointments are shown
in the section headed “Biographical Details of Directors” on pages
36 to 40 of 2017/2018 annual report.

A list of the Directors, their roles and functions and, in particular
whether they are INEDs, is maintained on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange and is updated as and when
required.

BOARD PROCEDURES

The dates of the regular Board meetings in a particular year are
scheduled ahead to give all Directors adequate time to plan
their schedules to attend meetings. There are four regular Board
meetings in a year which are held on a quarterly basis and ad hoc
Board meetings will also be held as and when required. For the
year ended 31 March 2018, four Board meetings were held and
attendance records of the Board meetings held during the year are
set out in the below paragraph headed “Attendances of General
Meetings, Board and Board Committee Meetings”.

At least 14 days formal notice would be given before each regular
Board meeting and reasonable advance notice would also be given
for other Board meetings. All Directors are consulted as to whether
they wish to include any matters in the agenda and the Chairman
of the Board would review and approve the agenda before the
agenda for each Board meeting is issued.
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Agendas and accompanying Board papers are sent to all Directors/
Board Committees members at least three days (or such other
period as agreed) before meetings. With the assistance of the EDs,
the Chairman of the Board seeks to ensure that all Directors are
properly briefed on issues arising at Board meetings and receive
adequate documents and information about the Group in a timely
manner. The Chairman of the Board, or in his absence, the Deputy
Chairman and Managing Director, leads meetings and ensures that
all key and appropriate issues are discussed by the Directors in a
timely manner. Directors are provided sufficient time for discussion
on issues in the meetings and encouraged to express their
viewpoints on the Board’s affairs and voice their concerns, if any.
The Chairman directs discussions in the meetings in reaching a
consensus and consolidates discussions with conclusions. Minutes
of Board/Board Committees meetings record matters considered
and decisions reached. Draft and final signed minutes of Board/
Board Committees meetings are sent to all Directors for their
comment and records respectively.

The Chairman of the Board meets at least once annually with the
NEDs (including INEDs) without the presence of EDs. In March
2018, the Chairman of the Board met the NEDs without the
presence of EDs and four out of seven NEDs (including INEDs)
attended the meeting.

Where necessary, INEDs meet privately to discuss matters which
are their specific responsibilities. During the year, no such meeting
was required to be held.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The CG Code requires that the roles of chairman and chief
executive officer should be separated and not be performed by the
same individual to ensure there is a clear division of responsibilities
between the Board and the executives who run the business.

The roles of Chairman, Deputy Chairman and Managing Director of
the Company have been taken up by two different individuals who
are brothers. Mr Payson CHA is the Chairman and Mr Victor CHA
is the Deputy Chairman and Managing Director of the Company.
Their respective roles and responsibilities are clearly separated and
set out in writing.
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TREBHRE

The Chairman is mainly responsible for setting the Company’s
direction in consultation with the Board and for the macro oversight
of the management. With the support of the Company Secretary,
the Chairman also takes primary responsibility to establish good
corporate governance practices and procedures of the Company.
The Managing Director, with the support of EDs (who are in charge
of different businesses and functional divisions in accordance
with their respective areas of expertise), is responsible for
strategic planning of different business functions and day-to-day
management and operation of the Group.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (INCLUDING INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS)

NEDs of the Company are appointed with a specific term of three
years which is subject to retirement by rotation and re-election of
Directors under the Articles of Association of the Company (the
“Articles”). Details of the mechanism are set out in below paragraph
headed “Appointments, Re-election and Removal”.

The roles and responsibilities of NEDs are clearly set out in writing.
NEDs are not involved in the day-to-day management of the
Group’s businesses but participate in Board/Board Committee
meetings where they bring independent views and judgment on
issues of strategy, policy, performance, accountability, resources,
key appointments and standards of conduct.

INEDs, in particular, will oversee the management and the Company
implementing the rules, procedures and plans established and help
ensure that the interests of the shareholders as a whole are taken
into account by the Board. Each of the INEDs has provided to the
Company an annual confirmation of independence pursuant to
rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and the Company considers that all
of them continue to be independent with reference to the terms of
guidelines set out in the relevant requirements of the Listing Rules.

APPOINTMENTS, RE-ELECTION AND REMOVAL

The Articles stipulate that at each AGM, one-third of the Directors
for the time being, or if their number is not three or a multiple of
three, then the number nearest to but not less than one-third, shall
retire from office by rotation provided that every Director shall be
subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years and
any Director appointed by the Directors shall hold office only until
the next following general meeting of the Company (in the case of
filing a casual vacancy) or until the next following AGM (in the case
of a new appointment to the Board) and be eligible to offer for re-
election. Re-election of each eligible Director is subject to approval
by shareholders at the general meeting of the Company.
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DIRECTORS’ CONTINUING PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Directors are provided with continuous updates on latest changes
or material development in laws, the Listing Rules, corporate
governance practices relating to the duties and responsibilities
of Directors and are encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development seminars to update their knowledge for
discharging directors’ responsibilities.

During the year, existing Directors have participated in the following
various continuous professional development activities in order to
develop and refresh their skills and knowledge. Each Director has
provided his/her training record to the Company with particulars set
out as follows:

Name of Director EENF
Payson CHA EE
Victor CHA B
Abraham CHUNG $E /0 H
TANG Moon Wah Bl mEE
Ronald ARCULLI BEE
Johnson CHA EE
Madeline WONG TEXERE
Linus CHEUNG oK AKX
Henry FAN SEAGHER
Loretta HO (EREI=]
TANG Kwai Chang HEY
Notes:

A. Reading/viewing materials/articles/videos in relation to director responsibilities
and updates on the statutory and regulatory requirements.

B. Attending seminars/workshops/forums/conferences/meetings in relation to
director development, updated statutory and regulatory requirements and
developments on financial, commercial, legal, risk management, corporate
governance and economic environments.

C. Speaking topic(s) in relation to leadership development as well as finance,
economic and/or commercial environments.

BRI RBERER
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Malg  NEHRERTESBRE ZANH -

RER AEEFE2E MRS ERETEEH
REBUNERYFHEZERAE - SEFC
AAR BRI 2 F IR - FIREIIIT

Type of training(s)
FEIIER

A

A

A B
A C
A B, C
A B

A B
A B

A, B
fieE

A HE/BEEHERET ULEIIREEERZ
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DELEGATION BY THE BOARD

The Board has delegated and set out levels of authority and
expressed terms of reference for the Board Committees
and reserves the rights to oversee and decide all other non-
delegated matters, in particular, major acquisitions or disposals
and connected transactions. The Board also delegates certain
management and administration functions to the management
as it considers appropriate from time to time, with directions as
to the powers of management, including circumstances where
management shall report to and obtain prior approval from the
Board.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has set up the Remuneration Committee, Audit
Committee, Nomination Committee and other committees, namely
Finance Committee, Investment/Divestment Committee, Buy-back,
Reissue and Transfer of Shares Committee and Inside Information
Committee. The Board will from time to time review the terms of
references or relevant policies of such committees. The Board may
also on a need basis set up special committees with clear terms
of reference to deal with specific transactions or matters of the
Company.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee of the Company was established
on 26 March 2012 and its terms of reference follow closely the
requirements of the CG Code. The full text of the terms of reference
of the Nomination Committee is available on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange.

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee require, inter
alia, that the Nomination Committee comprises no less than three
members with a majority of INEDs and the Chairman must be either
an INED or the Chairman of the Board. The Nomination Committee
currently comprises three members, namely Mr Payson CHA, the
Chairman of the Board, Ms Loretta HO and Mr TANG Kwai Chang.
The Nomination Committee is chaired by Mr Payson CHA.
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The principal role and function of the Nomination Committee is to
identify and recommend to the Board suitably qualified persons
to become members of the Board, to review the structure, size
and composition of the Board on a regular basis, to maintain a
policy concerning diversity of Board members (the “Board Diversity
Policy”) and consider the measurable objectives, if required,
for recommending to the Board for adoption. The Nomination
Committee is entitled to seek independent professional advice,
at the Company’s expenses, if it considers necessary in order to
perform its duties.

The Board Diversity Policy was adopted by the Board in March
20183. Pursuant to the policy, the Nomination Committee will
review, discuss and agree annually all measurable objectives in
accordance with the structure, size and composition of the Board
for achieving diversity on the Board and recommend them, if any, to
the Board for adoption. The Nomination Committee also monitors
the progress and its policy implementation for annual reporting in
the corporate governance report. Selection of candidates will be
based on a range of diversity perspectives, including but not limited
to gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of services.
The ultimate decision will be based on merit and contribution that
the selected candidates will bring to the Board. The policy will be
reviewed by the Nomination Committee on an annual basis and
when required to ensure effectiveness.

During the year, the Nomination Committee has (a) recommended
for the approval of the Board the appointment of Mr Henry FAN
as the INED of the Company with effect from 1 November 2017;
(b) reviewed the retirement of Directors and recommended to
the Board the re-election of Mr Payson CHA, Mr Victor CHA,
Ms Madeline WONG, Mr Henry FAN and Ms Loretta HO at the
forthcoming AGM of the Company to be held in August 2018; (c)
reviewed, assessed and considered all INEDs are independent;
(d) reviewed, assessed and considered the adequacy and
effectiveness of the Board Diversity Policy; and (e) reviewed the
structure, size and composition of the Board during the year of
2017/2018 and considered that the current diversity of the Board
appropriate and it was not necessary to set out any measurable
objectives for enhancing the diversity of the Board for the year
of 2018/2019 in a meeting held in March 2018 or by written
resolution. The records of the meeting held and written resolution of
the Nomination Committee during the year are set out in the below
paragraph headed “Attendances of General Meetings, Board and
Board Committee Meetings”.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee of the Company was established
on 2 December 2004 and its terms of reference follow closely the
requirements of the CG Code. The full text of the terms of reference
of the Remuneration Committee is available on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange.

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee require,
inter alia, that the Remuneration Committee comprises no less than
three members with a majority of INEDs. During the year, Mr Henry
FAN was appointed as a member of Remuneration Committee
with effect from 1 November 2017. In addition, Dr Henry CHENG
resigned as the member and chairman and Mr Linus CHEUNG,
in place of Dr CHENG, was appointed as the chairman of the
Remuneration Committee with effect from 31 March 2018. The
Remuneration Committee currently comprises three members,
namely Mr Linus CHEUNG, Mr Henry FAN and Mr Victor CHA with
Mr Linus CHEUNG acting as the Chairman of the Remuneration
Committee.

The principal role and function of the Remuneration Committee is
to exercise the powers of the Board to review and determine the
remuneration packages of individual EDs and senior management,
if any, including salaries, bonuses, benefits in kind, share options
and other plans. Such factors as remuneration paid for comparable
positions, time commitment and responsibilities of the EDs and
senior management as well as the Company’s remuneration policy
will be considered. The Remuneration Committee is entitled to seek
independent professional advice, at the Company’s expenses, if it
considers necessary in order to perform its duties.

During the year, no Remuneration Committee meeting was held
but the Remuneration Committee reviewed and approved (a)
2017/2018 salary increment proposal for the EDs and senior
management; (b) 2017/2018 bonus proposal for the EDs; (c)
proposal on the grant of share options to certain Directors and
employees; (d) special bonus proposal to an ED; (e) proposal on
the renewal of employment contracts with the EDs; and (f) proposal
on the amendment to the bonus scheme for the EDs by means of
circulation or written resolution. The records of circulated electronic
communication and written resolution of the Remuneration
Committee during the year are duly set out in the below paragraph
headed “Attendances of General Meetings, Board and Board
Committee Meetings”.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee of the Company was established on 17 July
1998 and its terms of reference follow closely the requirements of
the CG Code. The full text of the terms of reference of the Audit
Committee is available on the websites of the Company and the
Stock Exchange.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee require, inter
alia, that the Audit Committee comprises not less than three
members who are NEDs and a majority of them must be INEDs
of the Company. The Audit Committee currently comprises three
members, namely Mr TANG Kwai Chang, Mr Linus CHEUNG
and Ms Loretta HO with Mr TANG Kwai Chang leading the Audit
Committee as the Chairman.

The principal role and function of the Audit Committee is to assist
the Board in meeting its responsibilities for ensuring an effective
system of risk management and internal controls and compliance,
as well as meeting its external financial reporting objectives. The
Audit Committee is entitled to seek independent professional
advice, at the Company’s expenses, if it considers necessary in
order to perform its duties.

During the year, four Audit Committee meetings were held, of
which three meetings were held with senior management and the
Independent Auditor and has (a) reviewed the client service plan for
audit of the financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
March 2017; (b) considered the Independent Auditor’s projected
audit and non-audit services fees; (c) reviewed the independence
of the Independent Auditor, the nature and scope of the audit
and recommended the re-appointment of Messrs Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu (“Deloitte”) as the Independent Auditor of the Company;
and (d) reviewed and discussed the interim and final financial
statements and the Independent Auditor’s review and report for
the Board’s approval. During one of these three meetings, the
Audit Committee also met with Deloitte as consultant to review and
receive the report of risk management review for the year ended
31 March 2017; whereas, during the other two meetings, the Audit
Committee also met with the head of the Internal Audit Department
of the Company to receive their work plan and, review and discuss
on their findings and rectification actions taken by the business
units. Another Audit Committee meeting was held in October
2017 to assess risk management and internal control systems for
the investment properties in Hong Kong after a site visit to CDW
Building. More details about the risk management and internal
control systems are set out in below paragraph headed “Risk
Management and Internal Controls”.
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The attendance records of the Audit Committee meetings held REAMBRITERZEe@Z 2 HELEIHD
during the year are set out in the below paragraph headed TY[ERERASE ZEehEESLESSR

“Attendances of General Mestings, Board and Board Committee ZHER|—E -
Meetings”.

ATTENDANCES OF GENERAL MEETINGS, Hﬁij{é EEehEESE
BOARD AND BOARD COMMITTEE MEETINGS ZEE€E€Zc2HEER

I

Directors’ attendances in the general meetings and the meetings RERFABITREAGRESE FZEE
of the Board, Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and @ HWEEeNEEEEC@H V EEHE

Nomination Committee held during the year are set out below: REHHMT -
Remuneration
Committee Nomination AGM
Audit circulated Committee held on
Board Committee communications/ meeting/ 4 September
meeting meeting resolutions resolutions 2017
yMzES R20176
EEER/ REZER 9H4H
Name of Director Ezge RER EEMER EBTRREE
Payson CHA® Eke 4/4 - - 2/2 X
Victor CHA? EiWak 4/4 - 6/6 - N
Abraham CHUNG ELH 4/4 - - - y
TANG Moon Wah HRE 4/4 - - - y
Ronald ARCULLI EEE 4/4 - - - X
Johnson CHA ERE 4/4 - - - X
Madeline WONG TEXE 4/4 - - - X
Henry CHENG* Hxame 0/4 - 6/6 - X
Linus CHEUNG* R G 4/4 4/4 6/6 - X
Henry FAN# BB 2/2 - 4/4 - -
Loretta HO* fAmg*e 4/4 4/4 - 2/2 X
TANG Kwai Chang*® HEze 4/4 4/4 - 2/2 y
Notes: Pﬁ?
* members of Audit Committee BEZZBENKE
#  members of Remuneration Committee t EMEEERE
@ members of Nomination Committee e REZBEKE
- not applicable - TEA
"~ resigned as Director and Remuneration Committee Member with effect from fOBTESERFNEZEEEKE - B2018F3A31HE
31 March 2018 £
+  appointed as Director and Remuneration Committee Member with effect - REXAEERFNEEEKE - B2017411A1H
from 1 November 2017 HRAE RN
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Due to other business engagements, Mr Payson CHA, the
Chairman of the Board and Chairman of the Nomination Committee
of the Company could not attend the AGM of the Company held on
4 September 2017. However, Mr Victor CHA, the Deputy Chairman
of the Board and Managing Director of the Company, who is also
a member of the Remuneration Committee took the chair of that
meeting and Mr TANG Kwai Chang, who is the Chairman of the
Audit Committee and a member of the Nomination Committee,
all other EDs of the Company and the representative of the
Company’s Independent Auditor, Deloitte, were present to answer
questions from shareholders.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors acknowledge they are responsible for the preparation
of accounts for financial year which is required to give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and the Group, its
results and the cash flows for the Group. For preparation of the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2018, the Directors selected appropriate accounting policies and
applied them consistently, made judgments and estimations that
are prudent and reasonable, and prepared accounts on a going
concern basis. The statement of the Company’s Independent
Auditor about their reporting responsibilities on the consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 March
2018 is contained in the Independent Auditor’s report of 2017/2018
annual report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROLS

The Board has an overall responsibility for evaluating and providing
direction to the Company on the nature and extent of the risks that
shall be taken in achieving the Company’s strategic objectives, and
ensuring that the Company establishes and maintains appropriate
and effective systems of risk management and internal controls,
which include financial, operational and compliance controls.

The main features of the risk management and internal control
systems are to provide a clear governance structure, policies
and procedures, as well as a reporting mechanism to facilitate
the Group to manage its risks across business operations. Key
policies and procedures have been developed, implemented and
communicated to staff as well as regularly reviewed to ensure
there are continued relevant and effective risk management and
internal control systems and for continuous improvement which
includes (a) setting core values and beliefs which form the basis
of the Group’s overall risk philosophy and appetite; (b) having an
organisational structure in place with defined lines of responsibility
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and delegation of authority which hold individuals accountable
for their risk management and internal control responsibilities
and provides necessary information flow for risk analysis and
management decision-making on an on-going basis; (c) imposing
budgetary and management accounting controls to efficiently
allocate resources and providing timely financial and operational
performance indicators to manage business activities and risks; (d)
ensuring effective financial reporting control to record complete,
accurate and timely accounting and management information; and
(e) having structural internal audit function to perform independent
appraisal of business units and corporate functions on an on-going
and cyclical basis.

The Board has delegated to the Audit Committee responsibility
for providing oversight in respect of risk management and
internal control activities. The Audit Committee discusses the risk
management and internal control systems with management for
the year under review to ensure that management has performed
its duty to have an effective risk management and internal control
systems. Discussion covers areas, inter alia, the adequacy of
resources, staff qualifications and experience, training programs
and budget (collectively “Resources”) of the Company’s accounting
and financial reporting functions.

To assist the Board and the Audit Committee in overseeing the risk
management and internal control systems of the Group, the Internal
Audit Department is responsible for performing independent
reviews on the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group’s systems
of internal controls and risk management and reports audit findings
to the Audit Committee and the Board regularly. An Internal Audit
Charter, which was adopted in 2008, formulates the processes and
procedures of internal audit function for strengthening of the control
framework. The Audit Committee also separately consults with the
Internal Audit Department in respect of the adequacy of Resources
of the Company’s internal audit function.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The successful management of risks is essential for the long-
term growth and sustainability of the Group’s business. To ensure
risk management of the Group is integrated into the day-to-day
operation of the Group and is continuously carried out at all levels
of the Group, the Company has established a risk management
framework and governance structure which consists of the
Board, the Audit Committee, risk management steering group
and business lines to facilitate a systematic approach to the
management of risks within the Group.
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The following diagram illustrates the Group’s risk governance and
management framework:

Board of Directors £

evaluate and provide direction to the Company on the nature and extent of the
risks that shall be taken in achieving the Company’s strategic objectives
RETURRAIREME B AR 7 B R 2 18 R TR A R A AR AR
7 MR R

ensure that the Company establishes and maintains appropriate and effective
systems of risk management and internal controls

BRARRZY AR EE R AR EE RN RS

Delegation ‘f Reporting
i L ER

Audit Committee BEXZES

oversee management in design, implementation and monitoring of the risk
management and internal control systems
EERRERERANDEERR R TREREETE

review, at least annually, the risk management and internal control systems of
the Group with the support of Internal Audit Department to ascertain whether
management has fulfilled its responsibilities in establishing and maintaining
effective systems
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review risk assessment results, including changes in the nature and extent of
significant risks since the last review and the Group’s ability to respond to
changes in its business and the external environment
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consider major investigation findings on risk management and internal control
matters and management’s response to these findings
HEHEREERANDEREE T EREERUREEEHZSER 2O
identify any significant risks that should be drawn to the attention of the Board
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review and consider enhancement to the risk management and internal control
systems as proposed by the risk management steering group and/or the Internal
Audit Department
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Risk Management Steering Group FEf& & E &/ ME

establish and maintain risk management infrastructure and recommend change
as appropriate
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conduct, at least annually, risk identification and assessment on group-wide
basis
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escalate risk and control issues on a timely manner as appropriate
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ensure business line conduct risk assessment and control self-assessment within
their business units/departments on a regular basis
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Business Lines B &E8F9

manage risks within their business units/departments
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identify and evaluate risks potentially impact the achievement of business
objectives within their business units/departments
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mitigate and monitor risks identified on day-to-day operation
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conduct risk assessment and control self-assessment on regular basis
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Internal Audit Department

AR

e perform audits to evaluate the proper
functioning of the risk management and
internal control systems
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e report findings to the Audit Committee
and provide the Committee with an
independent and objective assurance
on the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control
systems of the Group
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e propose any enhancement to the risk
management and internal control
systems for consideration by the Audit
Committee and the risk management
steering group
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The Company has also formulated and adopted Risk Management
Policy in providing directions in identifying, evaluating and managing
significant risks. At least on an annual basis, the risk management
steering group, which comprises of the heads of all business units
and corporate functions, collects and collates risk information from
business lines, identifies risks, on a group-wide basis, that would
adversely affect the achievement of the Group’s objectives, and
assesses and prioritises the identified risks according to a set of
standard criteria. Risk mitigation plans are established and risk
owners are also assigned to closely monitor those risks which are
considered to be significant on an on-going basis and implement
the mitigation plans. The identified risks which are considered to
be significant to the Group, including their changes in nature and
extent since the last review, and the relevant mitigation plans for the
year under review have been presented and accepted by the Audit
Committee and the Board in April and June 2018 respectively.

The Internal Audit Department acts as an independent assessor as
another line of defence on risk management system. It conducts
independent review and assesses, at least on an annual basis,
if all the key risks are properly identified and evaluated under the
Risk Management Policy and whether the existing risk controls are
operating effectively. During the year under review, a control self-
assessment process was established which requires risk owners to
assess, through questionnaire, the adequacy and effectiveness of
risk controls over the areas under their responsibilities. The process
and its results were reviewed by the Internal Audit Department and
form part of the Audit Committee’s annual assessment of control
effectiveness.

INTERNAL CONTROLS

In addition to the independent assessment on the risk management
system, during the year, the Internal Audit Department also carried
out reviews on the (a) administration aspect of tunnel in Discovery
Bay; (b) operation of bus and garage in Discovery Bay; (c) operation
of ferry and shipyard; (d) operation of HKRI Taikoo Hui; (e) voting
mechanism of AGM; (f) Discovery Bay Service Management
Limited; (g) operation of Discovery Bay Golf Club; and (h) other
business units with audit follow-up. With the implementation of
follow-up measures after the reviews, the effectiveness in areas
with irregularities has gradually improved. Findings on the reviews,
control weaknesses, if any, and the relevant recommendations
have been presented to and accepted by the Audit Committee and
the Board in November 2017 and June 2018.
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Apart from the above, during the year, the Audit Committee made
a site visit to CDW Building and met with the person-in-charge of
the investment properties in Hong Kong. After the site visit, the
Audit Committee reviewed the internal risk and control systems in
respect of investment properties in Hong Kong and considered that
which are generally in place in the area being reviewed.

The risk management and internal control systems are designed to
manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance against material misstatement or loss. The Board,
through the works of the Audit Committee, risk management
steering group and the Internal Audit Department, has conducted
an annual review on the effectiveness of the risk management
and internal control systems of the Group for the year ended 31
March 2018 and considers that the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems for the year were effective and adequate.
Management of the Group has also provided confirmation to
the Audit Committee and the Board on the effectiveness of such
systems for the year under review.

HANDLING OF INSIDE INFORMATION

The Group complies with requirements of Securities and Futures
Ordinance (“SFQO”) and the Listing Rules. A Disclosure of Inside
Information Policy has established by the Company to set out the
procedures on reporting the likely inside information to ensure that
potential price sensitive or inside information of the Group can be
promptly identified, assessed and escalated for disseminating to
the public. The Company discloses inside information to the public
as soon as reasonably practicable unless the information falls within
any of the “Safe Harbours” as provided in the SFO. Before the
information is fully disclosed to the public, the Company ensures
the information is kept strictly confidential. If the Company believes
that the necessary degree of confidentiality cannot be maintained
or that confidentiality may have been breached, the Company will
immediately disclose the information to the public. The Company is
committed to ensure that information contained in announcements
are not false or misleading as to any material fact, or false or
misleading through the omission of any material fact in view of
presenting information in a clear and balanced way, which requires
equal disclosure of both positive and negative facts.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

AN AL gt
TRER/RE

COMPLIANCE WITH THE ENVIRONMENTAL,
SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE (“ESG”)
REPORTING GUIDE

The Group has complied with the ESG Reporting Guide of the
Stock Exchange and has released its standalone ESG Report for
the year ended 31 March 2018 online at the same time with the
publication of 2017/2018 annual report, which captures in detail
the Group’s ESG-related initiatives, policies and performance in
Hong Kong and mainland China throughout the financial year.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

Directors’ remuneration (save for directors’ fees which are subject
to shareholders’ approval at general meeting) is determined
with reference to prevailing market situation, their respective
duties and responsibilities and the Group’s remuneration policy.
Under the terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee,
the Remuneration Committee should make recommendation to
the Board on the remuneration policy and it has the delegated
responsibilities to determine the remuneration of the EDs. The
EDs are entitled to salary, contribution to retirement schemes
and discretionary bonus which are subject to the ED’s and the
Company’s performance.

In general, the Managing Director, who is a member of the
Remuneration Committee, is involved in recommending proposals
on the remuneration of other EDs for due consideration and
approval by the Remuneration Committee. However, he abstains
from voting when his remuneration is considered by the
Remuneration Committee. His remuneration is recommended
by the Chairman of the Board and reviewed and determined by
the Remuneration Committee. No Director will participate in the
discussion and review of his/her own remuneration.

The NEDs are entitled to a director’s fee for their service which
was determined by the Board, pursuant to the authority given
by the shareholders at general meeting from time to time, with
reference to their duties and responsibilities in the Company and
the prevailing market situation. Currently, a sum of HK$100,000 per
annum being the basic fee for acting as a NED, additional fee of
HK$100,000 per annum will be paid to each member, who is NED,
of each of Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee
of the Company and additional fee of HK$150,000 per annum will
be paid to each member, who is NED, of Audit Committee. An
additional fee of HK$50,000 will also be paid to each INED having
a seat in any independent board committee which is required to be
set up from time to time under the Listing Rules.
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Remuneration details of the Directors (on individual name basis)
for the year ended 31 March 2018 are disclosed in note 12 to
the consolidated financial statements on pages 145 to 147 of
2017/2018 annual report.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

Deloitte is the Independent Auditor of the Company. The
remuneration for audit services provided by Deloitte to the Group
for the year under review amounted to approximately HK$8.9
million. In addition to the audit fee, the Company had appointed
Deloitte for the interim results review and the other non-audit
services including tax compliance and advisory, remuneration of
which amounted to approximately HK$2.9 million for the year under
review.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers set out in Appendix 10
to the Listing Rules (including amendments as effected from time to
time) as its own code of conduct to regulate securities transactions
by Directors (the “Model Code”). All Directors have confirmed,
following specific enquiry by the Company, that they have complied
with the required standard set out in the Model Code during the
year from 1 April 2017 to 31 March 2018 (both days inclusive).
The Model Code has been extended to and has become equally
applicable to dealings in the securities of the Company by members
of senior management and relevant employees.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary of the Company is Ms LEUNG Wai
Fan, who is an employee of the Company and has day-to-day
knowledge of the Company’s affair. During the year ended 31
March 2018, she has taken no less than 15 hours of relevant
professional training in accordance with rule 3.29 of the Listing
Rules and will continue to comply with such requirement for the
year ending 31 March 2019 and report regularly.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TREBHRE

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Pursuant to article 72 of the Articles, extraordinary general
meetings shall also be convened by the written requisition of any
two shareholders of the Company representing not less than 5% of
the issued share capital of the Company at the time of requisition.
Shareholders wishing to do so must serve a duly executed written
requisition to the Company’s principal place of business in Hong
Kong at 23/F, China Merchants Tower, Shun Tak Centre, 168-200
Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong (the “Principal Place of
Business”) specifying the object(s) of the meeting. If the Directors
do not within 21 days from the date of deposit of the requisition
proceed to duly convene the meeting, such shareholders may
convene the general meeting in the same manner, as nearly
as possible, as that in which meeting(s) may be convened by
the Directors, and all reasonable expenses incurred by those
shareholders as a result of the failure of the Directors to convene
the general meeting shall be reimbursed to them by the Company.

In addition, any shareholder acting on his own or together with
other persons whose shareholding interests in the Company in
aggregate representing not less than 5% of the issued share
capital of the Company (other than the person to be proposed)
may nominate a person to stand for election as Director at the
general meeting in accordance with article 120 of the Articles.
Any shareholder wishing to do so must serve (a) a written notice
of intention to propose such person for election as Director; (b) a
notice executed by that person of his willingness to be elected;
and (c) the information of that person as required to be disclosed
under rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules to the Principal Place of
Business between the period commencing from the date after the
dispatch of the notice of the general meeting appointed for such
election and ending on (and excluding) the date that is seven days
prior to the date of such general meeting. The Company shall issue
an announcement and/or a supplementary circular, if applicable,
to inform the shareholders the biographical details of the candidate
proposed if a valid notice to propose a person to stand for election
as Director is received.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS AND
COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company is committed to promoting and maintaining effective
communication with the shareholders and other stakeholders.
A shareholders communication policy has been adopted by the
Board which set out the Company’s policy for maintaining an on-
going dialogue with shareholders and investment community.
The policy is subject to regular review by the Board to ensure its
effectiveness. The Company’s AGM, for which at least 20 clear
business days’ prior notice is given, is one of the principal channels
of communication with its shareholders. Shareholders have the
opportunity to communicate face to face with the Directors if
they have any questions on the Company’s performance and
operations. In addition to the AGM, extensive information on
the Company’s activities in respect of its financial, business and
operations is provided by way of announcements, annual and
interim reports and circulars which are sent to shareholders and/
or are available on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange.

Shareholders may also send their enquiries and concerns to the
Board by addressing them to the Company Secretary of the
Company whose contact details are available on the Company’s
website at www.hkri.com. The Company Secretary is responsible
for forwarding communications relating to matters within the
Board’s direct responsibilities to the Board and communications
relating to ordinary business matters, such as suggestions, inquiries
and customers complaints, to the relevant executive officers of the
Company under the direction of the Chairman of the Board and/or
Managing Director of the Company.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

The Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company is
available on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.
No change was made to the Company’s constitutional documents
during the year ended 31 March 2018.
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
MBEE

For the year ended 31 March

B ZE3A31HLFE

Results ]

Turnover L

Profit attributable to owners KRBVEE A B G T
of the Company

Basic earnings per share (HK cents) EFRREARZEF GBI

2,222.3 2,234.1
2,305.1 823.9
170.7 61.0

At 31 March A3H31H

Financial Position B AR R
Total assets BEHLE 34,636.7 29,630.6
Total liabilities BEEE 12,479.3 10,877.0
Equity attributable to owners RATEE AEL R

of the Company 19,717.8 16,385.8
Net asset value per share (HK$) BREEFEET) 14.6 12.1
NET ASSET VALUE PER SHARE (HK$)
BREEFE(GERT)
16
14.6
14
12.4

12 12.0 11.9 12.1
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FINANCIAL REVIEW
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SHAREHOLDERS’ FUNDS

As at 31 March 2018, the shareholders’ funds of the Group
increased by HK$3,332.0 million to HK$19,717.8 million (2017:
HK$16,385.8 million). The gross profit margin for the Group for the
year was 32.7% (2017: 30.8%).

MAJOR INVESTING ACTIVITIES

In November 2017, the Group completed the disposal of the
22nd Floor of China Merchants Tower, Shun Tak Centre, 168-
200 Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong at the consideration of
HK$750.0 million.

During the year, the Group acquired a 15-storey residential
building located in Minato-ku, Tokyo, Japan at the consideration of
HK$243.4 million.

In first quarter of 2018, the Group successfully bid and completed
the acquisition of the land use rights of two plots of land in Jiaxing
City, Zhejiang Province at total consideration of HK$653.7 million.
In addition, the Group acquired three plots of land located at
Ramintra Road, Bangkok, Thailand at a total cost of HK$323.5
million.

During the year, a joint venture repaid a net shareholders’ loan of
HK$610.1 million to the Group by utilising the proceeds drawn from
banking facilities granted to that joint venture. Further, the Group
received a net shareholders’ loan repayment of HK$175.0 million
from another joint venture.

MAJOR OPERATING ACTIVITIES

During the year, sales proceeds from disposal of certain
development properties in Hong Kong, Thailand, mainland China
and Japan amounted to HK$567.4 million, HK$90.7 million,
HK$1,038.8 million and HK$382.3 million respectively.

FINANCIAL LIQUIDITY

As at 31 March 2018, the Group had total cash and securities
investment of HK$3,149.2 million (2017: HK$2,792.1 million) whilst
total bank borrowings, bonds and other loans were HK$7,585.7
million (2017: HK$7,793.9 million).
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FINANCIAL REVIEW
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GEARING

The Group’s gearing ratio was 23.7% (2017: 32.0%) as calculated
by the Group’s consolidated net borrowings to the shareholders’
funds as at 31 March 2018.

BANKING FACILITIES AND OTHER LOANS

The Group closely monitors its liquidity requirements and arranges
financing for its development projects and operations as and when
appropriate.

As at 31 March 2018, the unutilised credit facilities were
approximately HK$6,813.2 million (2017: HK$6,417.3 million).

The maturity profile of bank borrowings, bonds and other loans
were 13.9% (2017: 20.1%) falling within one year, 13.2% (2017:
3.5%) falling between one and two years and 72.9% (2017: 76.4%)
falling between two and five years as at 31 March 2018.

TREASURY POLICY

The Group has centralised treasury functions and adopted a
conservative approach for its treasury management. With majority
of assets and liabilities denominated in HK dollars and US dollars,
the Group has limited exposure to foreign currencies. To manage
foreign currency exposure in certain overseas investments, the
Group maintains naturally hedged positions and will make any
swap or future arrangements as appropriate. The Group’s banking
facilities are principally on floating rate basis and interest rate
swaps will be employed to manage interest rate risk for its short to
medium-term borrowings when appropriate and necessary.

It is the policy of the Group to restrict the use of financial derivatives
for speculative purpose.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 March 2018, certain bank loans of the Group were
secured by certain investment properties, properties held for sale
and properties held for/under development for sale at the total
carrying value of HK$1,669.5 million (2017: HK$997.2 million).

In addition, the loans to a joint venture by the Group amounting to
approximately HK$747.1 million (2017: nil) were subordinated to
banks to secure a banking facility granted to the joint venture for
financing the development in Tai Po.
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CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group had contingent liabilities relating to a corporate
guarantee on the Group’s proportionate share to the extent of
HK$135.9 million (2017: HK$123.2 million) as at 31 March 2018
given to a bank in respect of a banking facility granted to an
investee company. The Group’s interest in such investee company is
classified under other non-current assets.

Two subsidiaries of the Company provided guarantees amounting
to HK$211.7 million (2017: HK$44.5 million) as at 31 March 2018 in
respect of mortgage facilities granted to purchasers of the Group’s
properties.

In May 2017, the Company provided a corporate guarantee of
proportionate share to banks for securing a banking facility granted
to a joint venture to finance the development in Tai Po. The bank
loan balance of proportionate share of 40% is HK$666.1 million
(2017: nil) as at 31 March 2018.

Save as disclosed above, the Group did not have other significant
contingent liabilities as at 31 March 2018.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

B 2B R S

Deloitte

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF HKR INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
BEREXEEREEERARA
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
HKR International Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as “the Group”) set out on pages 90 to 210,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as
at 31 March 2018, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss,
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
March 2018, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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Key audit matter

BAREETER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

RMWETNAEERREESNER

Valuation of investment properties

REWFHI1EGE

We identified the valuation of investment properties as
a key audit matter due to the significant unobservable
inputs and significant judgements associated with
determining the fair value.

As disclosed in Note 15 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group’s investment property portfolio
comprised industrial, commercial and residential
properties located in Hong Kong, mainland China,
Thailand and Japan and was stated at fair value of
HK$11,255.2 million, accounting for approximately 32%
of the Group’s total assets as at 31 March 2018 with a
change in fair value of HK$1,889.3 million recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year
then ended.

All of the Group’s investment properties were measured
using the fair value model based on valuation conducted
by independent firms of professional valuers (the
“Valuers”). As disclosed in Note 4 to the consolidated
financial statements, in determining the fair values of the
Group’s investment properties, the Valuers applied a
market value basis which involves, inter-alia, significant
unobservable inputs and significant judgements,
representing appropriate capitalisation rates, market
rent, estimated construction costs to be incurred,
developers’ profit of investment properties under
construction and adjusted market prices that have taken
into account property-specific adjustments including
location and timing of referenced transactions.
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Our procedures in relation to the valuation of investment
properties included:

e Evaluating the competence, capabilities and objectivity
of the Valuers;

e Obtaining an understanding from the Valuers about the
valuation techniques, the performance of the property
markets, significant assumptions adopted, critical
judgmental areas, key inputs and data used in the
valuations;

e Evaluating the reasonableness of significant
unobservable inputs used in the valuation by comparing
the market rent estimated by the Valuers against available
market data or rental of existing lease, benchmarking
capitalisation rate against available market data and
comparing adjusted market prices with comparable
market transactions for comparable properties in similar
location and condition on a sample basis;

e Assessing the integrity of information provided by the
management to the Valuers by comparing details of
rentals on a sample basis to the respective underlying
existing lease agreements; and

e Assessing the appropriateness of estimated
construction costs to be incurred by comparing capital
expenditure incurred to date against the construction
plan and evaluating whether the developers’ profit used
in the construction profit is comparable to the market.
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Key audit matter

BAREETER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EMNFA N AREERRETER

Interest in a significant joint venture

R-—NEASE LA #EzR

We identified the Group’s interest in a significant joint
venture, Dazhongli Properties Limited (“Dazhongli”),
as a key audit matter due to the significance of this
investment to the Group’s consolidated financial
statements as a whole and the involvement of
judgements in the valuation of investment properties
of Dazhongli, which could in turn significantly affect the
amount of interests in joint ventures accounted for using
the equity method as at 31 March 2018 and share of
results of joint ventures for the year ended.

Dazhongli and its wholly owned subsidiaries were
engaged in the development of investment properties
and hotel properties in the Jing’an District of Shanghai
in mainland China. As disclosed in Note 18 to the
consolidated financial statements, the carrying amount
of interest in Dazhongli accounted for using the equity
method and investment properties of Dazhongli as
at 31 March 2018, change in fair value of investment
properties of Dazhongli and the Group’s share of result
from Dazhongli for the year ended 31 March 2018 were
HK$2,278.8 million, HK$22,886.0 million, HK$28.2
million and HK$7.6 million, respectively.
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Our procedures in relation to the interest in Dazhongli
included:

e Obtaining an understanding of Dazhongli by reading its
financial information and discussing with its management
and component audit team about the financial
performance, significant events occurred during the year
and the key areas of judgement made in preparing its
financial information to identify and assess the risks that
are significant to the audit of the Group’s consolidated
financial statements;

e Fvaluating the sufficiency and appropriateness of
audit evidence obtained from work performed by the
component audit team of Dazhongli by reviewing its audit
documentation and discussing the results of its work with
the component audit team; and
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Key audit matter
BRETEE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

RMWETNAEERREESNER

All of the Dazhongli’s investment properties were
measured using the fair value model based on valuation
conducted by an independent firm of professional
valuers (the “Valuer”). As disclosed in Note 4 to the
consolidated financial statements, in determining the
fair values of the Dazhongli’s investment properties,
the Valuer applied a market value basis which involves,
inter-alia, significant unobservable inputs and significant
judgements, representing appropriate rentals,
capitalisation rates, estimated construction costs to be
incurred and developers’ profit of Dazhongli’s investment
properties under construction.
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¢ \Working with the component audit team of Dazhongli to
carry out the following procedures:

(1) Evaluating the competence, capabilities and objectivity
of the Valuer;

(2) Obtaining an understanding from the Valuer about
the valuation techniques, the performance of the
property markets, significant assumptions adopted,
critical judgmental areas, key inputs and data used in the
valuations;

(38) Evaluating the reasonableness of significant
unobservable inputs used in the valuation by comparing
capitalisation rate and market rent against available
market data on a sample basis;

(4) Assessing the integrity of information provided by the
management to the Valuer by comparing details of rentals
on a sample basis to the respective underlying existing
lease agreements; and

(5) Assessing the appropriateness of estimated
construction costs to be incurred by comparing capital
expenditure incurred to date against the construction
plan and evaluating whether the developers’ profit used
in the construction profit is comparable to the market.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.
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e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concemn. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of
the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent
auditor’s report is Wong Lam Ching.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
EE e BAERLEHET
Certified Public Accountants

ES ]

Hong Kong, 20 June 2018
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

PROFIT OR LOSS
FEBAER

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #Z=2018F3A31H It FE

Turnover ] 5 2,222.3 22341
Cost of sales SHEE AN (1,495.6) (1,546.4)
Gross profit EF 726.7 687.7
Other income E A 6 135.8 124.2
Administrative expenses TR (547.6) (430.1)
Other gains and losses H b lras M B8 7 593.3 10.5
Change in fair value KEMENFEE

of investment properties

Realised gains on disposals HeErrr 28Rk 15 14.5 -

Unrealised gains FREBUS 15 1,874.8 623.3
Finance costs Bi5E A 8 (208.3) (191.7)
Share of results of associates PaR Sk AN (0.2) 0.2)
Share of results of joint ventures DIhEEREIEE 48.4 260.6
Profit before taxation R FR AR A 9 2,637.4 1,084.3
Taxation IR 10 (200.5) (95.8)
Profit for the year REEm 7 2,436.9 988.5
Profit for the year attributable to: TAEMEAFEEZ GH

Owners of the Company RABHERA 11 2,305.1 823.9

Non-controlling interests JEVER RE 131.8 164.6

2,436.9 988.5

Earnings per share BRAER 14

Basic (HK cents) EARGEA) 170.7 61.0

Diluted (HK cents) 55 (BL) 170.5 61.0
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS .-

AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
SEBEsNRAMEERER

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #Z£2018F3A31H It FE

Profit for the year AN & A 2,436.9 988.5
Other comprehensive income (expense): Hit 2wz (FX)
Items that may be subsequently A e E 7 EE 8w
reclassified to profit or loss ZHE
Exchange differences arising from BINGERBIEEZ
foreign joint ventures EHER 615.2 (379.9)
Exchange differences arising from BMEHMIBINEBES
translation of other foreign operations 2 [EH ZRE 501.5 (126.0)
Release of exchange reserve upon SN BB SE o
deregistration of a foreign subsidiary R BREE K 0.2 -
Available-for-sale financial assets: AEHESRMEE :
Fair value changes during the year FRAFEE 24.4 0.4
Reclassified to profit or loss HERNENIES
upon disposal B (13.2) 2.2)
Deferred tax arising from NEEEBEEC
fair value changes EETIR 0.3 0.9)
1,128.4 (508.0)
Item that will not be reclassified T EEF 7 EEEm s B
to profit or loss
Revaluation gain on property, Y BELSEERSE
plant and equipment upon B R 2 Efh s
transfer to investment properties 4.6 -
Other comprehensive income (expense) AN E E 2 EUES (FIsZ)
for the year (net of tax) (NkrEiEE) 1,133.0 (508.0)
Total comprehensive income for the year 784 & 2 E UK & 4258 3,569.9 480.5
Total comprehensive income THEE S EEE
attributable to:
Owners of the Company ViN/NEIE =N 3,435.8 315.9
Non-controlling interests AR 134.1 164.6
3,569.9 480.5
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

FINANCIAL POSITION
e B IR R 3R

At 31 March 2018 1201843 A31H

Non-current assets EmENEE
Investment properties LB 15 11,255.2 8,688.3
Property, plant and equipment W - BB REE 16 2,313.2 2,181.9
Interests in associates /NI Fa 17 - -
Interests in joint ventures BENF 2R 18 9,072.2 8,364.2
Held-to-maturity investments BFEINERE 19 96.9 107.6
Available-for-sale financial assets A ESRIEE 19 110.6 87.9
Other assets HEmEE 20 150.6 144.3
Deferred tax assets RERIEE E 26 42.0 3.1
23,040.7 19,577.3
Current assets mENE E
Inventories FE 21 44.6 47.6
Properties held for sale BIEREYE 2,308.5 1,161.9
Properties held for/under TN EFER/
development for sale BEPYE 22 5,546.4 4,755.5
Trade receivables FEWE FERRK 23 29.8 32.7
Deposits, prepayments and e BRFUEK
other receivables H U R IR 24(a) 514.0 609.1
Amounts due from associates JE W B 8 N B R 17, 24(b) 8.1 8.1
Loan to a joint venture BEXTaE A 24(c) - 665.3
Amounts due from joint ventures FEW & & N EIFRIE 24(c) 191.2 166.6
Taxation recoverable AR BB 11.7 9.9
Held-to-maturity investments HFEINERE 19 33.3 48.3
Bank balances and cash RITHEHR MRS 24(a), 33 2,908.4 2,548.3
11,596.0 10,053.3
Current liabilities mEEE
Trade payables, provision and ERNBZER - #iE
accrued charges K e E 25 1,040.0 879.6
Deposits received and other Blire &
financial liabilities HihemaE 29 2,219.4 800.8
Taxation payable FERI B8 97.8 75.9
Bank and other loans due within —FRNREZRITR
one year HEMmER 27 1,058.0 1,564.4
Other liabilities due within one year ~ —FRF|H 2
Hih B & 28 41.6 0.7
4,456.8 3,321.4
Net current assets MENEEFE 7,139.2 6,731.9
Total assets less current liabilities BWEERRSEME 30,179.9 26,309.2
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Non-current liabilities

Bank and other loans due after

FRBEE
—FRABZRITR

one year HEMER 27 6,527.7 6,229.5
Other liabilities due after —FEEIB
one year Hib B & 28 1,126.6 1,051.6
Deferred tax liabilities EXEMIEAE 26 368.2 274.5
8,022.5 7,555.6
22,157.4 18,753.6
Capital and reserves BRI
Share capital A&z 30 337.5 337.5
Reserves 5 19,380.3 16,048.3
Equity attributable to KAFEAA
owners of the Company JEE = 19,717.8 16,385.8
Non-controlling interests EEl 2,439.6 2,367.8
22,157.4 18,753.6
The consolidated financial statements on pages 90 to 210 were FEEF210BFTEH BHEmREE R

approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 20
June 2018 and are signed on its behalf by:

CHA Mou Zing Victor
Deputy Chairman & Managing Director

B
FIEEREF

E

2018F6H20 A EE S ERTETE - I

mTIIESHEEE

CHUNG Sam Tin Abraham
Executive Director

E0H
HITEE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

CASH FLOWS
GRERSRBE

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #Z=2018F3A31H It FE

OPERATING ACTIVITIES EEEK
Profit for the year AF [ i F) 2,436.9 988.5
Adjusting items, net FARIEE T (a) (1,961.4) (512.9)
Operating cash flows before KRt ANBEES#

movements in working capital B2 EEBRERE 475.5 475.6
Decrease in inventories FERD 3.0 2.3
Decrease in properties held for sale BIEREYER L 275.2 521.3
Increase in properties held for/under HEHEFER/

development for sale R YR (1,887.8) (1,856.3)
Decrease in trade receivables EUNE SRR 21 6.5
Decrease in deposits, prepayments and &% - BT EIE R

other receivables H b e Uk R I8 R 95.1 20.6
Increase in mortgage instalment FEW IR AE 7 HR X

receivables 0 (6.2) 2.8
Increase in amounts due from joint FEW & &N B FI8

ventures 0 (20.5) 21.1)
Increase (decrease) in trade payables, JEE SRR

provision and accrued charges BERETER

R A) 160.4 (31.9)

Increase in deposits received and Bl e RHME R

other financial liabilities BEEn 1,418.6 568.9
Cash generated from (used in) operations &5 (FrA )RS 515.4 (316.9)
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid EREBFEN (30.2) (57.8)
Overseas tax paid EREINIR (111.1) (14.8)
NET CASH GENERATED FROM EEXBHME(A)

(USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES HEFE 374.1 (389.5)
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INVESTING ACTIVITIES

REFED

Proceeds from disposal of property, TEYE  WE

plant and equipment KR 2 1S 5RIE 753.7 20.0
Repayment of loan to a joint venture ERTEERT

ZE 915.3 -

Redemption of held-to-maturity EOFE BT E

investments 86.0 52.0
Interest received BUF B 15.0 58.5
Proceeds from disposal of investment HEREYE

properties 2 T3 RIR 15 47.4 -
Loans to joint ventures BERTEERR (183.9) (1,849.0)
Proceeds from disposal of available-for-  H& r[{£ HE&E & &l

sale financial assets BEZFEHIE 26.9 14.1
Additions of investment properties RNEREYE (864.7) (406.5)
Additions of property, plant RNEVE  BE

and equipment B (214.7) (240.0)
Additions of held-to-maturity investments R E#HZE JHH& & (51.1) (8.9
Net cash outflow on acquisition of a WEEMT B A

subsidiary ZHEER ﬁ FEE 32 (29.2) -
Additions of available-for-sale financial ~ RE R[4t E 4 g

assets BE (23.9) (2.5)
Repayment of loans by associates & NBEEBER - 10.7
Additions of unlisted membership NEBEIFLTEEBE

debentures - 5.0
NET CASH GENERATED FROM REEZB B (FTA)

(USED IN) INVESTING ACTIVITIES EHEFEE 476.8 (2,356.0)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

mERERER

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #Z=2018F3A31 B L F/E

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

BEEE

New bank and other loans raised PSR TREMER 744.0 1,236.6
Advance from a non-controlling JEFE A% B R B R

shareholder 200.0 15.0
Repayment of bank and other loans EBRBITREMER (1,071.4) (403.9)
Interest paid BEARFE (208.3) (200.7)
Dividends paid 2R E (135.0) -
Repayment to a non-controlling %?j{%aﬂ A% A% 5=

shareholder (92.5) (25.0)
Dividend paid to a non-controlling ERFEIZE R AR R

shareholder TRAHRR B (60.0) -
Club debentures redeemed ﬁ% O &FTES (3.8) (0.6)
Proceeds from issue of club debentures  ZE1TEFTES

Z g 5IE 0.3 0.4

NET CASH (USED IN) GENERATED  ®& EE (FTE)

FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES BB FE (626.7) 622.2
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN ReRRELEEER

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ZEMORD ) FEE 224.2 (2,123.3)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT H§¥{zHE€RHEE

BEGINNING OF THE YEAR £HEER 2,548.3 4,718.0
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE EREgFH o FE

RATE CHANGES 135.9 (46.4)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FXzHE€RkBE$

END OF THE YEAR Z{E1EH 33 2,908.4 2,548.3
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Note: Bt -
(a) Analysis of adjusting items, net (a) AREB EE >
paii)
Taxation g 10 200.5 95.8
Finance costs %8R 8 208.3 191.7
Depreciation of property, VI - RS AR
plant and equipment ZIE 9 161.0 148.4
Reversal of impairment loss on BOFERHEE
held-to-maturity investments EEE 7 (7.3) -
Share of results of associates DIEEE R RIEE 17 0.2 0.2
Expenses recognised in respect of AR S E A
equity-settled share-based payments f&An B &
R 31 28.9 13.6
Release of prepaid lease payments FENHEENRED 9 - 0.1
Net allowance for doubtful debts RIREE TR 7 0.7 0.5
Net gains from financial assets TRVEE WS FE (13.2) @.2)
Gain on disposal of property, LEWE - BE
plant and equipment Byl 7 (546.7) (18.6)
Share of results of joint ventures DMEEERREE 18 (48.4) (260.6)
Realised gains on disposal of HEREMER
investment properties 2B E R (14.5) -
Interest income FLEMA 6 (56.1) (68.5)
Unrealised gains on change in BEMENTEE
fair value of investment properties 2 AREIHWES (1,874.8) (623.3)
(1,961.4) (512.9)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B HRRM

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #{£2018F3A31HILFE

1. GENERAL

HKR International Limited (the “Company”) is incorporated in the
Cayman lIslands as an exempted company with limited liability and
its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”). The addresses of the registered office and
principal place of business of the Company are disclosed in the
Corporate Information section of this annual report.

The Company is an investment holding company. The Company
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) are
principally engaged in the development, management and provision
of essential and recreational services for residential housing and
leisure projects in Discovery Bay, Lantau Island, other property
development, property investment, hotel operations and provision
of healthcare services. The Group’s associates and joint ventures
are principally engaged in property development and property
investment.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is the functional currency of the Company.

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSs THAT ARE MANDATORILY
EFFECTIVE FOR THE CURRENT YEAR

The Group has applied the following amendments to HKFRSs
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”) for the first time in the current year:

Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative

Amendments to HKAS 12 Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets
for Unrealised Losses

As part of the Annual Improvements
to HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle

Amendments to HKFRS 12

Except as described below, the application of the amendments
to HKFRSs in the current year has had no material impact on the
Group’s financial performance and positions for the current and
prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated
financial statements.
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AMENDMENTS TO HKAS 7 “DISCLOSURE INITIATIVE”

The Group has applied these amendments for the first time in
the current year. The amendments require an entity to provide
disclosures that enable users of financial statements to evaluate
changes in liabilities arising from financing activities, including
both cash and non-cash changes. The amendments also require
disclosures of changes in financial assets if cash flows from those
financial assets were, or future cash flows will be, included in cash
flows from financing activities.

Specifically, the amendments require the following changes in
liabilities arising from financing activities to be disclosed: (i) changes
from financing cash flows; (i) changes arising from obtaining or
losing control of subsidiaries or other businesses; (jii) the effect of
changes in foreign exchange rates; (iv) changes in fair values; and (v)
other changes.

A reconciliation between the opening and closing balances of
liabilities arising from financing activities including these items is
provided in Note 41. Consistent with the transition provisions of the
amendments, the Group has not disclosed comparative information
for the prior year. Apart from the additional disclosure in Note 41,
the application of these amendments has had no impact on the
Group’s consolidated financial statements.

NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs IN ISSUE BUT NOT YET
EFFECTIVE

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments!

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers and the related
Amendments?

HKFRS 16 Leases?

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts*

HK(FRIC) - Int 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and
Advance Consideration’

Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments?

Classification and Measurement
of Share-based Payment

Transactions?

HK(FRIC) - Int 23

Amendments to HKFRS 2
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) o
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) 5 (i) BNS ek Sk =B B A ) ok H th 2E 75
WEAZEE  (iINEEXEBZFE ; (v)
NP EES R EMmER -

Het &8 (pEzSEE ) MELACBEZ
VL B R A o 2 WER NPT sE 41384 - 23X
FEIAZBERY B SETEFEELF
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E BB R AR E B2 #E] RASERT
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S5 130 IR FIRA A T B AR 1B 14 R 2222 3
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AT A

BRUBMEERE 165 HE?
FEMBRELYNE17TR REREK

B (BB BRERE IMNEXHK
ZE®)-REFE22HR BB
55 (BEBRMBHRERE EHERZ
ZB8g) - EFE23H NHETE 142
BB HRE %R LARRAD A B
FE25R(EFTAN) TRzR5Z
SrENETE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e SRR M

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #Z=2018F3A31 B I F/E

Amendments to HKFRS 4

Amendments to HKFRS 9

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 19

Amendments to HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 40

Amendments to HKFRSs

F S SO

Applying HKFRS 9 “Financial
Instruments” with HKFRS 4
“Insurance Contracts”

Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation?

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture?

Plan Amendment, Curtailment or
Settlement?

Long-term Interests in Associates
and Joint Ventures?

As part of the Annual Improvements
to HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle!

Transfers of Investment Property!

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2015-2017 Cycle?

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be determined
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021

Except for the new and amendments to HKFRSs mentioned below,
the directors of the Company anticipate that the application of all

other new and revised HKFRSs will have no material impact on the

consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable future.

1 []2 B HKR International Limited Annual Report 2017/2018 W

BRU B HmEER

% HEEBUERE
F45(ERIA)

AR FE A5
[RE &% —6t

FERM BB
EERIFEINR
(@I A
FEMEHREER AEAMEZEN
FIH(ERIA) IR FF 2

BRP IS ER
S0/ REE G LR

REHEERZ
NAHBENT]

EVEEACCHIEN) Mz EENEX
JER-E
BEEEEERE19% ETENEET - HER
(BETA) g5 E?
AR EEHERIFE 285 REEE R A
(BETA) BERNRZ
KR #2
BEEEFERFE 285 EBBE B KRS
(BETA) AER|20145FE R
2016F A HA
2 EEE
— &1
BEGEERF405% BRI E Y
(BETAR)
BB RS LR BB BHE
(BETA) AERI2015FE &=
2017F BB
FIE i

201841 A1 B sk 2 % BA 2 FE B A
201991 A1 B8z 55z FEBRAER
REE B Bis 2 B FG2 FEBRAER

202141 A1 B8k 2 1% FA 2 FE B A

N

R Tl R] RAERT BB B E RSN - K
NRESFERT A A EMIE] REERTERE
BT RS BRI A] R RKAS T & B & M 15
REEBAFE -



HKFRS 9 “FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS”

HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for the classification and
measurement of financial assets, financial liabilities, general hedge
accounting and impairment requirements for financial assets.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 which are relevant to the Group are:

o All recognised financial assets that are within the scope of
HKFRS 9 are required to be subsequently measured at amortised
cost or fair value. Specifically, debt investments that are held within
a business model whose objective is to collect the contractual
cash flows, and that have contractual cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal outstanding are
generally measured at amortised cost at the end of subsequent
accounting periods. Debt instruments that are held within a
business model whose objective is achieved both by collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets, and that have
contractual terms that give rise on specified dates to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding, are generally measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”). All other financial assets
are measured at their fair value at subsequent accounting periods.
In addition, under HKFRS 9, entities may make an irrevocable
election to present subsequent changes in the fair value of an equity
investment (that is not held for trading) in other comprehensive
income, with only dividend income generally recognised in profit or
loss.

° In relation to the impairment of financial assets, HKFRS
9 requires an expected credit loss model, as opposed to an
incurred credit loss model under HKAS 39 “Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement”. The expected credit loss model
requires an entity to account for expected credit losses and
changes in those expected credit losses at each reporting date to
reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition. In other words,
it is no longer necessary for a credit event to have occurred before
credit losses are recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e SRR M

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #Z=2018F3A31 B I F/E

Based on the Group’s financial instruments and risk management
policies as at 31 March 2018, the directors of the Company
anticipate the following potential impact on initial application of
HKFRS 9:

Classification and measurement

° Debt instruments classified as held-to-maturity investments
as disclosed in Note 19 and loan receivables carried at amortised
cost as disclosed in Notes 20, 23 and 24: these are held within
a business model whose objective is to collect the contractual
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal outstanding. Accordingly, these financial assets will
continue to be subsequently measured at amortised cost upon the
application of HKFRS 9;

° Equity investments classified as available-for-sale investments
carried at cost less impairment and listed equity securities: these
investments will qualify for designation as measured at FVTOCI
under HKFRS 9, however, the Group plans not to elect the option
for the designation and will measure these investments at fair value
with subsequent fair value gains or losses to be recognised in profit
or loss. The Group’s investment in unlisted private equity funds
classified as available-for-sale financial assets carried at fair value
will also be carried at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”)
Upon initial application of HKFRS 9, investment revaluation reserve
of HK$29.0 million related to these available-for-sale investments
will be transferred to accumulated profits at 1 April 2018;

° Loans to joint ventures as disclosed in Note 18 are currently
measured at amortised cost. The Group will continue to measure
the loans at amortised cost if the contractual terms give rise to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount or otherwise, at FVTPL. Any remeasurement, if
any, would be adjusted to opening accumulated profits as at 1 April
2018;

° All other financial assets and financial liabilities will continue to

be measured on the same bases as are currently measured under
HKAS 39.
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Impairment

In general, the directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of the expected credit loss model of HKFRS 9 will
result in earlier provision of credit losses which are not yet incurred
in relation to the Group’s financial assets measured at amortised
costs and other items that subject to the impairment provisions
upon application of HKFRS 9 by the Group.

The Group expects to apply the simplified approach to recognise
lifetime expected credit losses for its trade receivables as required
or permitted under HKFRS 9. Based on the assessment by the
directors of the Company, if the expected credit loss model were to
be applied by the Group, the accumulated amount of impairment
loss to be recognised by Group as at 1 April 2018 would be slightly
increased as compared to the accumulated amount recognised
under HKAS 39 mainly attributable to expected credit losses
provision on trade receivables, mortgage instalment receivables,
loans to joint ventures, held-to-maturity investments and financial
guarantee contracts. Such further impairment recognised under
expected credit loss model would reduce the opening accumulated
profits and increase the deferred tax assets at 1 April 2018.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e SRR M

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #Z=2018F3A31 B I F/E

HKFRS 15 “REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH
CUSTOMERS”

HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes a single comprehensive
model for entities to use in accounting for revenue arising from
contracts with customers. HKFRS 15 will supersede the current
revenue recognition guidance including HKAS 18 “Revenue”, HKAS
11 “Construction Contracts” and the related interpretations when it
becomes effective.

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should recognise
revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to
customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which
the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or
services. Specifically, the standard introduces a 5-step approach to
revenue recognition:

° Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer
° Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the contract
° Step 3: Determine the transaction price

° Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance
obligations in the contract

° Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a
performance obligation

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when (or as)
a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when ‘control’ of the
goods or services underlying the particular performance obligation
is transferred to the customer. Far more prescriptive guidance
has been added in HKFRS 15 to deal with specific scenarios.
Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by HKFRS 15.

In 2016, the HKICPA issued Clarifications to HKFRS 15 in relation

to the identification of performance obligations, principal versus
agent considerations, as well as licensing application guidance.
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The directors of the Company have assessed the impact on
application of HKFRS 15 and have identified the following areas
that will be affected:

The application of HKFRS 15 requires an entity to adjust the
transaction price if a contract contains a significant financing
component.

The directors of the Company anticipate that a significant financing
component may exist for contracts of pre-sales of properties under
development for sale as the Group may offer customers a discount
compared to the sales price payable, provided the customers
agree to pay the balance of the purchase price early. In assessing
whether such advance payments schemes include a significant
financing component, the Group has considered the difference
between the discounted price offered to those customers and the
cash selling price, and the length of time between the payment
date and the completion date of legal assignment (i.e. the date
when the customers obtain control of the properties) based on the
typical arrangements entered into with the customers.

Where such advance payment schemes include a significant
financing component, the transaction price will need to be adjusted
to separately account for this component. Such adjustment will
result in interest expense being recognised to reflect the effect
of the financing benefit obtained from the customers during the
period between the payment date and the completion date of legal
assignment, with a corresponding increase to revenue on sale of
properties recognised when control of the completed property is
transferred to the customer.

In addition, the application of HKFRS 15 in the future may result in
more disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.

The directors of the Company intend to apply the limited
retrospective method with cumulative effect of initial application
recognised in the opening balance of equity at 1 April 2018.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e SRR M

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #Z=2018F3A31 B I F/E

HKFRS 16 “LEASES”

HKFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the identification
of lease arrangements and accounting treatments for both lessors
and lessees. HKFRS 16 will supersede HKAS 17 “Leases” and the
related interpretations when it becomes effective.

HKFRS 16 distinguishes lease and service contracts on the basis of
whether an identified asset is controlled by a customer. Distinctions
of operating leases and finance leases are removed for lessee
accounting, and is replaced by a model where a right-of-use asset
and a corresponding liability have to be recognised for all leases by
lessees, except for short-term leases and leases of low value assets.

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost and
subsequently measured at cost (subject to certain exceptions) less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, adjusted for
any remeasurement of the lease liability. The lease liability is initially
measured at the present value of the lease payments that are
not paid at that date. Subsequently, the lease liability is adjusted
for interest and lease payments, as well as the impact of lease
modifications, amongst others. For the classification of cash flows,
the Group currently presents upfront prepaid lease payments as
investing cash flows in relation to leasehold lands for owned use
and those classified as investment properties while other operating
lease payments are presented as operating cash flows. Upon
application of HKFRS 16, lease payments in relation to lease liability
will be allocated into a principal and an interest portion which will
be presented as financing cash flows by the Group.

Under HKAS 17, the Group has already recognised prepaid
lease payments for leasehold lands where the Group is a lessee.
The application of HKFRS 16 may result in potential changes in
classification of these assets depending on whether the Group
presents right-of-use assets separately or within the same line item
at which the corresponding underlying assets would be presented
if they were owned.
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In contrast to lessee accounting, HKFRS 16 substantially carries
forward the lessor accounting requirements in HKAS 17, and
continues to require a lessor to classify a lease either as an
operating lease or a finance lease.

Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by HKFRS 16.

As at 31 March 2018, the Group has non-cancellable operating
lease commitments of HK$51.3 million as disclosed in Note 37. A
preliminary assessment indicates that these arrangements will meet
the definition of a lease. Upon application of HKFRS 16, the Group
will recognise a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability in
respect of all these leases unless they qualify for low value or short-
term leases exception.

In addition, the Group currently considers refundable rental deposits
paid of HK$16.3 million and refundable rental deposits received of
HK$106.0 million as rights and obligations under leases to which
HKAS 17 applies. Based on the definition of lease payments under
HKFRS 16, such deposits are not payments relating to the right
to use the underlying assets, accordingly, the deposits would be
recognised initially at fair value with the difference between fair
value and nominal amount considered as additional lease payments
and be included in the carrying amount of right-of-use assets
in the case of deposits paid. Similar adjustments to refundable
rental deposits received would be considered as advance lease
payments.

Furthermore, the application of new requirements may result in
changes in measurement, presentation and disclosure as indicated
above.
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 #Z=2018F3A31 B I F/E

AMENDMENTS TO HKAS 40 “TRANSFERS OF INVESTMENT
PROPERTY”

The amendments clarify that a transfer to, or from, investment
property necessitates an assessment of whether a property meets,
or has ceased to meet, the definition of investment property,
supported by observable evidence that a change in use has
occurred. The amendments further clarify that situations other than
the ones listed in HKAS 40 may evidence a change in use, and
that a change in use is possible for properties under construction.
For example, change in use for transfer from properties under
development for sale in the ordinary course of business to
investment properties could be evidenced by inception of an
operating lease to another party. Currently, the Group accounts for
such transfer only upon commencement of an operating lease.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of
these amendments will result in earlier recognition of such transfers
on the Group’s consolidated financial statements in future periods
should there be a change in use of any of its properties.

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis, except for certain properties and financial
instruments that are measured at fair values at the end of each
reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies set out
below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.
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Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that
price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability,
the Group takes into account the characteristics of the asset or
liability if market participants would take those characteristics into
account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.
Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements is determined on such a basis,
except for share-based payment transactions that are within the
scope of HKFRS 2 “Share-based Payment”, leasing transactions
that are within the scope of HKAS 17, and measurements that
have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as
net realisable value in HKAS 2 “Inventories” or value in use in HKAS
36 “Impairment of Assets”.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset taken into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits
by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to
another market participant that would use the asset in its highest
and best use.

For investment properties which are transferred at fair value and
a valuation technique that unobservable inputs is to be used to
measure fair value in subsequent periods, the valuation technique is
calibrated so that the results of the valuation technique equals the
transaction price.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the
degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are
observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

° Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access
at the measurement date;

° Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included
within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly or indirectly; and

° Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e SRR M

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #Z=2018F3A31 B I F/E

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the Company
and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the Company:

° has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

° has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts
and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more
of the three elements of control listed above.

When the Group has less than a majority of the voting rights of an
investee, it has power over the investee when the voting rights are
sufficient to give it the practical ability to direct the relevant activities
of the investee unilaterally. The Group considers all relevant facts
and circumstances in assessing whether or not the Group’s voting
rights in an investee are sufficient to give it power, including:

° the size of the Group’s holding of voting rights relative to the
size and dispersion of holdings of the other vote holders;

° potential voting rights held by the Group, other vote holders
or other parties;

° rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and
° any additional facts and circumstances that indicate that
the Group has, or does not have, the current ability to direct the

relevant activities at the time that decisions need to be made,
including voting patterns at previous shareholders’ meetings.
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Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a
subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss from the date the Group
gains control until the date when the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income
are attributed to owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed
to owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests
even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements
of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with the
Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and
cash flows relating to transactions between members of the Group
are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing subsidiaries
that do not result in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries
are accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of
the Group’s relevant components of equity and the non-controlling
interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests
in the subsidiaries.

Any difference between the amount by which the non-controlling
interests are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or
received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners of
Company.
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 #Z=2018F3A31 B I F/E

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the assets and
liabilities of that subsidiary and non-controlling interests (if any) are
derecognised. A gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss and
is calculated as the difference between (i) the aggregate of the
fair value of the consideration received and the fair value of any
retained interest and (i) the previous carrying amount of the assets
(including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary attributable
to owners of the Company and any non-controlling interests. All
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income in
relation to that subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group had
directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities of the subsidiary
(i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or transferred to another category
of equity as specified/permitted by applicable HKFRSs). The fair
value of any investment retained in the former subsidiary at the date
when control is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition
for subsequent accounting under HKAS 39, when applicable, the
cost on initial recognition of an investment in an associate or a joint
venture.

ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY NOT CONSTITUTING A
BUSINESS

When the Group acquires a group of assets and liabilities that do
not constitute a business, the Group identifies and recognises the
individual identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed by
allocating the purchase price first to investment properties which
are subsequently measured under fair value model, and financial
assets and financial liabilities at the respective fair values, the
remaining balance of the purchase price is then allocated to the
other individual identifiable assets and liabilities on the basis of their
relative fair values at the date of purchase. Such a transaction does
not give rise to goodwill or bargain purchase gain.

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but is not
control or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have
joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of the
joint arrangement. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing
of control of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions
about the relevant activities require unanimous consent of the
parties sharing control.
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The results and assets and liabilities of associates or joint ventures
are incorporated in these consolidated financial statements using
the equity method of accounting. The financial statements of
associates and joint ventures used for equity accounting purposes
are prepared using uniform accounting policies as those of the
Group for like transactions and events in similar circumstances.
Under the equity method, an investment in an associate or a
joint venture is initially recognised in the consolidated statement
of financial position at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise
the Group’s share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive
income of the associate or joint venture. Changes in net assets of
the associates and joint ventures other than profit or loss and other
comprehensive income are not accounted for unless such changes
resulted in changes in ownership interest held by the Group. When
the Group’s share of losses of an associate or a joint venture
exceeds the Group’s interest in that associate or joint venture
(which includes any long-term interests that, in substance, form
part of the Group’s net investment in the associate or joint venture),
the Group discontinues recognising its share of further losses.
Additional losses are recognised only to the extent that the Group
has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on
behalf of the associate or joint venture.

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to determine whether
it is necessary to recognise any impairment loss with respect to
the Group’s investment in an associate or a joint venture. When
necessary, the entire carrying amount of the investment is tested
for impairment in accordance with HKAS 36 as a single asset
by comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value in use and
fair value less costs of disposal) with its carrying amount. Any
impairment loss recognised forms part of the carrying amount of
the investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss is recognised
in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable
amount of the investment subsequently increases.

When a group entity transacts with an associate or a joint venture
of the Group, profits and losses resulting from the transactions
with the associate or joint venture are recognised in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements only to the extent of interests in
the associate or joint venture that are not related to the Group.
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REVENUE RECOGNITION

Revenue is measured at fair value of the consideration received
or receivable and represents amount receivable for goods sold
and services provided in the normal course of business, net of
discounts and the sales related taxes.

Revenue is recognised when the amount of revenue can be reliably
measured; when it is probable that future economic benefits will
flow to the Group and when specific criteria have been met for
each of the Group’s activities, as described below.

Revenue from sale of properties in the ordinary course of business
is recognised when the respective properties have been completed
and the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant risks and
rewards of ownership of the properties.

When a development property is sold in advance of completion,
profit is only recognised when the respective properties have been
completed and the significant risks and rewards of ownership
of the properties have been transferred to the buyer. Deposits
and instalments received from purchasers prior to this stage are
included in current liabilities.

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised when the goods are
delivered and title has been passed.

Service income is recognised as services are rendered.

Hotel operation income is recognised upon the provision of services
and the utilisation of the hotel facilities by guests.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the
shareholders’ rights to receive payment has been established.

Interest income from a financial asset excluding financial assets
at FVTPL is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal
outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which
is the rate that exactly discount estimated future cash receipts
through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

The Group’s accounting policy for recognition of revenue from

operating leases is described in the accounting policy for leasing
below.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant and equipment including leasehold land (classified
as finance leases) and buildings held for use in the production
or supply of goods or services, or for administrative purposes
(other than construction in progress as described below), are
stated in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost,
less subsequent accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Properties in the course of construction for production, supply or
administrative purposes are carried at cost, less any recognised
impairment loss. Cost includes professional fees and, for qualifying
assets, borrowing costs capitalised in accordance with the Group’s
accounting policy. Such properties are classified to the appropriate
categories of property, plant and equipment when completed and
ready for intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same
basis as other property assets, commences when the assets are
ready for their intended use.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment other than construction in progress
less their residual values over their estimated useful lives, using the
straight-line method. The estimated useful lives, residual values
and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on
a prospective basis.

If an item of property, plant and equipment becomes an investment
property because its use has changed as evidenced by end of
owner-occupation, any difference between the carrying amount
and the fair value of that item at the date of transfer is recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in asset revaluation
reserve. On the subsequent sale or retirement of the asset, the
relevant revaluation reserve will be transferred directly to retained
profits.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise
from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the
disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is
determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e SRR M

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #Z=2018F3A31 B I F/E

IMPAIRMENT ON TANGIBLE ASSETS

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible assets with finite useful lives to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered
an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the relevant asset is estimated in order to determine the
extent of the impairment loss (if any).

When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of
an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. When a
reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be identified,
corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash-generating
units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-
generating units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation
basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sale
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the asset (or a cash-
generating unit) for which the estimates of future cash flows have
not been adjusted. Quoted cash-generating unit is considered as
one unit of account in its entirety. In assessing the fair value less
costs of disposal of a quoted cash-generating unit, the Group
applies valuation techniques taking into consideration of factors
including the quoted price, control premium, discounted cash flow
method in realising the underlying assets.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount
of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable
amount. In allocating the impairment loss, the impairment loss is
allocated to the assets on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying
amount of each asset in the unit. The carrying amount of an asset
is not reduced below the highest of its fair value less costs of
disposal (if measurable), its value in use (if determinable) and zero.
The amount of the impairment loss that would otherwise have been
allocated to the asset is allocated pro rata to the other assets of the
unit. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined as if no impairment loss had
been recognised for the asset (or a cash-generating unit) in prior
years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in
profit or loss.
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or
for capital appreciation (including under properties construction for
such purpose).

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including any
directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are measured at fair value. All of the Group’s
property interests held under operating leases to earn rentals or
for capital appreciation purposes are classified and accounted for
as investment properties and are measured using the fair value
model. Gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value of
investment properties are included in profit or loss for the period in
which they arise.

Construction cost incurred for investment properties under
construction are capitalised as part of the carrying amount of the
investment properties under construction.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when
the investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and
no future economic benefits are expected from its disposals. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset) is included in the profit or loss in the period in
which the item is derecognised.

If there is a transfer from investment property carried at fair value
to owner-occupied property evidenced by the commencement of
owner occupation, the property’s deemed cost for subsequent
accounting shall be its fair value at the date of change in use.

INVENTORIES

Properties held for/under development for sale

Properties held for/under development for sale are classified
under current assets and are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Costs relating to the development of the properties
include land cost, construction cost, borrowing costs and other
direct development expenditure. The properties are transferred to
properties held for sale upon completion of construction.
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 #Z=2018F3A31 B I F/E

Properties held for sale

Properties held for sale are completed properties and are classified
under current assets. They are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Costs relating to the development of properties,
comprising prepaid lease payments for lands and development
costs, are included in properties held for/under development for
sale until such time when they are completed. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price less all anticipated costs to
be incurred in marketing and selling.

Others

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is calculated using the weighted average method. Net
realisable value represents the estimated selling price for inventories
less all estimated costs of completion and costs necessary to make
the sale.

TAXATION

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from ‘profit before taxation’ as reported in
the consolidated statements of profit or loss because of items of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years
and it further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible.
The Group’s current tax is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amount of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets
are generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which those deductible temporary differences can be
utilised. Such deferred assets and liabilities are not recognised if
the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting
profit.
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Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, and interests in joint ventures, except where the Group
is able to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it
is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences associated with such investments and
interests are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that
there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the
benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected to
reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end
of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow
all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or
the asset is realised, based on the tax rates (and tax laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the
tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the
Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or
settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities and deferred
tax assets for investment properties that are measured using
the fair value model, the carrying amounts of such properties
are presumed to be recovered entirely through sale, unless the
presumption is rebutted. The presumption is rebutted when the
investment property is depreciable and is held within a business
model whose objective is to consume substantially all of the
economic benefits embodied in the investment property over time,
rather than through sale.

Current and deferred taxes are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively. Where
current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting for a
business combination, the tax effect is included in the accounting
for the business combination.
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 #Z=2018F3A31 B I F/E

LEASING

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to
the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in the profit or
loss on a straight line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial
direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating
lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and
recognised as an expense on a straight line basis over the lease
term.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a
straight line basis over the lease term.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into
operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a liability. The
aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as a reduction of
rental expense on a straight-line basis.

Leasehold land and building

When the Group makes payments for a property interest which
includes both leasehold land and building elements, the Group
assesses the classification of each element as a finance or an
operating lease separately based on the assessment as to whether
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of
each element have been transferred to the Group, unless it is clear
that both elements are operating leases in which case the entire
lease is classified as an operating lease. Specifically, the entire
consideration (including any lump-sum upfront payments) are
allocated between the leasehold land and the building elements in
proportion to the relative fair values of the leasehold interests in the
land element and building element at initial recognition.

To the extent the allocation of the relevant payments can be made
reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted for as an
operating lease is presented as ‘prepaid lease payments’ in the
consolidated statement of financial position and is amortised over
the lease term on a straight-line basis, except for those that are
classified and accounted for as investment properties under the fair
value model. When the lease payments cannot be allocated reliably
between the leasehold land and building elements, the entire
property is generally classified as if the leasehold land is under a
finance lease.
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FOREIGN CURRENCIES

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the entity’s functional currency
(foreign currencies) are at the rates of exchange prevailing on the
dates of the transactions. At the end of each reporting period,
monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried
at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value
was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items,
and on the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which they arise, except for exchange
differences on monetary items receivable from or payable to a
foreign operation for which settlement is neither planned nor likely
to occur (therefore forming part of the net investment in a foreign
operation) which are recognised initially in other comprehensive
income and reclassified from equity to profit or loss on disposal
or partial disposal of the Group’s interests in associates or joint
ventures.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s operations
are translated into the presentation currency of the Group (i.e.
Hong Kong dollars) using exchange rates prevailing at the end of
each reporting period. Income and expenses items are translated
at the average exchange rates for the period, unless exchange
rates fluctuate significantly during that period, in which case, the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions are
used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under the
heading of exchange reserve.

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the
Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal involving
loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation,
or a partial disposal of an interest in a joint arrangement or an
associate that includes a foreign operation of which the retained
interest becomes a financial asset), all of the exchange differences
accumulated in equity in respect of that operation, attributable to
owners of the Company are reclassified to profit or loss.
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In addition, in relation to a partial disposal of a subsidiary that
does not result in the Group losing control over the subsidiary, the
proportionate share of accumulated exchange differences are re-
attributed to non-controlling interests and are not recognised in
profit or loss. For all other partial disposals (i.e. partial disposals of
associates or joint arrangements that do not result in the Group
losing significant influence or joint control), the proportionate share
of the accumulated exchange differences is reclassified to profit or
loss.

BORROWING COSTS

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily
take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use
or sale, are added to the cost of those assets until such time as the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is
deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other
than financial assets and financial liabilities at FVTPL) are added to
or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs
directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial
liabilities at FVTPL are recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets include loans and receivables, held-
to-maturity investments and available-for-sale financial assets. The
classification depends on the nature and purpose of the financial
assets and is determined at the time of initial recognition. All
regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised
and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the time frame established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a debt instrument and allocating interest income
over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees
paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through
the expected life of the debt instrument, or, where appropriate,
a shorter period to the net carrying amount of the asset on initial
recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt
instruments.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables (including
trade receivables, other receivables, bank balances and cash,
amounts due from associates, loans to joint ventures and amounts
due from joint ventures) are measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less any impairment (see accounting
policy on impairment of financial assets below).

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate,
except for short-term receivables where the recognition of interest
would be immaterial.
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Held-to-maturity investments

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity dates that
are quoted in an active market and that the Group’s management
has the positive intention and ability to hold to maturity. Subsequent
to initial recognition, held-to-maturity investments are measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any
identified impairment losses (see accounting policy on impairment
of financial assets below).

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are either
designated or not classified as financial assets at FVTPL, loans and
receivables or held-to-maturity investments.

Listed securities and unlisted private equity funds held by the
Group that are classified as available-for-sale are measured at
fair value at the end of each reporting period except for unquoted
equity investments whose fair value cannot be reliably measured
which are measured at cost less impairment. Dividends on
available-for-sale equity investments are recognised in profit or loss.
For those measured at fair value, other changes in the carrying
amount of available-for-sale financial assets are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated under the heading of
investment revaluation reserve. When the investment is disposed
of or is determined to be impaired, the cumulative gain or loss
previously accumulated in the investment revaluation reserve is
reclassified to profit or loss (see accounting policy on impairment of
financial assets below).

Dividends on available-for-sale equity investments are recognised
in profit or loss when the Group’s right to receive the dividends is
established.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for
indicators of impairment at the end of the reporting period. Financial
assets are considered to be impaired where there is objective
evidence that, as a result of one or more events that occurred after
the initial recognition of the financial asset, the estimated future
cash flows of the financial assets have been affected.

1 26 B HKR International Limited Annual Report 2017/2018 W

BFEIHRE

FEIMRERNEETSAERELAERETE
FAEE N FEREERME - MEEEE
EERREENENFAEEIHMZIFTESR
BE - RTHERE  BEIHREDRAR
IR R SR 02542 8 5 A AN R (AT B 9% BRI (BB 1R AT
EBE(RTXEHSREEREISERE) -

THHEERMEE

A ESREERE TR L ES D B AT
Bt ABmZeREE - B NERFIRSS
ERMREZIFITET A -

SEREZLEMESMELTAEREES
(WOBRAEEE) TREEARSHREL
FEFE - HERAREREFEAEAFE
THEAI et B 2 BMIBERARERRID » AT
ERARE 2 BB NIBm AR - SUIRAFE
AEZAHLESREEMS - Al HEE
TREEZREEZ SN A2 HRERER
EREBEMBREBR - EZRERLEXRE
EREEER BERFANREEHRFREZR
rRABEEWER O BERE(A TXAHESRE
BEREIGTER)

B R EWEA S 2 RN RESLRY - Al SRR
BREZBENBHRAER

EHMEERE
ERMEE(HAVFEFABEZEREER
SMRBERRS R E AL LRBELR
HEEBREEATHEE [ RIRER
ERNSHEREREERBRLE L, —BNZESE
HmRAFE  REREERRARE



For an available-for-sale equity investment, a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of that investment below its cost is
considered to be objective evidence of impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment
could include:

° significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or

° breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in interest
and principal payments; or

° it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy
or financial re-organisation.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade receivables,
assets that are assessed not to be impaired individually are, in
addition, assessed for impairment on a collective basis. Objective
evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables could include
the Group’s past experience of collecting payments, an increase in
the number of delayed payments in the portfolio past the average
credit period, observable changes in national or local economic
conditions that correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the
impairment loss recognised is the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash
flows discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest
rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the impairment
loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the current market rate of return for a similar financial
asset. Such impairment loss will not be reversed in subsequent
periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the exception of
trade receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced through
the use of an allowance account. When trade receivables and other
financial assets are considered uncollectible, they are written off
against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited to profit or loss. Changes in the
carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised in profit
or loss.
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When an available-for-sale financial asset is considered to be
impaired, cumulative gains or losses previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss in the period
in which the impairment takes place.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a subsequent
period, the amount of impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
losses were recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss
is reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying
amount of the asset at the date the impairment is reversed does
not exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised.

Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity investments will
not be reversed through profit or loss. Any increase in fair value
subsequent to impairment loss is recognised directly in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in investment revaluation
reserve.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are classified
as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the
substance of the contractual arrangements entered into and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities.
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recognised at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral
part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial
liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.
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Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities (including bank and other loans, trade payables,
deposits received and other liabilities) are subsequently measured
at amortised costs, using the effective interest method.

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer
to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it
incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when due
in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are initially
measured at their fair values and, if not designated as at FVTPL,
are subsequently measured at the higher of:

o the amount of obligation under the contract, as determined
in accordance with HKAS 37 “Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent Assets”; and

° the amount initially recognised less, where appropriate,
cumulative amortisation recognised over the guarantee period.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual
rights to the cash flows from the asset expire or when it transfers
the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received
and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
equity is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when,
the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired.
The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised
in profit or loss.
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PROVISIONS

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation
(legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that
the Group will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the
consideration required to settle the present obligation at the end of
the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation. When a provision is measured using the
cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying
amount is the present value of those cash flows (where the effect of
the time value of money is material).

RETIREMENT BENEFIT COSTS

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit schemes/state-
managed retirement benefits schemes/the Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme are recognised as an expense when employees have
rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT ARRANGEMENTS

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and others
providing similar services are measured at the fair value of the
equity instruments at the grant date.

For share options that vest immediately at the date of grant, the fair
value of the share options granted is expensed immediately to profit
or loss.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to share
premium. When share options are forfeited after the vesting
date or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount
previously recognised in share options reserve will be transferred
to accumulated profits. Regarding to the share options of the
subsidiary, when share options are exercised after the vesting date,
the amount previously recognised in share options reserve of a
subsidiary will be transferred to share of net assets of subsidiaries
within non-controlling interests.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in Note 3, the directors of the Company are required to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an on-
going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only
that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the
revision affects both current and future periods.

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The followings are the critical judgements, apart from those
involving estimation, that the directors of the Company have made
in the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies and that
have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
consolidated financial statements.

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities arising from
investment properties that are measured using the fair value
model, the directors of the Company have reviewed the investment
property portfolio of the Group and concluded that none of the
investment properties are held under a business model whose
objective is to consume substantially all of the economic benefits
embodied in the investment properties over time. Therefore,
the directors of the Company have determined that the “sale”
presumption set out in HKAS 12 “Income Taxes” is not rebutted.
As a result, the Group has not recognised any deferred taxes on
changes in fair value of investment properties to the extent in which
the disposal of those investment properties is not subject to income
taxes.

The directors of the Company also determined the investment
properties held by a joint venture whose business objective is to
consume substantively all of the economic benefits embodied
in the investment properties over time, rather than through sale.
Therefore, the directors of the Company have determined that the
“sale” presumption set out in HKAS 12 is rebutted.
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

Management had made the following estimations that have
the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
consolidated financial statements and a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year.

Fair value of investment properties

Investment properties are carried in the consolidated statement
of financial position as at 31 March 2018 at their fair value of
HK$11,255.2 million (2017: HK$8,688.3 million) (Note 15). The
fair value was based on valuation of these properties conducted
by independent firms of professional valuers (the “Valuers”). In
determining the fair values of the Group’s investment properties,
the Valuers applied a market value basis which involves, inter-
alia, significant unobservable inputs and significant judgements,
representing appropriate market rent, capitalisation rates and
adjusted market price that has taken into account of property-
specific adjustments including location and timing of referenced
transactions. In determining the fair values of the Group’s
investment properties under construction, the Valuers applied
a market value basis which involves, inter-alia, significant
unobservable inputs and significant judgements, representing
appropriate market rent, capitalisation rates, estimated construction
costs to be incurred and developers’ profit. The management of
the Company has reviewed the valuation techniques and inputs for
fair value measurements.

As at 31 March 2018, the fair value of the investment properties
held by a joint venture amounted to HK$22,886.0 million (2017:
HK$20,541.4 million) (Note 18) and the Group’s share of the value
of the investment properties amounted to HK$11,443.0 million
(2017: HK$10,270.7 million). The valuation of such investment
properties was conducted by an independent firm of professional
valuers (the “Valuer”). In determining the fair value of the joint
venture’s investment properties, the Valuer applied a market value
basis which involves, inter-alia, significant unobservable inputs
and significant judgements, representing appropriate rentals,
capitalisation rates, estimated construction costs to be incurred
and developers’ profit of the joint venture’s investment properties
under construction.
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Properties held for/under development for sale

Management reviews the recoverability of the Group’s properties
held for/under development for sale amounting to HK$5,546.4
million (2017: HK$4,755.5 million) (Note 22) with reference to
current market environment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of the assets
may exceed its net realisable value. Write-down for estimated
irrecoverable amounts is recognised in profit or loss when the net
realisable value is below cost. The estimates of net realisable value
are based on the evidence available at the time the estimates are
made of the amount the properties held for/under development for
sale that are expected to realise. Actual realised amount may differ
from estimates or changes in facts and circumstances may result
in downward revision of estimated net realisable value of these
properties held for/under development for sale and additional write-
down may be required.

Project investment undertaken by a joint venture

The Group has a 50% equity interest in a joint venture, Dazhongli
Properties Limited (“Dazhongli”), whose wholly owned subsidiaries
are engaged in the development of investment properties and
hotel properties in the Jing’an District of Shanghai in mainland
China, for investment purpose. In considering the recoverability of
the Group’s loans to Dazhongli amounting to HK$4,732.5 million
(2017: HK$4,698.9 million) (Note 18), the management takes into
consideration the recoverable amount of the underlying assets
of Dazhongli which is determined by reference to the costs to be
incurred to complete the development of the properties and the
future rental income to be generated therefrom, where the actual
future cash flows are less than expected, a material impairment
loss may arise. The management considered that no impairment is
necessary in respect of the loans to Dazhongli.

5. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT
INFORMATION

The Group is organised into five operating divisions: property
development, property investment, services provided (clubs
operation, transportation and professional property management
services), hotel operations and healthcare (provision of medical
and dental care services, comprising chronic disease management
and integrated medical centres, Chinese medicine centres, dental
clinics, a centre for the diagnosis and treatment of cancer and
multi-specialty outpatient centres). Each of the operating divisions
represents an operating and reportable segment.
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The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results by AT AERESENAERDBAONTANEEEE

operating and reportable segments for the year: pd ONSE T
Property Property Services Hotel
development  investment provided operations  Healthcare
NERR NERE BERS BEER BRRRE
HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M
BBAT BBAT BBAT BBAT BEBT
For the year ended 31 March 2018~ 5Z2018£3531 ALLEE
TURNOVER EXE
Segment revenue - sdlestoextemal  HEMA-EE  BEQE]
customers derived by the Group, RAEDAINDER
an associate and joint ventures JIHER 1,318.7 1,435.4 4714 313.2 276.3 38147
Excluding tumover of an associate and %’ﬁ% BENARAERT
joint ventures LEER (568.9) (1,023.5) - - - (1,592.4)
Consolidated tumover, as reported GABER NER 749.8 411.9 411 313.2 216.3 2,022.3
RESULTS E4
Segment results - totel realised results Y E#E - £E - BE Q]
of the Group, associates and RAERR/ EERREA
joint ventures (note a) 8% (Mita) 1283 236.6 66.0 (15.9) 0.7 4165
Excluding realised results of associates  EAMIEEE S EHL R TR
and joint ventures not shared RERFlL
by the Group BEREE (30.8) 3.0 - - - (218
Results attrioutable to the Group SEEEEE 975 239.6 66.0 (15.1) 0.7 388.7
Unallocated other income AAREMMA 323
Unallocated corporate expenses AARAAER (210.9)
Finance costs and corporate level HBERRAGERL
exchange diference ERES (156.7)
Gain on disposal of a self-used property  (HE 5B 7 s 559.9
Net unrealised gains on fair valug REMENTEES
change of investment properties FERNEFE (W)
(note b) 1,813.0
Net unrealised gains on fair value SEE(ERELANRE
change of investment properties nEEE ATEEY
attributable to the Group’s interest LRERUETE
inajont venture, net of deferred tax IR EERE 106
Prolfitfor the year REREHN 2,436.9
Non-contraling sharholders’ FERERAE
share of profit for the year KEERT (131.8)
Profit for the year attributable to KRFEE AER
owners of the Company KEERR 2,305.1
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Property Property Services Hotel
development investment provided operations Healthcare

eSS ] iy BIEXH
HKSM 0 HK$YM

BEAT

For the year ended 31 March 2017 HZE201743A31HILERE

TURNOVER X%
Segment revenue - sales to extemal - D EMA -£E -

customers derived by the Group, BENTRAERT

an associate and a joint venture HNTEEZ HER 8145 519.1 4737 306.8 275.7 2,389.8
Excluding tumover of an associateand  BREE AT RAS AT

ajoint venture L] 0.2 (155.5) - - - (155.7)
Consolidated turnover, as reported EALEE 25 814.3 363.6 473.7 306.8 215.7 2,234.1
RESULTS S
Segment results - total realised results ~ HEEE-£E  BEAAR

of the Group, associates and AENFIZEEREEES

joint ventures (note a) (Wista) 88.2 (53.9) 742 94 (16.6) 1013
Bxcluding realised results of HREEEAEHE LT

associates and joint ventures ABARIZBE fﬁi?

not shared by the Group 18.1 122.7 - - - 140.8
Results attributable to the Group SEEGEG 106.3 68.8 742 9.4 (16.6) 242.1
Unallocated other income AAREMMA 104
Unallocated corporate expenses AORAFER (132.6)
Finance costs and corporate level YHRERRLAFERL

exchange difference EHEE (145.9)
Net unrealised gains on fair value change AMEATEE S

of investment properties (note b) FERWEFE (W) 6136
Net unrealised gains on fair value EEEEAENTNEENE

change of investment properties BRZATEED I FER

attrioutable to the Group’s interestin-+~~ WS - SIRELHE

a joint venture, net of deferred tax 4005
Profit for the year REEET 9885
Non-contraling shareholders' FERREA AT R

share of proft for the year (164.6)
Profit for the year attributable to RAFHEAARERERGH

owners of the Company 8239
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e SRR M

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #Z=2018F3A31 B I F/E

Notes:

(@) The segment results of the Group include the entire results of associates and
joint ventures, excluding the unrealised gains on fair value change of investment
properties net of deferred tax arising from change in fair value.

(b) The net unrealised gains on fair value change of investment properties for
the year ended 31 March 2018 of HK$1,813.0 million (2017: HK$613.6 million)
represented the unrealised gains on fair value change of investment properties of
HK$1,874.8 million (2017: HK$623.3 million) net of deferred tax charge arising
from change in fair value of HK$61.8 million (2017: HK$9.7 million).

Other than including the entire revenue and entire results of
associates and joint ventures as segment revenue and segment
results respectively, the accounting policies of the operating
segments are the same as the Group’s accounting policies
described in Note 3. Segment profit (loss) represents the
profit earned by (loss from) each segment without allocation of
unallocated other income, unallocated corporate expenses, finance
costs and corporate level exchange difference, net unrealised gains
on fair value change of investment properties and net unrealised
gains on fair value change of investment properties attributable to
the Group’s interest in a joint venture, net of deferred tax. This is
the measure reported to the chief operating decision maker for the
purposes of resource allocation and performance assessment.

All of the segment revenue reported above is from external
customers.
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No analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities by operating and EEVERBRSENAERDHEND 2EE
reportable segments is disclosed as they are not reviewed by the NeaEzoW BABMOWIIFREZELE
chief operating decision maker nor otherwise regularly provided to REERNNERRE T EEEERREER
the chief operating decision maker for review. & e

OTHER SEGMENT INFORMATION Hit o EER

Property Property Services Hotel Unallocated
development  investment provided  operations  Healthcare amounts

%R NRRE EERE 0 EERE  BERR  ROREH
HKS'M HKSM HKSM HKSM HKS'M HKS'M
FEEn  EERn  ERER  AEERx  EERR BAEER

For the year ended 31 March 2018 £Z201853A31AL £

Amounts included in the measure of 52 ENER

seqment proft or loss: fafzes:
Revenue from inter-segment sales” —  3E 2 HERA - (1.8) (11.0) (04) - - (129
Depreciation ik 19.2 16.5 50.6 589 176 82 161.0
Reversal of impairmentloss on held- BEEZHARER

to-maturty investments and other ~ EttEIEUE

recelvables HESE - - - - = (1.2 (1.2)
Net alowance for doubtiul debts ~ REEEEFE - - - - 0.7 - 0.7
Nt gains from financial assets SREENETE - - = = = (132) (132
(Gain) loss on disposal of property, ~ HENE - BERZEL

plant and equipment (s Bl (04) (2.6) (64) 25 (04) (560.0) (546.7)
Realised gain on disposal of HEREMEL

investment properties EENE 2.3) (12.) - - - - (145)
Interest income FlEMA (29.9) (7.6) - (44) - (15.0) (56.1)
Finance costs BKER - 214 - - 12 186.0 208.3
Income tax charge FriERx 1150 618 108 10 25 34 2005
Share of resuls of associates PMEBELIEE 02 - - - - - 02
Share of results of joint ventures MEAEDRIEE (40.8) 30 - - - (10.6) (48.4)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R R MR

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #Z=2018F3A31 B I F/E

Property Property Services Hotel Unallocated
deve\opmen investment provided operations Healthcare amounts

For the year ended 31 March 2017~ E1Z201743R318 L5

Amounts included in the measure of st EABiERFAZ ST -
segment profit or loss:

Revenue from inter-segment sales” AP ZHER A" - (08 (10.7 0. - - (116)
Depreciation 1 121 128 54.2 580 58 55 1484
Release of prepaid lease payments R EREELY - - 0.1 - - - 0.1
Net alowance for doubtiul debts ~ REABFE - - - - 05 - 05
Net gains from financial asssts SREENETE - - - - - (2.2 (2.2
Loss (gain) on disposal of property, ~ HE¥% - BER
plant and equipment Fk RS 03 - (188) 0. - - (186)
Interest income AEMA (204) 73 - (44 - (26.4) (58.5)
Finance costs BIER 21 211 - - - 1685 1917
Income tax charge FrEhix 028 279 110 73 27 41 %38
Share of results of associates PMEBENIEE 02 - - - - - 02
Share of results of oint ventures MEAERRIEE 173 1226 - - - (400.5) (260.6)
*  Inter-segment sales are entered into in accordance with the relevant * DEEZHEEDNIREREZER S 2B BIHE (N
agreements, if any, governing those transactions, in which the pricing was B)ET XHGEBRN2BIRITHMEXETEELERAK
determined with reference to prevailing market price or actual cost incurred, as (BTBRBRmE)EE -
appropriate.
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TURNOVER FROM MAJOR PRODUCTS AND SERVICES TEEMMERBEZEERE

The following is an analysis of the Group’s turnover from its major UNTAEEEEBERMRG 2 EEEIN
products and services:

Sales of properties SHE W 744.0 810.6
Rental income LW A 386.4 339.6
Hotel revenue S IE YA 313.2 306.8
Provision of healthcare services R R ERERS 276.3 275.7
Other services rendered R E A IR TS 502.4 501.4
2,222.3 2,234 .1

GEOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION & & xR

For each of the years ended 31 March 2018 and 2017, the Group’s HE2018F M2017F3ASIALEFE - &
operations are located in Hong Kong, mainland China, Japan and BZEBUREE  FREA - BAKREE
South East Asia. CER

The Group’s revenue from external customers based on the EBEKREBIIIEL(AME - SNEHIEM
location of properties and goods delivered or services rendered, BRI BTt BE2E - RAESWAME © U
and location of properties in the case of rental income, and ERAEMAEE) VWA REREILEEMIE
information about its non-current assets by geographical location of NEBEDZIERBEEER ZFBOT ¢

the assets are detailed below:

Revenue from Non-current assets
external customers (note a)
REHNEBEF ZWA ISR EE E (FzEa)
2018 2017 2018 2017
HK$’M HK$'M HK$’'M HK$'M
BEBT BBEBT BEBT ABBIT
Hong Kong BB 1,190.1 1,325.4 13,165.2 11,229.8
Mainland China AR A B, 230.1 443.3 7,221.1 6,487.4
Japan SN 467.4 36.6 1,113.3 818.5
South East Asia (note b) R (fisEb) 334.7 428.8 1,141.0 698.7
2,222.3 2,234.1 22,640.6 19,234 .4
Notes: MIaE -
(@) Non-current assets excluded financial instruments and deferred tax assets. (a) ERBEETBESHMTARELEHBEE -
(b) Revenue from countries in this category is individually less than 10% of the b) REZEANBER 2 HAER DR EBUYAZ
Group’s revenue. 10% °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R R MR

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #Z=2018F3A31 B I F/E

INFORMATION ABOUT MAJOR CUSTOMERS BATXTEREP &N

The revenue from individual customer contributed less than 10% of REMRMEFE - KEEEEE 2 WA LRE
the total turnover of the Group for both years. EBEFEHE10% °

6. OTHER INCOME 6. HalkA

Other income includes the following: Hi W ABIE T SIE -
Bank and other interest income RIT R E AT S YA 56.1 58.5
Other income E g A 79.7 65.7
135.8 124.2
7. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES 7. HEREE

Other gains (losses) include the following: E Ui %5 (E518) B3 T 718 -

Net foreign exchange gain (loss) HNEERE 5 R U as (B 18) 27.9 (10.2)

Gain on disposal of property, plantand &% - BE LHEB WS
equipment 546.7 18.6
Loss on deregistration of subsidiaries BB B A R 2 E 18 (1.0) -

Reversal of impairment loss on BEFEEIEIE 2R ERE
held-to-maturity investments 7.3 -
Net allowance for doubtful debts REEBERE (0.7) 0.9)
Others Efh 13.1 2.6
593.3 10.5
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8. FINANCE COSTS

MEEH

Interest on THIEIE 2 S
Bank and other loans RITREMER 169.9 151.0
Advances from non-controlling FEVERR AR R BT
shareholders 11.9 9.0
181.8 160.0
Less: Amounts included in the cost of B ETARNERERYE
properties under development AR 2 & 58
for sale (11.9) 9.0)
169.9 151.0
Bank and other loans arrangement fees  $RT R E i B R T HEE B 38.4 40.7
208.3 191.7

Borrowing costs capitalised arose on specific borrowings to finance
the properties under development for sale for both years.

9. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

Profit before taxation has been arrived at
after charging (crediting):

BBATEFIE B GEA)
THI&E -

BERNMEEERAARMEFEHR D ERRTY

EBRXWEEEEMESL -

9. BRBATZRF

Auditor’s remuneration ZE RN 2 8.9 8.3
Cost of inventories and developed FEMDEEDE

properties recognised as an expense PN Y =155 417.0 601.1
Operating lease rentals in respect of T REFZEEHEES

land and buildings 38.3 34.4
Staff costs incurred (including directors’ 2 E4 & T AN

remuneration) (BEESFH2) 733.7 636.4
Release of prepaid lease payments FENEENRES = 0.1
Depreciation e 161.0 148.4
Gross rental income under operating RETAE TN 2 ALELE -

leases on:

Investment properties WEMZE (378.0) (331.7)

Other properties E (8.4) (7.9
Less: Outgoings Ao 45.4 39.4

(341.0) (300.2)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R R MR

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #Z=2018F3A31 B I F/E

10. TAXATION 10. %18

The taxation charge comprises: HEZHEE
Hong Kong Profits Tax calculated at N S E R B % AR B =
16.5% of the estimated assessable 16.5%EH 2 BB FFH
profit for the year 30.5 41.3
Overseas tax calculated at rates LBEBREREERERZ
prevailing in respective jurisdictions MRE 7 /BINHTE 73.0 31.9
Land appreciation tax (“LAT") T IR ER 54.1 -
157.6 73.2
Deferred taxation for current year (note)  Z<%E [EiREFLIA (M) 42.9 22.6
200.5 95.8
Note:  An analysis of deferred taxation for the year is as follows: W AFEEEREZHWHT -

Deferred tax charge arising during the year in AEERENMELATFEEZHESE
respect of unrealised gains on fair value change K37 W a5 7 IR FE 7 1B %7

of investment properties 61.8 9.7

Deferred tax credit on disposal of investment HEREYMEZELERBIER
properties (4.1) -
Others Hitb (14.8) 12.9
42.9 22.6

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated BAENEBR IR M EF (5T E R R ML
assessable profit for both years. E16.5%1H °

Under the Law of the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”) on BIEREARKXMBE([HRE])SEMERZE
Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT Law”) and Implementation REEWRG - FEMRBATNZMEEEZ
Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is & 525% o

25% for both years.

Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at the rates REMBDEREEE 2 HIEREERNARR 2
prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions. RITHEETE -
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According to the requirements of the Provisional Regulations of
the PRC on LAT effective from 1 January 1994 and amended on
8 January 2011, and the Implementation Rules on the Provisional
Regulations of the PRC on LAT effective from 27 January 1995,
all gains arising from the sale or transfer of real estate in the PRC
with effect from 1 January 1994 are subject to LAT at progressive
rates ranging from 30% to 60% on the appreciation of land value,
being the proceeds from the sale of properties less deductible
expenditures including payments made for acquisition of land use
rights, costs and expenses for the development of the land or
for construction of new buildings and supporting facilities, or the
assessed value for old buildings and structures, tax payable relating
to transfer of the real estate and other deductible items prescribed
by the Ministry of Finance.

The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit before
taxation per the consolidated statement of profit or loss as follows:

BIEBE1994F1 A1 HEERBN2011F1 A
BHEERI 2P B LR ERGITIRA LB
199561 27 BfAM Z P H + g ERE 1T
GBI EREMAMIRE - B1994F 1 H1H AT
BHREEHE 7 HEEE N SAR M ERE
12 4 b B T 2 TR R 30% £ 60% B A £ i
ER - HEGERYEHEEFERIER AN
VR S 0 (8 15 B R B - b (5 AR A P S 5008
TS EETF REEREESN AR E
B EEEYRERZHE  FHEEERL
B2 e IE N B IS B0 AR B 2 H M AT R IR
B) o

AEEHIAL BB SBERARTATE N 2
HERMT

Profit before taxation B 51 AT g 7 2,637.4 1,084.3
Less: Share of results of associates B D REEE A A A 0.2 0.2
Share of results of joint ventures DMEAERNEEE (48.4) (260.6)

Profit before taxation attributable to EE BRI R

the Group 2,589.2 823.9
Tax charge at the domestic income tax ¥ A TS T & 16.5%

rate of 16.5% FrECFIES N 427.2 135.9
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax ~ HBERHUWA ZFREE

purpose (403.4) (107.0)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for A1 B &2 > Tl 76 o2 &

tax purpose 37.0 33.1
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised AERTTEEE 2 T 30.9 29.2
Utilisation of tax losses previously not FRBERERZFHIEREIE

recognised (22.7) (10.8)
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries FAE fth T EHE R &E 2

operating in other jurisdictions MERARMENR 2 18.0 8.7
Tax effect of deductible temporary AERA TG =587

differences not recognised M E 4.2 0.6
Effect of LAT in the PRC P+ IR ER 8 85.6 4.7
Withholding tax on undistributed RHINHBRRIRDIREFZ

eamnings of foreign subsidiaries TEH0L 14.3 0.1)
Others Hith 9.4 1.5
Taxation attributable to the Group REEEBRELTE

for the year 200.5 95.8
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R R MR

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #Z=2018F3A31 B I F/E

11. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE "N, KRB EEANEBEREE
TO OWNERS OF THE COMPANY ia A

Profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company RABEEANEBNATFERFBE
comprises:

(@)  Net unrealised gains on change in  (a) EW&%%%A$@

fair value of investment properties Be) s KRB

during the year et

- The Group —&£E 1,874.8 623.3
Deferred tax charge EERBES N (61.8) 9.7)

IR S R

Attributable to non-controlling

interests (97.4) (67.7)
1,715.6 545.9

- Joint venture, net of deferred tax —&Ena - fIRIELT
(Note 18) BIE(M5E18) 10.6 400.5
1,726.2 946.4

(o) FKREEWEANTFE
FEBRWRFE 2

(b)  Profits (losses) excluding net
unrealised gains in fair value of

investment properties A (E1E) 578.9 (122.5)
Net accumulated gains on change in FHREHEWER
fair value of investment properties BAFEEEZ
(net of deferred tax) recognised RZIBEYE
in profit or loss in prior years for NEEED 2
properties disposed of during the Rt 55
year HEREER IR 90.8 -
669.7 (122.5)
Sub-total /NEE 2,395.9 823.9

Less: Net accumulated gains on change & : FAC HEWMER

in fair value of investment BEFELER
properties (net of deferred tax) ’E@%’»Z?ﬁ;ﬁ LZ/ES
recognised in profit or loss in NEEES 2
prior years for properties Rt g EE
disposed of during the year R BRI (90.8) -
Profit for the year attributable to RARHEB NEEREERT
owners of the Company 2,305.1 823.9
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12. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND FIVE

HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES’ REMUNERATION &<
(a) DETAILS OF DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION ARE AS (a) EFH
FOLLOWS:

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the twelve (2017:

eleven) directors are as follows:

For the year ended 31 March 2018

Executive Directors (note 3)

BT -

TRBT

BZE2018F3A3MALEE

Non-executive Directors (note b)

Independent Non-executive Directors (note c)

1.EEMERAEEEHE

D EM12Z (2017F  11B)EE&EAY

EE EURE) FHTES (i) BUHTES (o)
Cha Cha  Chung Ronald Cha WongCha  Cheng  Cheung Fan Tang Ho
MouSing MouZing ~ SamTin Joseph MouDaid MayLung KarShun WingLam HungLing Kwai  Pak Ching
Payson ~ Victor Abraham Arculli  Johnson ~ Madeline ~ Henry Linus ~ Henry ~ Chang  Loretta
B ERY  ELE i BiE IEE Oz RAR MR BEE  MHR
(note g) (note f)
(Hie) (W)
HKSM  HKSM  HKSWM HKSM  HKSM  HKSM  HKSM  HKSM  HKSM  HKSM  HKSM
BERL HEEL BEER fERT FRET PBEEn RERn FEET AERL REAR  BEER
Fees fig - - - 04 04 04 02 04 04 04 04 18
Otheremolments — Efofie
Saresandoher B4R
benefts EftRH 53 11 21 49 - - - - - - - - 08
Perfomencercited £
nogntive payment——~ (JH3kd)
(note ) 50 150 06 5.2 - - - - - - - - 258
Eouiysetledshare-  DIEA%E
based payments WhiE
LU PAE 56 56 33 33 18 18 18 09 09 - 09 09 %8
Retfement benefts RV
schemes contrboution £33 - - 02 - - - - - - - - 02
Toemouments  HEEE 159 283 6.6 136 19 19 19 11 13 04 13 13 752

B FEEEEREEARLT 2017/2018 £ W
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 #Z=2018F3A31 B I F/E

For the year ended 31 March 2017

Non-exective Direct

\Mita) 7
Cha Chung Tang  Ronad
MouSing MouZng SamTin  Moon  Joseph
Victor ~ Aoraham Wah Al

E0f BfEE

Johnson Henry Lnus  Chang  Lorefia

EES ) fIkH
HK$M
AT

HE2017TEIAZNHILFE

(note b) Independent Non-executive Directors (note ¢)

) NE \HI&c)
Cha WongCha  Cheng  Cheung Tang Ho

MouDaid MayLung  KarShun  WingLam Kwai  Pak Ching

Fees ws - - - - 0.1 01 01 02 04 04 04 17
Other emoluments e
Salaries and other benefs  E4 R E MG 52 7 27 49 - - - - - - - 205
Performance related Enz
incentive payment (Hisa)
fote) 6 120 01 20 - - - - - - -5
Fouity-setfed share-based  MEREE HR( A
payments B 25 25 17 17 10 10 10 10 04 02 06 136
Retrement benefts RIVERIEELS:
schemes contribution - - - 02 - - - - - - - 02
Total emoluments e aE 83 2.2 51 88 11 11 11 1.2 08 06 10 513
Notes: P EE

(@) For Executive Directors’ emoluments shown above were mainly for their
services in connection with the management of the affairs of the Company and
the Group.

(o) The Non-executive Directors’ emoluments shown above were mainly for
their services as Directors of the Company.

() The Independent Non-executive Directors’ emoluments shown above were
mainly for their services as Directors of the Company.

(d) The performance related incentive payment is determined with reference
to the operating results of the Group and comparable market statistics of the
Group, and individual performance of the directors during the year.

() Dr Cheng Kar Shun Henry resigned as an independent non-executive
director of the Company with effect from 31 March 2018.

()  Mr Fan Hung Ling Henry was appointed as an independent non-executive
director of the Company with effect from 1 November 2017.

During both years, no emoluments were paid by the Group to

the directors as an inducement to join. No directors waived any
emoluments during both years.
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(b) EMPLOYEES’ REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 March 2018, the five highest paid individuals
of the Group included four (2017: four) executive directors, whose
emoluments are disclosed above. The emoluments of the remaining
one (2017: one) employee are as follows:

) EEBE

HE2018F3A31IHILEFE SEAEES
HFMATEPME (20174 : WEZ) AHTE
B BEZMERN EXXERE - 8 T —5R (2017
F:—F)EEZHMEWT :

Salaries and other benefits e kEMmEF 5.4 4.7
Retirement benefits schemes contribution 3R /Kki@ F| 5T 2] 3% 0.1 0.1
5.5 4.8

The emoluments of the aforesaid employee were within the
following bands:

b8 Z S BN T AR -

2018 2017

HK$4,500,001 - HK$5,000,000
HK$5,500,001 - HK$6,000,000

4,500,001/ 7T —5,000,00078 7 - 1
5,500,00178 7T — 6,000,000/ 7T

1 —

1 1

13. DIVIDENDS

13. BB

Final dividend paid for the financial year ended #Z20174E3 4318 It

31 March 2017 of HK7 cents per share HHFE 2 RBARE —
(2017: no final dividend paid for the BR7EWL(2017F - HZ
financial year ended 31 March 2016) 201643 A1 H I HFE
IR REAR ) 94.5 -
Interim dividend paid for the financial year B ZE2018F3A31H 1
ended 31 March 2018 of HK3 cents per HHFE 2 EBHRE —
share (2017: no interim dividend paid B3 (2017F - FHZE
for the financial year ended 31 March 2017) 201743 A31 B It FE
IR EIRR ) 40.5 -
135.0 -

The directors of the Company proposed a final dividend for the
financial year ended 31 March 2018 of HK7 cents (2017: for the
financial year ended 31 March 2017 of HK7 cents) per share
totalling not less than HK$94.5 million (2017: HK$94.5 million).

RATEEHRE E20184E3A31 B IFE 4
E2 R EEIRTEN(2017F  #F=2017
F3ABTH T RFE -78M) - AETIR
94 5H8EITL(20174F 94 5HEBT) °

B FEEEEREEARLT 2017/2018 £ W

147




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R R MR

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #Z=2018F3A31 B I F/E

14. EARNINGS PER SHARE 14. 3IREF|
The calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share attributable RRGEE NERBREARREERT THIRE
to owners of the Company is based on the following data: TOEEETE -

Earnings 27

Earnings for the purpose of calculating — stESREARN #EEF ~
basic and diluted earnings per share BF (KA RER AEN
(Profit for the year attributable to REEHEN)
owners of the Company)

2,305.1 823.9

Number of shares R
Number of ordinary shares in issue during 5t & &SREREF] 2
the year for the purpose of calculating AREFERTETREKEAE
basic earnings per share 1,350,274,367
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary share: B 5% /% H & @ik 2 2 -
Adjustment in relation to share options  FtZANA F13%17 2 M9 B4
issued by the Company B 2 % 1,473,511 12,813
Weighted average number of ordinary STESREERT 2 g
shares for the purpose of calculating FHHERREE
diluted earnings per share

1,350,274,367

1,351,747,878 1,350,287,180
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15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 15. REY =

FAIR VALUE A¥E
At beginning of the year == 8,688.3 7,654.7
Currency realignment B AR 73.9 3.8
Additions NE 864.7 406.5
Acquisition of a subsidiary (Note 32) U BB B A &) (P 5E32) 25.4 -
Change in fair value recognised in RERERZ
profit or loss NEEEZD
— Realised gains on disposals —HER 7D EE WS 14.5 -
— Unrealised gains — REFIR NS 1,874.8 623.3
Disposals HE (47.4) -
Transferred from property, EEaYE
plant and equipment s K 5% 47.9 -
Transferred to property, SRS
plant and equipment (Note 16) Wi K s s (I 7E16) (286.9) -
At end of the year FR 11,255.2 8,688.3
Note:  During the year ended 31 March 2018, the use of certain properties of MisE: MREZE2018FE3A31HILFE  EBETFY
the Group has been changed from capital appreciation and leasing out for rental X VAL HREAELRHBA(URREAS ) #EAX T A
income to owner-occupation. The investment properties amounting HK$286.9 A REERESEA.0OB BB 2R EMENE
million at date of transfer were transferred from investment properties to property, THEERZARREEETYE  RENEE -

plant and equipment at the date of commencement of owner-occupation.

For the year ended 31 March 2018, the Group disposed of certain HZE2018FIA3IHILIFE r EFEHES T
investment properties and the details of which are as follows: BYEZ BT

Sales proceeds received B HE TS FIE 47.4
Original cost of acquisitions Wi iE 7 FRAK AR B (19.2)
Accumulated gains on change in fair value BEFEEBRZATEED

recognised in prior years G (13.7)
Realised gains on disposal recognised during the year R HE MR 2 B 2R IS 14.5

For the year ended 31 March 2017, the Group did not dispose of HZE2017F3AZIHLFE EEUENET
any investment properties. A EME -
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The fair values of the Group’s investment properties at 31
March 2018, 31 March 2017 and the date of transfer from/to
property, plant and equipment have been derived by the following
independent firms of professional valuers with appropriate
qualifications and recent experiences in the valuation of similar
properties in the relevant locations.

Location of

Name of valuer investment properties

Cushman & Wakefield Limited
(formerly known as DTZ Cushman
& Wakefield Limited)

Hong Kong and
mainland China

JLL Morii Valuation & Advisory K.K. Japan
(2017: Cushman & Wakefield K.K.)
N&A Appraisal Company Limited Thailand

VALUATION TECHNIQUES

The fair value of investment properties located in Hong Kong is
determined either by using income capitalisation approach or
direct comparison approach. The income capitalisation approach
is calculated by capitalising the rental income derived from
the existing tenancies with due provision for any reversionary
income potential. The direct comparison approach assumes sale
of property interest in its existing state by making reference to
comparable sales transactions as available in the relevant market.

The valuation of investment property under construction is
determined by residual method based on capitalising the rental
income that would be generated from the investment property in its
completed form, and has taken into account the developers’ profit
and construction costs already incurred as well as the estimated
costs to be incurred to complete the project.

The fair value of investment properties located in mainland China
and Thailand is determined by using direct comparison approach
assuming sale of the property interest in its existing state by making
reference to comparable sales transactions as available in the
relevant market.

The fair value of investment properties located in Japan is
determined by using income capitalisation approach. The income
capitalisation approach is calculated by capitalising the rental
income derived from the existing tenancies with due provision for
any reversionary income potential.
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£EM2018F3A31H » 201743 A31HUK
EEE/EWE BERRBZAZEREDHE
NE - DEATEERE BRSO BEEHE
B2 B E AL 2 B BEAER
ITHEITIHERTHE ©

BREWE
EREEE %2 i E
HERITER AT BER
AR A
JLL Morii Valuation & =N
Advisory K.K.

(20174 : Cushman &
Wakefield K.K.)

N&A Appraisal B
Company Limited

HERIT

NREBBOREDEN R FEIERBAER
R BERLEBVEMERE - WMABRMOEEB
BAMEHER A T P WA T & YA E R SHE )
BEAELDBANEEREMNAE - ERLEER
FEBSERREMSA KL ATLBRZHERS
BRAMERAEREHEME RS MEE

EEREMENBESREKEESRTREY
RXELCHERABTRERNERREEZME
o WEF REREGN R EE ZZEKA
BTH B S TR A A Z fhRT A -

R E R R EENIREY RN A FETE
REZLBOE2EREM S AGL A LR
EXHBRAMERAREHENE#amE

):'_Eo

IR AREREMEN D FHETERRAER
OEMEE ° WABMEREBEMNRA
AP Y ER 9 2 W A G R SHE (] 7E R B E L
AREE BEMETH -



SUMMARY OF FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY AND LEVEL 3 FAIR
VALUE MEASUREMENTS

All of the Group’s property interests held under operating leases
to earn rentals or for capital appreciation purposes are measured
using the fair value model and are classified and accounted for as
investment properties. As at 31 March 2018 and 31 March 2017,
all investment properties of the Group are valued by reference to a
Level 3 fair value measurement.

The movements during the year in the balance of investment
properties under Level 3 fair value measurements are as follows:

AEEBRRE=EBRATVEHE
BE
SEMBRKEHEETHIERIE S IEE R
ERRZYERESIEAATERAGZE I
DEEARYIEREYE - K2018F3A31H
N2017F3A31H - EEZFEKREMEHZ
EE-EBRAFEFEMEE-

FRAE=ERAFEFE T ZRENEESRZ
HET

Investment
property
Investment under
properties construction
HK$'M HK$'M
BEAET BEAET
At 1 April 2016 201654818 7,654.7 - 7,654.7
Currency realignment B 3.8 - 3.8
Additions NE 406.5 - 406.5
Change in fair value recognised in -~ R BRER
profit or loss NSREL
- Unrealised gains —REHE 623.3 - 623.3
At 31 March 2017 #201743A318 8,688.3 - 8,688.3
Currency realignment Bk 73.9 - 73.9
Additions NE 798.9 65.8 864.7
Acquisition of a subsidiary g = NG|
(Note 32) (BF5E32) 25.4 - 25.4
Change in fair value recognised in -~ R1BHER 2
profit or loss ANTEEZH
- Realised gains on disposals —HER BB RIS 14.5 - 14.5
- Unrealised gains — KBRS 1,869.5 5.3 1,874.8
Disposals HE (47.4) - (47.4)
Transferred from property, EREYE
plant and equipment B R 3% - 47.9 47.9
Transferred to property, EREYE
plant and equipment W T 35 (286.9) - (286.9)
At 31 March 2018 72018%3H31H 11,136.2 119.0 11,255.2
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LEVEL 3 VALUATION METHODOLOGIES

Below is a table which presents the significant unobservable inputs:

EZEBRMEERE
TREF|ERTAIE S8 AR :
Unobservable inputs (note a)

FUBRRGARE (Ha)

Market rent Adjusted market price (note b)

Investment properties (note c)

Fair value

A7

Capitalisation rate

LUN(2S

(per square foot per month)
[ 5k
(BABEAR)

(per square foot)
BRABHHER(Kb)
(B¥ER)

REWE (M)
Hong Kong
6
Industrial (note d) HK$786.0 million 4.3% HK$18 N/A
(2017: HK$4,4430 milion) ~ (2017: 4.0% to 4.5%) (2017: HK$15 to HK$17)
HK$58.5 million 4.0% HK$18 to HK$37 N/A
(2017: HK$56.8 million) (2017: N/A) (2017: N/A) (2017: HK$7,000)
T#(M3ka) A EE 4.3% 18T TiEm
(20175 : 4,4430B8%w) (20174 : 4.0%Z4.5%) (20175 158 LE17/ETL)
585H 2L 4.0% 18BTLESTAT TER

(2017% : 56.8EEBTT)

(20174 - M)

(20175 - TER)

(20175 : 7,00087T)

Commercial (note d) ~ HK$7,789.2 million 3.5%107.4% HK$17 to HK$73 N/A
(2017: HK$2,489.9 milion) ~ (2017: 6.1% 10 7.8%) (2017: HK$25 to HKST1)
B (M) 77802BE% T 35%ET7.4% 1TBTEISET Taf
(20175 : 2,4809RBAT) (20174 : 6.1%%7.8%) (2017% : 5B LETIAT)
Residential HK$862.1 milion N/A N/A HK$6,900 to HK$25,500
(2017: HK$751.6 million) (2017 HK$5,820 to HK$22,200)
fFE 862 1BEATL TR TER 6,900871 22550087
(2017% : 751 BEEAT) (20175 : 5,820/ 7£22,20087T)
Mainland China
IR
Residential HK$198.4 millon N/A N/A RMB9,000 to RMB12,100
(2017: HK$129.7 million) (2017: RMB5,900 to RMB7,900)
fFE 1984BEAT TEfA TER ARE9,000EARE12,1007T
(20175  120.7E&ET) (20174 + ARH5,900m%
AEH7,9007)
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Unobservable inputs (note a)
TUEEE A B (Hzta)
Market rent
(per square foot per month)
mEfe
(BAB¥ER)

Adjusted market price (note b)

(per square foot)
RARTIRER(Hab)
(B¥ER)

Fair value Capitalisation rate
AVE -N(#:
Thailand
ZE
Residential HK$343.9 milion N/A
(2017: HK$13.0 million)
£ M3IEEAET TER
(2017% : 13.0EB%TL)
Japan
AE
Commercial HK$302.7 million 4.0%
(2017: HK$285.6 million) (2017: 4.0%)
B 027TABAT 4.0%
(20175 - 285.6B&BT) (20175 : 4.0%)
Residential HK$795.4 milion 3.5% t0 4.3%
(2017: HK$518.7 million) (2017: 3.5% 10 4.3%)
fFE T954BERT 3.5%%4.3%

(20174 - 51B7TEEATL) (20175 : 3.5%%4.3%)

Investment properties under construction (note c)

ERRENE ()
Hong Kong
Bk
Commercial HK$119.0 milion 6.1%
(2017: nil (2017: N/A)
BE RENEES 6.1%
(20175 : ) (20175 : TER)
Notes:

(@ The relationships of unobservable inputs to fair value are (i) the higher the
capitalisation rate, the lower the fair value; (i) the higher the market rent, the
higher the fair value; and (jii) the higher the adjusted market price, the higher the
fair value.

(b) Adjusted market price has taken into account of property-specific
adjustments including location and timing of reference transactions.

(c) Fair value measurement of investment properties is positively correlated
to the market rent and adjusted market price, but inversely correlated to the
capitalisation rate.

(d) During the year ended 31 March 2017, the Group had obtained approval
to convert an investment property from industrial to commercial use and the
refurbishment works were underway. Such property was valued at HK$3,740.0
million as at 31 March 2017 and classified as industrial property. The
refurbishment works were completed during the year ended 31 March 2018 and
such property is then classified as commercial property.

N/A THB2,200 to THB6,500
(2017: THB5,800 to THB21,500)
TNEH 2,200 4k 26,5005
(20174 : 5,800% 821,500 5)
JPY700 N/A
(2017: JPY700)
700H il
(2017% : 700E )
JPY410t0 JPY510 N/A
(2017: JPY410 to JPY510)
40BEZ5108E TER
(20174 : 410BEZ510ER)
HK$50 N/A
(2017: N/A)
5057T Tam

(2017 : 1@A)

GEX

(@) THABERABBRATEBLHR/NEREE
e ATESE: (TEEsEs  ATEES &
(EHETSERLS  ATESES -

(o) ERHETSERCTREEDEAR(RELER
2ERGZKHE) -

0 BEMENATEFEETSHES REHBETHE
RE2ILAAR - BEENMCEA2RAARH -

(d) REZE2017F3A31ALLFE  SECEEHE B
BREMERT XS ARERABRNIE L IEEETH
T2 - ZWENR2017F3A31AEEAS,740.0E88
BN EATEDE - REE2018F3A31HIEF
E oBHIBERT  MBEMEBESEAEED
% °
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16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16. Y% - BERRE

Furniture, Plant, Ferries,
Leasehold Commercial fitures  machinery  launches
Hotel  Freehold landand  and leisure Leasehold and and  and motor Construction

properties land  buildings  facilities improvements equipment  equipment vehicles  in progress

B8 i BR- iR Ba
EENE XAERLE tHRET RERRE AENERE LERRR ASRRE SRRRE  ERIR
HKS'M HKS'M HKS'M HKS'M HKS'M HKS'M HKS'M HKS'M HKS'M
BEET REET EEER  BEER BRET FAEET BEET  BRET  AEER

COST FE
At 1 April 2016 R201654A18 1,408.0 238.2 608.5 654.3 3000 285.1 67.8 5114 182 40915
Currency reaignment gz 17 52 (02 - (16 (44 0.1 03 02 105
Additions AE 91 - 285 126 210 476 - 75.3 399 240.0
Disposalsiwrte-of e g ] - - - 08) (35) - (158) - (78)
Reclassification Exip ] 13 - - - - 05 - 02) (16) -
At 31 March 2017 R201753A31R 14222 2434 636.8 666.9 3248 3253 6r.7 5706 56.7 43144
Currency reaignment EHaE 61.0 272 (05) - 07 05 - 05 13 907
Additions HE 91 - 06 - 61.3 322 - 274 844 2147
Aoquisition of a subsiciary (Note 32) ~ WEMBAA (Hi5432) - - - - - - - 20 - 20
Disposals/write-off HEMH (63.9) - 2119 - (17.2) (.7) - (33.0) (1.2) (3324
Trangfer from investment properties  EEB%ENE

(Note 15) (Ifsk15) - - 2869 - - - - - - 2869
Transfer to investment properties ~ EBZHENE - - - - - - - - (433 33
Redlassfication EFipE| 243 - - - - - - - (249) -
At 31 March 2018 R2018F3A31A 1,463.1 210.6 7120 666.9 369.6 352.3 67.7 567.2 63.6 45330
DEPRECIATION AND IMPAIRMENT #E R &
At 1 April 2016 R2016F4A18 5259 - 1738 4052 195.6 2018 6r.7 436.1 - 2,006.1
Currency reaignment EaE 99 - (0.9 - (15) (39) 01 02) - 42
Provided for the year RERRR 548 - 128 153 U7 23 - 197 - 1484
Eliminated on disposals/write-off HEMHE LS (7.9 - - - (02 (29 - (156) - (262)
Reclassffcation EFAE 06 - - - - - - 06) - -
At 31 March 2017 R2017F3A31R 5835 - 186.5 4205 2186 2164 67.6 4394 - 21325
Currency realignment EHER 517 - 01 - - (05) - 04 - 517
Provided for the year TFEEE 59 - 15.2 156 295 239 . 209 . 1610
Eliminated on disposalsiwite-off &/ ®9 - (294) - (158) (4 - (329 - (1254)
At 31 March 2018 R2018F3A31A 649.2 - 1724 436.1 2823 2844 67.6 4278 - 22198
CARRYING VALUES KA
At 31 March 2018 R2018F3A31A 8139 210.6 530.6 2308 137.3 117.9 01 139.4 63.6 23132
At31 March 2017 R201753A31H 838.7 2434 450.3 2464 106.2 108.9 01 131.2 56.7 21819
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ltems of property, plant and equipment, other than construction EREIRNAINZZE  BEREBEEZAT
in progress, are depreciated on a straight-line basis, over their {hEt Rl A EEA LN ESEITE -
estimated useful lives as follows:

Freehold land No depreciation KA FERE T W E

Hotel properties 3-40 years B JE 5 3-40%F

Leasehold land and buildings, 5-50 years, or over MELHEEF - 5-504F sk fii g -
commercial and leisure facilities the lease term if shorter 7 A M ER 458 e Bl AHEEHR

Leasehold improvements 5 years, or over the lease HEWMERE SEF B -

term if shorter Rl A EHR

Furniture, fixtures and equipment 3-7 years R, KB RERE 3-7F

Plant, machinery and equipment 5-15 years WE - WS REHE  5-15%F

Ferries, launches and motor vehicles 3-20 years i AN RIAE 3-20%F

17. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES/AMOUNTS 17. B & ’Z\\ 7] 2 FE 25/ e Y B
DUE FROM ASSOCIATES /N 7 IE

Cost of unlisted shares I ETIRAD 2 AR - -
Share of reserve DEFEE - -
Share of post-acquisition losses, MU EEREE
net of dividends received nrEWARE = -
Amounts due from associates JRE LBt & X B RRIE
(Note 24(b)) (Bf3E24(b)) 592.5 592.3
Share of post-acquisition losses of DIEBRHORMEETBEH 2
associates covered by binding BN Rz WEEREE
obligation (note) (PH3E) (584.4) (584.2)
8.1 8.1
Note:  The Group is obliged to make good the net deficits of Tung Chung e © SBEZED ETung Chung Station Development
Station Development Company Limited (“TCSDCL”) and Polyoung Limited Company Limited ([ TCSDCL J) R i# % AR A 7 (&
(“Polyoung”) in proportion to its interests in TCSDCL and Polyoung. At the end w 1) 2 FEBE - A AERTCSDOL R iEE 2 s o
of the reporting period, the Group’s obligation in this connection amounted to RBEMR SEHEANEBEEARB844BEET
HK$584.4 million (2017: HK$584.2 million) and accordingly, the same amount (20174 : 584.2B B EIL) * ZELBMENEA MK
has been recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position and MEERIWHEEL FTCSDCOL K H i 2 BRI o

presented as a deduction from the Group’s advances to TCSDCL and Polyoung.
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Details of the principal associates of the Group as at 31 March

2018 are set out in Note 42(c).

The summarised financial information of the Group’s associates is
set out below:

EEA2018F3ANHR T EMENRI 215
EHFBIEE42(c) °

SEBERARZHBEMRBHINAT

Total assets BEREE 28.6 29.8
Total liabilities BfEMEE (1,913.6) (1,914.2)
Net liabilities BEFHE (1,885.0) (1,884.4)
Group’s share of net assets EESEEEFRE - -
Group’s share of net liabilities SE LB EFHE (584.4) (584.2)

(584.4) (584.2)
Turnover o 0.2 0.2
Loss for the year REEERE (0.6) (0.6)
Group’s share of results for the year EEDEARFEELE (0.2) 0.2)

The financial information in respect of each of the Group’s
associates is not material and no separate summarised financial

information of each associate is presented.

18. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES

The interests in joint ventures include the Group’s 50% equity
interest in Dazhongli. An analysis is as follows:

ERSESBERRZMBEMLIFEAX -
M ER S ENR 2 BB BENIE -

o)
i3
D
o)
NG
i
Bl
)
oh
i
JeE)
%
>|_
-
B
N
(@]
(@}
X
==

Interests in: Rk
Dazhongli A B 7,011.3 6,352.7
Other joint ventures EMEEAn 2,060.9 2,011.5
9,072.2 8,364.2
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DAZHONGLI

Dazhongli and its subsidiaries (“Dazhongli group”) are engaged in
the development of investment properties and hotel properties in
the Jing’an District of Shanghai in mainland China.

R 8
AP BEREMBAR ([ KPEEE )R EH
RUNPEAM EEMEFLE 2 IRENENE
JEWIE o

Cost of unlisted shares JE TR Z B A 0.1 0.1
Cumulate exchange differences (note a) 2 :HFE K ZZE(Mitta) 771.8 154.4
Share of post-acquisition profits DEULEE 18 = A 1,506.9 1,499.3
2,278.8 1,653.8

Loans to Dazhonglli BERTARHE
— Non-interest bearing (note b) — % B (KizEb) 4,436.3 4,436.3
— Interest bearing (note ¢) — &t B (FisEc) 296.2 262.6
7,011.3 6,352.7

Notes:

(@) These represent the exchange realignment and exchange differences
relating to translation of the loans advanced by the Group to Dazhongli, which
are denominated in US dollars and HK dollars, that form part of net investment in
foreign operations.

(b) The loans to Dazhongli are unsecured, non-interest bearing and have no
fixed terms of repayment. The Group has no intention to exercise its right to
demand repayment of these loans within the next twelve months from the end
of the reporting period. The directors of the Company believe the settlement of
these loans is not likely to occur in the foreseeable future as they, in substance,
from part of net investment in Dazhongli group as the proceeds of the loans
have been substantially used by Dazhongli to inject as registered capital into its
PRC subsidiaries. Accordingly, the amount is classified as non-current asset and
included in the Group’s interests in joint ventures for the purpose of presentation
in the consolidated statement of financial position.

() The loans to Dazhongli are unsecured, interest bearing at 1.71% (2017:
1.71%) per annum and repayable in December 2019. Accordingly, the amount
is classified as non-current asset and included in the Group’s interests in joint
ventures for the purpose of presentation in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

B -

@ HEEFHRESERNATERRZELXBERE
RER  ZELBEARTIELIE - XHBERRIEI
EBREFEED -

b) HTRPBZERDERN - 2EREETER
B REBENREPRRESRART —EARTEE
BN BREEZEENR - ARKPEESERNE
ZRBAFEEIAEPBEMBARERAEMER » &
RAEEHEZFERBTERN A RRREEE - ¥
ZEBRERRATEEBEZ N R EFH - Fut -
REEMBRRARZ2IME - FESBEEIMEER
PEE Yt NEEREE AR

© KWTRTFEZERDERT  BFFNEL1.71%
(20174 + 1.71% ) T B R BN 2019F 12 B & -
It AU BRARZZ2ME - BESEDIIE
EREEE @ Wt AEBREE QR ZHER ©
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The summarised consolidated financial information in respect of KA EBEE£BER2018F3 31 H &201743 A31
Dazhongli group as at 31 March 2018 and 31 March 2017 is set B GRaMBERBESHIIMT -

out below.

The joint venture is accounted for using the equity method in these
consolidated financial statements.

Non-current assets ERBE E
Investment properties REME 22,886.0 20,541.4
Property, plant and equipment ME - B M RE 2,097.1 1,052.5
Other non-current assets HitnpmEh&EE 250.5 151.6
25,233.6 21,745.5

Current assets MEVEE
Bank balances and cash RITEBR LIRS 1,115.6 811.3
Other current assets HithmEh & &= 608.2 231.2
1,723.8 1,042.5
Current liabilities mEAE

Loans from shareholders REER 8,893.0 8,881.5
Other current liabilities HingaE 2,068.7 1,812.2
10,961.7 10,693.7
Net current liabilities MENEEFE (9,237.9) (9,651.2)
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBDAG 15,995.7 12,094.3

Non-current liabilities SEREIBE
Bank loans RITER 9,421.3 7,077.0
Loans from shareholders BRERER 571.9 516.2
Deferred tax liabilities ELEFIBAE 1,444.9 1,193.5
11,438.1 8,786.7
Net assets BEZFE 4,557.6 3,307.6
Group’s share of net assets EEDEEEFE 2,278.8 1,653.8
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For the year ended 31 March

HZ3H31BLEE
2018 2017
HK$’'M HK$'M
BEER BEETT

Revenue WA 1,023.5 155.5
Direct operating expenses HEEEEY T (342.9) (82.7)

680.6 72.8
Change in fair value of investment REMEANTEE

properties 28.2 1,068.1

Other expenses Hix B (255.9) (134.7)
Finance costs W%sER (322.0) (132.7)
Taxation | (115.7) (817.7)
Net profit after taxation for the year NEERTIEFHT 15.2 555.8
Group’s share of results for the year EEDMAFEEE 7.6 277.9

Note:  The investment properties were measured at 31 March 2018 at
fair value of HK$22,886.0 million (equivalent to RMB18,337.4 million) (2017:
HK$20,541.4 million (equivalent to RMB18,236.4 million)) which was based on
the valuation conducted by Cushman & Wakefield Limited, who has appropriate
qualification and recent experiences in the valuation of similar properties in
the relevant locations. The valuation of investment properties is determined by
using income capitalisation approach. The income capitalisation approach is
calculated by capitalising the rental income derived from the existing tenancies
with due provision for any reversionary income potential. The valuation of
investment property under construction was derived from residual method based
on capitalising the net earnings that would be generated from the investment
property in their completed form, and has taken into account the developers’
profit and construction costs already incurred as well as the estimated costs to
be incurred to complete the property. The fair value measurement of investment
property is valued under Level 3 fair value measurement, which is measured
based on the significant unobservable inputs including the estimated market
rent, capitalisation rate and developers’ profit. The increase in the balance of
investment properties for the year ended 31 March 2018 as stated above was
due to the fair value gain of HK$28.2 million (2017: HK$1,068.1 million) and
additions to investment properties. The attributable deferred taxation charge in
respect of the gain was HK$7.1 million (2017: HK$267.0 million). Thus the net
fair value gain after tax amounted to HK$21.1 million (2017: HK$801.1 million)
of which the Group’s 50% share of gain was HK$10.6 million (2017: HK$400.5
million). The investment properties are held within a business model of the
joint venture whose business objective is to consume substantively all of the
economic benefits embodied in the investment properties over time, rather than
through sale.

Mk : RIEBEHEZTERARETZHE  BED
¥72018F3A31H 2 AF1E4522,886.0E &5 L (1
ENARY18,337.4B&7T) (20174 : 20,541.48 &
BIT(HENRARK18,236.4EETT)) ° XA BIFERH
I AEMEBEAEABESBER KL
5o REBMEZEEDNERARAENEMERE - I
ABRCEBBENMCME SR RIMOHA S RAE
FETBE AT BB R AN EE REMAtE - £
BMEZHEDBEBESACRIREMEEL Y FR
MExEAERBELIMNEE  LEARERERE
REBEEZEENNEYETTHES ZHTRAE -
BREMEZAFEAENRE-ERAFESER
B HDDERERTAHRE A SR (RIEHTTSEHE
& BRMEERBREGEF)HE - REE2018F3A
S1HILFE  BEWELEHIN ATz EE - TR
AFEWE28.2EHEBIL(20174F + 1,068.1HEHBT)
RARBIREBWE - B BEREHRELHAT 1R
EATL(20174F 1 267.0E @B L) - MINKRHEIEERZ
AFEFREA21IEBEBIT(2017F : 801.18EH
TL)  EEDEEWZEZ50% ¢ BI10.6EEB L (2017
F:4005BEBT) BWEMEUAGERRIZHER
AEFE MABBEAZEKENIEREERZSE
EMEMBEZBRDDLENZ  MIEBRBLES
Eﬁ °
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Level 3 valuation methodology FZBREESE

Below is a table which presents the significant unobservable inputs: TREJNERT B RE ASUE -

Unobservable inputs (note a)

AAHER ABIE (Ma)

Estimated market rent
Fair value Capitalisation rate (per square metre per month) Developers’ profit

AVE ExE et e (BAGTAK) BRERA

Investment properties (note b)

HEME(MFD)
Mainland China
FEIRH
Commercial HK$22,886.0 million 3.5% 10 5.0% RMB239 to RMB861 4.0%
(2017: HK$20,541.4 million) (2017: 3.5% to 5.0%) (2017: RMB237 to RMB909) (2017: 1.0% to 10.0%)
[GES 22,886.08 & /57T 3.5%%5.0% AR#239mE AR#8617T 4.0%
(20174 : 20,5414 &%) (20175 :3.5%%5.0%) (20174 « AR¥237LE (20175 : 1.0%%
AR#9097T) 10.0%)
Notes: FiE
(@) The relationship of unobservable inputs to fair value are () the higher the (@) TABRHASBEANFERZBRABNER X
capitalisation rate, the lower the fair value; (ii) the higher the estimated market e AFEEE: (fEFmEEels  AFER
rent, the higher the fair value; and (iii) the higher the developers’ profit, the lower = R(iVERmAENES  AFEES -
the fair value.
(b) Fair value measurement of investment properties is positively correlated to b) BEMENARFEFERGFMSHS2ERE -
the estimated market rent, but inversely correlated to the capitalisation rate and 1B B3 7Rl 3 J B TR v e A1 B 2 AR o

developers’ profit.

The capital commitments of Dazhongli group at 31 March 2018 A EEER2018F3A31H %201743 A31
and 31 March 2017 are as follows: AZBRAZNT :

Contracted but not provided for EEROIBERIERE 129.1 565.2

The capital commitments of Dazhongli group attributable to the SERARFEEE ZEREAEL LS
Group represent 50% of the amounts stated above, will be financed 50% @ HEHBRFRERIAFEEE 2 HEE
by shareholders’ loan or direct borrowings of Dazhongli group. ERNES -
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OTHER JOINT VENTURES THAT ARE NOT INDIVIDUALLY
MATERIAL

AKX N\
E=NVAN

HiERIZEEAZEERF]

Cost of unlisted shares JEETIRGD Z B A 6.3 6.3
Share of reserve DG (3.4) (1.2)
Share of post-acquisition gains (losses), D 1EUIERZ U S (1) -
net of dividends received MR B WA S 37.2 (5.1)
40.1 -
Loans to other joint ventures (note) BERTHEMELRF(MT) 2,020.8 2,011.5
2,060.9 2,011.5
Note:  The loans to other joint ventures are unsecured and have no fixed terms Wi BEXRTEMEEQRNEERARTERTER
of repayment. As at 31 March 2018, the loans to other joint ventures included Bl - R2018F3HA31H  ERTHEMEERRIEES

an amount of HK$1,245.1 million (2017: HK$1,257.7 million) bearing interest
at fixed rates from 3% to 3.5% (2017: 3% to 3.5%) per annum and an amount
of HK$108.9 million (2017: nil) bearing interest at 2% per annum over 1-month
Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate (“HIBOR”). The remaining balance is non-
interest bearing. The Group has no intention to exercise its right to demand
repayment of these loans within the next twelve months from the end of the
reporting period. Accordingly, the amount is classified as non-current asset and
included in the Group’s interests in joint ventures for the purpose of presentation
in the consolidated statement of financial position.

The summarised financial information in respect of other joint
ventures as at 31 March 2018 and 31 March 2017 is set out below:

1,245 1B BB L(20174F  1,257.7A BB L) ¥R
B EFEMEI%ZEZ.5% (20174 : 3%E3.5%) st B2
H AREEA108.98 BB L(20174 « ) Wiz—{@
ABEBRITAEREENFERE2%TEZRIE - 8T
HEARE - REEENREWRBITRKT=@EA
RITHEHER - ZREEZEENR - Bt - REEY
BHRRAKRZE2VME BERSBEEIEERBEE -
W AEBMAEGE AR ZHES -

HpEER

AIF20184E3 A31H N201743 A

1R ZHMEERBZHI T -

Total assets BEBE 6,496.9 6,201.2

Total liabilities BEBRE (6,487.1) (6,249.9)
Net assets (liabilities) BE(BE)FE 9.8 (48.7)
Group’s share of net assets SRS HEEFE 40.1 -

Turnover e 568.7 -
Net profit (loss) after taxation for the year ZR4FE R F1EF 5w F (BE) 62.7 (35.0)
Group’s share of results for the year EBDERFEEE 40.8 (17.3)

Details of the principal joint ventures of the Group as at 31 March
2018 and 31 March 2017 are set out in Note 42(d).

SEMN201853A31H R2017F3A31BEE
BARERFRZFHBHNMEEA2(d) °
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 #Z=2018F3A31 B I F/E

19. INVESTMENTS IN DEBT AND EQUITY 19. EEEBRARBEFEZ2KRE
SECURITIES
Fair value measurement
at 31 March 2018 using
M2018%F3H31H
ATEFE
Level 1
E—ER
HK$'M
BHEBT
Held-to-maturity investments BFEIHEE
Debt securities (note a) BEES (M)
Current e 33.3
Non-current FETRE 96.9
130.2
Available-for-sale financial assets AtHESRERE
Listed, at fair value (note b) EH o BATFE D) 49.6 49.6 -
Unlisted, at fair value (note c) LT RAFE
(Ff5Ec) 61.0 - 61.0
110.6 49.6 61.0
Analysed for reporting purposes as:  AZBMEHZHFTMT
Non-current IETH 110.6
Market value of listed equity securities: TR AES 2 T{E :
Listed in Hong Kong REB LT 37.4 37.4 -
Listed overseas RgshEm 12.2 12.2 =
49.6 49.6 -
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Fair value measurement
at 31 March 2017 using
201743 H31H

NHERTE
Level 1
E—ER
HK$'M
BEAT
Held-to-maturity investments HEIERE
Debt securities (note a) ERESH(fFFa)
Current RE 48.3
Non-current IERE 107.6
155.9
Available-for-sale financial assets ARHESRERE
Listed, at fair value (note b) Ei o BAFE D) 50.0 50.0 -
Unlisted, at fair value (note c) FEET - BAFE ) 37.9 - 37.9
87.9 50.0 37.9
Analysed for reporting purposes as:  AZHBEHZATWT ¢
Non-current ERH 87.9
Market value of listed equity securities: R A EH 2 T{E :
Listed in Hong Kong REELT 37.4 37.4 -
Listed overseas g T 12.6 12.6 -
50.0 50.0 -
Notes: MoaE -

(@) Held-to-maturity debt securities are measured at amortised cost less any
impairment losses. The fair value of the held-to-maturity debt securities as at 31
March 2018 is HK$131.4 million (2017: HK$169.6 million) which is valued by
reference to the Level 1 fair value measurement deriving from quoted prices in
active market for identical assets. The weighted average effective interest rate is
6.1% (2017: 6.2%) per annum.

As at 31 March 2017, included in held-to-maturity debt securities were impaired
financial assets with carrying amount of HK$11.6 million, net of the impairment
loss recognised of HK$7.3 million. No impairment loss was recognised during the
years ended 31 March 2018 and 2017. A reversal of impairment loss amounting
to HK$7.3 million (2017: nil) was recognised during the year ended 31 March
2018.

(b) The fair value of all listed equity securities are determined by reference to the
quoted market bid prices available on the relevant exchanges in active markets as
at 31 March 2018 and 31 March 2017.

(a) HEEB|HIEE B ST DA AR AT R EE 1Bt
£ 2 M20185F3HA31H » BEZMEKIHF 2 AFER
131.4ABFEBIIT(20174  169.6 ASBBT) * ZAFE
heEERMS FHRAAEZ REMEZE—EHRA
FEFEMEE - MEFHERFFEF6.1%(2017
F:6.2%)°

MR201763A31H F FEIHEBESFRIEEEDES
6EBBLZERECHEE  HIKCHERNEBEE
B7.3EEAETT - REZE2018F K20179E3A31HIEF
B BMEERRBEERE - RNEE2018F3A31HIEF
B EHRESETIEEBIL(2017F - &) ZRAEER
B[ -

(o) P LTRAES 2 AFEIHIZER201843H31

HE201743AB1 A ERT S 2 HBAR M2 Ti5E
ANBREMEE
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 #Z=2018F3A31 B I F/E

(c) Unlisted available-for-sale financial assets represent investment in private
equity funds at HK$61.0 million (2017: HK$37.9 million) which are measured using
valuation techniques based on inputs that can be observed in the market in
addition to unobservable inputs such as company specific financial information.

The Group uses the key inputs of market comparable companies and discounted
cash flows, which include the valuation multiples and recent transaction price, to
determine the fair value of the unlisted private equity funds as at 31 March 2018
and 31 March 2017. The unobservable inputs are valuation multiples, discount
for lack of marketability and discount rate. Valuation multiples include enterprise
value divided by earnings before interest and taxes, and price-to-sales multiples.
The higher the valuation multiples, the lower the discount for lack of marketability
or the lower the discount rate, the higher the fair value.

No sensitivity analysis is disclosed for the impact of changes in the relevant
unobservable data as the management considers that the exposure is

insignificant to the Group.

The movement in the unlisted available-for-sale financial assets is as follows:

© LETAHRMESRAERLERBESZIRE
61.08&EL(20174F : 37.90&ET) - JVEMRMME
BIOHtE - ZEROP 2B A2 RRETERTIS
FERTABERGAZE (WNARBERBEER) ME

==

TE °

ERFERAMSLEALRATZEZEGASBRIRR
SR (ETFEEGEERIONKARE) RETIELT
LEREESR2018F3A31HR2017F3A3IBZA
FE - TR ABBEGERSE  RRTSRE
MZIERMAE - HESHBELEBERURT
BERMEA AT  AREBEREHEEHEEH - HERS
S - RETISRB 2 PTiR MUE SR IR R MUK -
BlAFEERS -

HREEERREHRREEEMFLTEKR - QI
ERERATEREEEY P ERBEGRESN -

FEMAHEESHEEZEFHNT

Balance at beginning of the year FkE 37.9 50.5
Acquisition during the year FRUYHE 23.9 2.5
Total gain (loss) W (518 ) 45
In profit or loss =t 1.6 2.2
In other comprehensive income REMEEREF 3.9 B.2)
Proceeds from disposal HERTS A (6.3) (14.1)
Balance at end of the year FRER 61.0 37.9

Included in other comprehensive income for the year ended 31 March 2018 was
a gain of HK$1.6 million (2017: HK$2.2 million) related to unlisted available-for-
sale financial assets which had been reclassified to profit or loss from investment
revaluation reserve upon disposal.

There was no transfer among different levels of the fair value
hierarchy in the current and prior years.
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FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS AND VALUATION PROCESSES

The Group determines the appropriate valuation techniques and
inputs for Level 3 fair value measurements.

In estimating the fair value of unlisted private equity funds, the
Group uses market-observable data to the extent it is available. The
valuation is performed at the end of each reporting period. Where
there is material change in the fair value of the assets, the cause of
the fluctuations will be reported to the management of the Group.

Information about the valuation techniques and inputs used in
determining the fair value of assets are disclosed above.

20. OTHER ASSETS

NEFE MEERR

SERE=BRAFEFEETAENGER
T3 R B AR ©

RIEFHEEMALBRERE S 2 A FER - &8
RATTERTREEATMSAIBEREUE - fE
REBREMRET - WEEZAFELREXN
2y HRBHzRAEAFNEEERERS -

ERETEEAHEMERZBERLDRBA
BB 2 BRI EXHEE -

20. HEE

Mortgage instalment receivables (note a)  fE U %38 5 BRIt 2k (Bt ira) 31.5 25.3
Loan to an investee (note b) mAREREHRER (D) 106.6 106.6
Unlisted membership debentures and FEEMEEEFR
other assets Hib&EEE 12.5 12.4
150.6 144.3
Notes: MoaE -

(@) The mortgage instalment receivables represent the financing provided to
buyers of development properties of the Group. The amounts bear interest
at prime rate or prime rate minus 1% and are receivable by instalments over
a period of not more than 25 years (2017: 25 years) from the sale of relevant
flats. The receivables are secured by a second mortgage over the respective
properties. The portion of mortgage instalment receivables due within one year of
HK$1.3 million (2017: HK$1.2 million) is included as trade receivables in current
assets.

(o) The Group owns a 15% interest in an unlisted company incorporated in
Singapore which holds a commercial complex comprising a retail mall, 2 office
towers and a hotel in Tianjin, the PRC. The loan is unsecured, interest-free
and repayable on demand. The Group has no intention to exercise its right to
demand repayment of these loans within the next twelve months from the end
of the reporting period. Accordingly, the amount is classified as non-current
asset for the purpose of presentation in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

(a) EUHRIBS BEFA NIRRT EERRMEER 26
& o HERIERERF RN ZEEFERI%E - I
SERBBEEEME LB TBIB25F (20174F « 25%F)
Ao ERURE o U TR T IA BRI EIEE — R8I
oo WA BBISEEBIL(2017F - 128EF TR
—FREZERIZBES BHREAARSDEEZE
W E ZERFRA ©

(o) EER—REMMEAMALZIE ETARES
15% s « ZARRPERRITE - BEEER
BE—EBEYTL  MERPLERER —FBEE - Z
EXRERR  2ERREREER KEEER®RS
HIREF AR T —BEARNTEEERN  BEREEZS
B o At - EGAHBHRRRZ2IME - BH2
BOIMEIFRBIEE -
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21. INVENTORIES 21. 7€

Consumables SFEm 44.6 47.6
22. PROPERTIES HELD FOR/UNDER 22, HEEFRR/IZEDY
DEVELOPMENT FOR SALE E S

Properties held for/under development for & &E At HEFE R/

sale in Hong Kong BRPYE

Discovery Bay development project s E%RIAR 2,392.9 1,765.6

Other projects Eib1EE - 954.7
Properties held for/under development for 25835 SMit H & 524 R/

sale outside Hong Kong BRERPYE 3,153.5 2,035.2

5,546.4 4,755.5

At the end of the reporting period, total borrowing costs capitalised REEAR - 6.3 BB L(20174F : 23.68
in the properties held for/under development for sale were HK$6.3 BB ZREERAD BIEH N e R/
million (2017: HK$23.6 million). The properties held for/under RAPEZRA - 3,270.98 8 T(20174F ¢
development for sale amounting to HK$3,270.9 million (2017: 3,6208BEBTT) 2 HEEFER/BRFY
HK$3,629.8 million) are expected to be recovered after twelve ¥TEHRREHRE =@ A% UE -
months from the end of the reporting period.
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23. TRADE RECEIVABLES

The credit periods allowed by the Group to its customers are
dependent on the general practices in the industries concerned.
For property sales, sales terms vary for each property project and
are determined with reference to the prevailing market conditions.
Property rentals are receivable in advance. Payments for
healthcare, clubs and hotel services are receivable on demand.

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables presented
based on the payment due date at the end of the reporting period:

23. EIWE ZERR

SEGTHEPZEENRTEA—RENE
E o MMEHEMS - HERKIRSWEER
ME  WR2MEFTRNETE - WEHESARSE
B - BERR  SMOBEERBZEREAR
EREFHAS o

AT R REWE RN IS ARIZ I B 51 B
2 Z BRI DT -

Not yet due i 7 B 2R 1.7 9.5

Overdue: wH
0-60 days 0-60XK 23.9 18.9
61-90 days 61-90K 2.7 2.0
Over 90 days TR EIS 0N 1.5 2.3
29.8 32.7

Included in the Group’s trade receivable balances are receivables
with aggregate carrying amount of HK$28.1 million (2017: HK$23.2
million) which are past due at the end of the reporting period for
which the Group has not provided for impairment loss. The Group
does not hold any collateral over these balances.

The Group has provided allowance for receivables overdue beyond
120 days because historical experience is such that receivables
that are past due beyond 120 days are generally not recoverable.
Management closely monitors the credit quality of trade receivables
and considers the trade receivables that are neither past due nor
impaired to be of a good credit quality.

SECERESEFREHBEERREHRE
EIEAT S B R BB E B B E L B s 2 B
B EEEARA28.1AEBT(2017F ¢
232AEBL)  c EEVERZSABITEE
(G ERTID

SEC BB 120K 2 B WA K ETHe
B RN REBEBEESR - ZFAMEE
120K Z AR — BT R YL E - BB
NERRKREZERCEEER  TRBLE
WiEBRNFEZEWEFERER R ZE
EEx-
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MOVEMENT IN THE ALLOWANCE FOR DOUBTFUL DEBTS

RERE R E

Balance at beginning of the year FH 4k 11.9 1.7
Impairment loss recognised on FEU AR 3 2 B RERR
receivables RIEBE 0.7 0.7
Amounts recovered during the year FRYE 2 KR8 - 0.2)
Amounts written off as uncollectible B AEEE 2 5RIE (3.1) -
Currency realignment AR (0.1) 0.3)
Balance at end of the year FRER 9.4 11.9
24. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS 4. EtbemEE
(@ DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES/BANK BALANCES (@) Ze MEAMEIGIE/IRITA

AND CASH

Included in other receivables is an amount of HK$181.1 million
(2017: HK$280.2 million) which relates to sale proceeds arising
from property sales that are held by stakeholders. Bank balances
and cash represent cash held by the Group and short-term bank
deposits at market interest rate ranging from 0.01% to 2.86% (2017:
0.01% to 1.71%) per annum as at 31 March 2018.

(b) AMOUNTS DUE FROM ASSOCIATES

The amounts due from associates are unsecured, non-trade
nature, non-interest bearing and have no fixed terms of repayment.

(c) LOANTO A JOINT VENTURE/AMOUNTS DUE FROM
JOINT VENTURES

The loan to a joint venture of the Group is unsecured, non-interest
bearing and has no fixed terms of repayment.

The amounts due from joint ventures are unsecured, non-interest
bearing and repayable on demand.
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25. TRADE PAYABLES, PROVISION AND
ACCRUED CHARGES

Included in trade payables, provision and accrued charges are
trade payables of HK$176.2 million (2017: HK$251.5 million), an
aged analysis presented based on the payment due date at the
end of the reporting period is as follows:

25 ENEZRM BERE
TEH

EREBESENR  BEREFERTREEMNE
SIRF176.2BEBIL(20174F : 251,568 &8
T0) c W ARRERRIZEBARASET
ZERER DT

Not yet due % 7 2 R 123.0 129.3

Overdue: #H
0-60 days 0-60KX 413 92.0
61-90 days 61-90K 1.0 0.8
Over 90 days HBBI0K 10.9 29.4
176.2 251.5

The average credit period on purchases of goods and payment for
subcontractor works is 90 days.

The trade payables, provision and accrued charges include (i)
construction cost accruals of HK$291.7 million (2017: HK$107.4
million); and (ii) provisions for certain construction obligations of
HK$328.5 million (2017: HK$328.5 million). In the course of the
property development activities, the Group is obliged to construct
certain common or public facilities within the development projects
in accordance with the development plans approved by the
relevant authorities. Provision for such construction costs has been
made when a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of this
obligation and details of the movement of the provision are set out
below:

KBEERMINOBIRRIBEZ FHEEHRR
90K -

ENESER  BERETERERE) ELT
BENA21.7TEEBIT(2017F 1 107488
BIL) s &) BhE T REREMER#H328.5
BEBIT(20174 : 328 5EHBB7T) - EEKE
ETMERREYH 2 BREREY  ARBEEBER
HEZBRTS  NEREERNEERETAL
RAREN - EEERA HIL BT EIEZ
SREEH A SEE - S EERAEL B
- WEBEBZEBHFEHINNT

HK$'M
HEER

Balance at 1 April 2016 20164 A18 2 5 328.5
Provided during the year FANEE 1.4
Utilised during the year FRNEF (1.4)
Balance at 31 March 2017 and 31 March 2018 M201753H31H 201853 H31H 2 & &k 328.5
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 #Z=2018F3A31 B I F/E

26. DEFERRED TAXATION 26. IREBIIE

The following are the major deferred tax (liabilities) assets NTAECHERCEIEELEFIA(AE)EEMN
recognised and movements thereon during the current and prior MERBITRBERESFE 2 &) -
reporting years:

Fair value Distributable
Accelerated change of profits of
tax investment Tax foreign
depreciation properties losses subsidiaries Others
mE - REME BHEAR
WERE ATEZD HEER AHIRER Hit
HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M
BEBT HEBR AREAER BRET HEER
(note)
(H=E)
At 1 April 2016 7201654/ 1H (192.9) (52.7) 44 (36.1) 24.0 (252.7)
Currency realignment EHER (0.5) 2.7 - 2.1 ©0.9) 4.2
(Charge) credit to profit or loss (k) AER (20.9) @7 0.6) 0.1 29 (22.6)
Charge to investment revaluation reserve 3B % & B4 - - - - 0.9 0.3
At 31 March 2017 R2017E3A31H (213.1) (54.7) 38 (33.9 265 (271.4)
Currency realignment B ©.7) 8.8 - (3.6) 09 (12.2)
(Charge) credit to profit or loss (10%) FAER (14.9) (57.7) 139 (14.3) 295 (42.9)
Credit to investment revaluation reserve st AR BE GG - - - - 03 0.3
At 31 March 2018 R2018E3A31H (228.1) (121.2) 17.7 (51.8) 57.2 (326.2)
Note:  These mainly represent net deferred tax assets (liabilities) recognised in et WHEBRARETYERREBE RETEF
relation to unrealised profit of certain property development projects. IR ERERIBEE(AE)F5HE -
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For the purposes of presentation in the consolidated statement of
financial position, certain deferred tax assets and liabilities have
been offset in accordance with the Group’s accounting policy. The
following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances (after offset) for
financial reporting purposes:

EREAVHRAERME - FTRLERAE
ELBBECREEZ @ HEEE - LT AM
KB 2ME M2 RIEF IR (EHR) D
#r

Deferred tax liabilities BLEFIEAE (368.2) (274.5)
Deferred tax assets LR IAE B 42.0 3.1
(326.2) (271.4)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused tax losses
of HK$1,254.7 million (2017: HK$1,120.8 million) available for offset
against future profits. A deferred tax asset has been recognised
in respect of approximately HK$107.2 million (2017: HK$23.0
million) of such losses. No deferred tax asset has been recognised
in respect of the remaining HK$1,147.5 million (2017: HK$1,097.8
million) due to the unpredictability of future profit streams.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has deductible
temporary differences of HK$181.8 million (2017: HK$181.8 million)
mainly arising from impairment losses recognised in respect of
property, plant and equipment and inventories. No deferred tax
asset has been recognised in relation to such deductible temporary
difference as it is not probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences can be utilised.

RMEHR  SERFERABIEEIER1,254.7
BEBT(2017F 1 1,1208@ 8B ) » A
BREERREF - ER 1072888 T
(20174 : 28.0BBEIL) BECHERELTH
HEE - ARNEETEARIEFRA - Bty
EELEREE1, 147 58 88T (20174 1 1,097.8
BEEL)EREERBEAE -

RRESR  SEEZEAYME - BERRHN
MFE 2 BHRRER BT Bz m] 6k
EFA181.8B&EBL(20174  181.8FEH
T0) ° R A AT RE B FE AR B v I AT AR A 4K 8
AR E R AR - B ERZ S R
EFRERELERIBEE -
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27. BANK AND OTHER LOANS

27. RITREMER

Bank loans (note a) IRITER(MFa) 6,508.2 6,837.4
Bonds and notes (note b) BEHREE(H5E0b) 1,077.5 956.5
7,585.7 7,793.9
Less: Amount included under current B EFARBBEE SR
liabilities (including bank loans with (BIEE G RER
a repayable on demand clause) ESREEERZ
RITE) (1,058.0) (1,564.4)
Amount included under non-current AR EE SR
liabilities 6,527.7 6,229.5
Bank and other loans are repayable: HRITRHAERER
THIEARR &R
On demand or within one year BRERHE—FR 1,058.0 1,564.4
Between one and two years —FERER 1,000.0 273.0
Between two and five years MEZERFRN 5,527.7 5,956.5
7,585.7 7,793.9
Secured PR 457.6 459.6
Unsecured 0t T, 7,128.1 7,334.3
7,585.7 7,793.9
Bank loans that contain a repayable on BB A[RERs ESREEIER 2
demand clause (shown under current RITER(RRBAEBIT)
liabilities) and the schedule paymentis B iE 3 H8 4 (Mizic) :
(note c):
Between one and two years —FEMFA 441.3 -
Between two and five years MEERFR - 833.3
441.3 833.3

Notes:

(@) As at 31 March 2018, the Group’s bank loans carry interest at an average
margin of 1.21% (2017: 1.22%) plus HIBOR, other relevant interbank offered
rates or other benchmark interest rates per annum.

(o) On 2 April 2013, the Company issued principal amount of HK$560.0 million
7-year unlisted notes at a coupon rate of 4.5% per annum. Subsequently on
10 April 2013, the Company established a US$1.0 billion Medium Term Note
Programme (“MTN Programme”). In May 2013, a total principal amount of
HK$238.0 million 7-year unlisted notes at a coupon rate of 4.3% per annum
was issued under the MTN Programme. Furthermore, as at 31 March 2018,
there was outstanding bond with principal amount of HK$281.2 million (2017:
HK$161.0 million) which carried interest at a margin of 0.47% (2017: 0.40%) plus
the relevant interbank offered rates per annum.

(c) The amounts due are based on scheduled payment dates set out in the
respective loan agreements.
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(@) M2018F3HA31H  KERITERIZTF1.21%
(20174 : 1.22%) 2 FIEBE B R MBS RITRER
BR . HABERITEERERKEMEERN RS -

(b) M2013F4A28 @+ ARFEHITAE560.08E57T
ZTFHRREFLI5%EEMARGTBZIE LTI - B&
% M2013F 4 A108 + AABIHRML10BETLZFHE
B E([REZEE]) - R2013F5A8  RIEHHIE
BB RITAL EE238.0A BB T 2T FHIRESE
43%ZEBMAEEF B ZIELTEE o N - 7201843
A318 » REBEFALRE281.28E BT (20174 -
161.0E BB L) IREF0.47% (20174 : 0.40%) 2 i&
BREEMBERITRERE RS -

(© FEFUANREBERBEMBRNERBME -



28. OTHER LIABILITIES 28. Hih& &

Advances from non-controlling FEFERE M SR EFR (FIFE)
shareholders (note) 316.2 196.8
Club debentures EAES 852.0 855.5
1,168.2 1,052.3
Less: Amount due within one year B ETARBAEZ
included under current liabilities —F AR HAFRIE (41.6) 0.7)
Amount due after one year — 1% 5| A8 1,126.6 1,051.6
Note:  The amounts represent advances from non-controlling shareholders W5 ZFIBRMEB LR FFERRR B - AR
of subsidiaries to finance operation of those subsidiaries. As at 31 March ZEWBARLBEAE - W2018F3A31H » EIERME
2018, included in advances from non-controlling shareholders is an amount RARBIEAE312.088/EL(20174F 1 196.0A &5
of HK$312.0 million (2017: HK$196.0 million) which bears interest at 3-month TL)IRSME A BB BRI ¥R B E IN13.5% (20174 : #&3ME
HIBOR plus 3.5% (2017: 3-month HIBOR plus 3.5%). The amounts are AHEABEEREEMN3.5%):TE - ZFBAAERRL
unsecured and not repayable within one year. BER—FRERE -
Club debentures are redeemable on their maturity dates, which are FEFAIRSAEAEER @ ZF28HAW
as follows: ™

Within one year —FR 41.6 0.7
Over one year but within five years —FLAFBERFUA 0.5 42.4
In 2047 20474 809.9 812.4

852.0 855.5

These debentures are non-interest bearing, unsecured and are EBEFAREE - BEMRETTTIHE
issued to members of the following clubs operated by the Group: EFicE s 2 E s

Discovery Bay Golf Club KM EamAke 661.2 663.7
Discovery Bay Marina Club M EERe 42.1 431

Rétg 148.7 148.7
852.0 855.5

Discovery Bay Recreation Club 6] =
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29. DEPOSITS RECEIVED AND OTHER
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying amount
of the Group’s deposits received and other financial liabilities at the
end of the reporting period approximates their corresponding fair
values due to the relatively short-term maturity.

Included in deposits received and other financial liabilities are
property sales deposits of HK$2,034.7 million (2017: HK$637.3
million) expected to be recognised as sales in profit or loss within
twelve months from the end of reporting period.

30. SHARE CAPITAL

2. BhiReEREMEREE

ARREFRAR BAREEZEWRIZERE
MEMEBE s HAREEE  BRNREH
R ZFFEZEEEREARAFERS

BlEe hEMSBmAETBEESN RS
RBFTZEAANREBEFTERBIHE WS
HEZ$2,034.7E BB T(20174F : 637.38
BB o

30. IR

2018 & 2017
Number

of share

Ordinary shares of HK$0.25 each

Authorised:
At 1 April 2016, 31 March 2017 and

SRERA

BREE0.25B T EiBR

MR2016F4H1H ~ 20174

BR&

31 March 2018 3H31H8 &2018F3A31H 2,000,000,000 500.0
Issued and fully paid: BEITREBERAE
At 1 April 2016, 31 March 2017 and R20165F4 A1H ~ 20174

31 March 2018 3A31H N20184F3A31H 1,350,274,367 337.5

31. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) on
8 September 2011 which permits the directors of the Company
to grant share options to all directors (including any Executive
Directors, Non-executive Directors and Independent Non-executive
Directors), full-time employees and any consultants (employed
on a contract basis) of the Company, its subsidiaries and/or its
associated companies to subscribe for shares in the Company.

At 31 March 2018, the number of shares in respect of which share
options had been granted and remained outstanding under the
Scheme was 41,400,000 (2017: 15,600,000), representing 3.1%
(2017: 1.2%) of the shares of the Company in issue at that date.
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31. Rt HifEE

ARRRIR2011F9 A8 R ERM T ffn Bkt &l
([&&TEl)) » LA BTHFARREFAAR
A HMBRRR/REBERRZMEES
(BREEARTES  FFRTEERBIIEHN
TEE) 2REEREANUSHTEAERZ
R R R AR 2 RIRD 2 B AR o

M20184F3A31H » RIEZFrEE R T A
WMARTEZRDBEMPRZBOEE &
41,400,0000% (20174 : 15,600,0000%) + 48
ERZEARRIE TGN 23.1%(20174F -
1.2%) °



Details of the movements of the share options granted are as

follows:

Category of

participants  Date of grant

SEEER REAH
Director 28 February 2017
E% 20172/28R
Director 12 March 2018
E% 201853/12A
Employee 12 March 2018
g1 2018%3/128

Exercisable at the end of the year

XA

In respect of fair value of share options granted during the years
ended 31 March 2018 and 2017, the inputs into the model were as

follows:

Exercise period

it
28 February 2017 to 27 February 2027
2017F2A28AE202752 A27R

12 March 2018 to 11 March 2028
2018%F3R12HZ2028F3A11H

12 March 2018 to 11 March 2028
2018%F3R12BZ2028F3A11H

B R B 2 &

Exercise Outstanding

price
per share

(HKS)

SRTER
(%7)
423

481

4.81

T

Number of share option
RipHESA

Granted Granted

during during
the year OQutstanding theyear Outstanding
as at ended as at ended as at
1 April 31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March
2016 2017 2017 2018 2018

20175 20185
#2016 3A31H R20175 3A31H 20185
451R LEE 3A31H LEE 3A31H
HARTHE BRE HAAR BRY  HRAR
- 15,600,000 15,600,000 - 15,600,000
- - - 24,000,000 24,000,000
- - - 1800000 1,800,000
- 15600000 15,600,000  25800,000 41,400,000

15,600,000

41,400,000

RRE E2018F N2017F3A31HILFE®F
EHRMDEEAFEMS @ B RA 2@ A

Spot price

Exercise price

Expected volatility
Risk-free rate
Expected dividend yield

Exercise period

18

AR R
B e A
A B 2

1T

B

12 March 2018 28 February 2017
20183 H12H 20172 A28H
HK$4.81 HK$4.23

4.81% T 4.237%7T

HK$4.81 HK$4.23

4.8178 T 4.237%7T
22.721% 25.304%
2.0201% 1.705%
2.1577% 3.33%

12 March 2018 to 28 February 2017 to
11 March 2028 27 February 2027
2018%F3H12HZE 2017F2H28H &
2028%3H11H 202742 A27H
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The fair value of the share options is determined using the Black-
Scholes model. The variables and assumptions used in computing
the fair values of the share options are based on the directors’
best estimates. Expected volatility is based on the historical share
price volatility of the Company over the past 5 years. Expected
dividend vyield is based on the historical dividend payment of the
Company. The risk-free rate is interpolated from the Hong Kong
Monetary Authority’s Hong Kong Exchange Fund Bills/Notes and
Government Bonds Yield Curve as at the date of grant.

The Group recognised the total expense of HK$28.9 million (2017:
HK$13.6 million) for the year ended 31 March 2018 in relation
to share options granted by the Company to the directors and
employees of the Group.

32. ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY

On 9 January 2018, an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company entered into a sale and purchase agreement with
independent third parties to acquire the entire issued capital
of Co-Success Investment Limited, at a cash consideration of
HK$29.2 million. The acquisition was completed on 9 February
2018. The major asset of Co-Success Investment Limited is an
investment property representing a residential property situated in
Hong Kong.

The directors of the Company were of the opinion that this
transaction did not constitute business combinations as defined
in HKFRS 3 “Business Combinations”, therefore, the acquisition
had been accounted for as an acquisition of assets. Details of the
transaction are summarised as follows.
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Pefn Bk 2 N HETRBM N = — SR EE
BAEE - FFEROBEZ A TFERERZE
BEBRIBRBEEFCHRAEREET - 1A
HR MR T ARIBAN A BB A5 F A IR E R IR T
8 o B R Was R T IRIBAN R BAE B BUR
MERFE - ERRANEXTHEESHEESD
BRINEESRE/EHRBFESFNEL A
S RHEH -

REZE2018F3A31BHILEE » EEFALNF
RY¥EEEENES 2R PEERST HEH
28.9A&EBIL(20174  13.6EEBTT) ©

32. WIBK B F

R2018%F1 A9 » —MARFIMEZEKHE
ARIEBYE=FA L EEHE AR NRE
20 20BBAETTKETRIREERARIZEE %
TRE AR o Z UG BER 201842 A9H Tk © B jiE
KREBRRBIZEIZEERTEYSE  BI—E
NREBZEEME -

ARAEFBBRR DL TERE SN HRE
RRIESIA R A 0 IR EMEIFAG - B
B - BRE A RIS © X223
BHIMT o



The assets acquired and liabilities assumed on the date of
acquisition:

RUE BB B EEMFAERE

HK$'M
BEBTT

Non-current assets FEMBEE

Investment properties "EYE 25.4

Property, plant and equipment M - BB NEE 2.0

Other assets Hith & 1.8
Net assets acquired W s BEFE 29.2
Satisfied by: YRIAFR :

Cash consideration paid ENRERE 29.2
Net cash outflows on acquisition: WHE 7 IR M REE

Cash consideration paid EfNRERE 29.2

33. ANALYSIS OF THE BALANCES OF CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

BP.HERRESEEEBE&
o

Bank balances and cash RITHEHR LIRS

2,908.4 2,548.3

The market interest rate of the bank balances at 31 March 2018
were in the range of 0.01% to 2.89% (2017: 0.01% to 1.90%)
per annum. The directors of the Company consider the carrying
amount of the Group’s bank balances and cash at the end of the
reporting period approximates their corresponding fair values.

34. PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 March 2018, certain bank loans of the Group were
secured by certain investment properties, properties held for sale
and properties held for/under development for sale at the carrying
value of HK$302.7 million (2017: HK$285.6 million), HK$408.7
million (2017: HK$711.6 million) and HK$958.1 million (2017: nil)
respectively.

In addition, the loans to a joint venture by the Group amounting to
approximately HK$747.1 million (2017: nil) were subordinated to
banks to secure a banking facility granted to the joint venture for
financing the properties development project.

RITHEEA2018F3 A31 B 2 5 F| RIEFF
R0.01%%2.89% (20174 : 0.01%E1.90%)
ZHENRN ARNBEERABEEMNRITEHR K
WERMEIAR 2 REEEMAEQAFERE -

34. EEHK

M2018%F3A31H « BREED R A302.78 8
I (20174F 1 2856 A BB L) ~ 408.7E B
BT (2017F : 7T11.6B 88 7L) X958.18 8
BIL(20174F « ) B TIREME - HEL
EMERHILESER/ZRPMEDERSE
B2 EFRITERZEM -

b BFE—RALERARERTFRITEE
BEAYERRBEZES  £EEHRAZ
AENTRIRENTATABE BT (20174 : &)
ZBRAIRITIER ERE -
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35. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

35. RARBE

Guarantee given, to the extent of
the Group’s proportionate share,

LA E R BELL B BBR - B
WERRERIRTT
in respect of a banking facility granted to  {E &8 {EH 2 1R (Mf5Fa)

an investee company (note a) 135.9 123.2
Guarantee given, to the extent of AEERELL P AR - e

the Group’s proportionate share, EARIERIEEERN

in respect of a banking facility granted to  $R1T{ZS E2B1EH 2~ 1R

a joint venture for the development of (R

a project (note a) 666.1 -
Guarantees given by subsidiaries in MEBARRERMEER

respect of mortgage facilities granted R ZIZBEREELR

to purchasers of the Group’s properties 7 #&1% (MzTb)

(note b) 211.7 44.5

Notes: MisE -

(@ No provision for financial guarantee contracts has been recognised in
the consolidated financial statements as, in the opinion of the directors of the
Company, the fair value of the financial guarantee on initial recognition and the
amount of provision to be recognised subsequently was insignificant.

(b) The guarantees are given to banks in respect of mortgage facilities granted
by certain banks relating to the mortgage loans arranged for certain purchasers
of the Group’s properties. Such guarantees will be released by banks upon the
earlier of issue of the relevant real estate ownership certificate to the purchasers
or the banks have satisfied themselves to release the guarantees in certain
circumstances. In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the possibility
of default of the parties involved is remote and the fair values of these financial
guarantee contracts are insignificant on initial recognition and therefore no
provision for financial guarantee contracts has been made at the end of the
reporting period.
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(b) ZERRDIBETRITRONVIZBRE M AZFR
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36. COMMITMENTS 36. i

Contracted but not provided for in the EENERNGE U BHREF

consolidated financial statements: TERE -
Expenditure in respect of properties M EFER/ RS

held for/under development for sale MEZHRX 1,421.2 1,954.1
Capital expenditure in respect of REYENEME - BB

investment properties and property, W= el - VN

plant and equipment 159.4 297.6
Others Hit 115.9 22.8

1,696.5 2,274.5

The capital commitments in respect of the Group’s interest in SERARFEEERT CERNAERNE1S

Dazhongli group are disclosed in Note 18. R -
37. LEASING ARRANGEMENTS 37. HEZHE
THE GROUP AS LESSEE SEAEEAEA

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments for RIBEBR - SERIE L RIEF 2 T A HE
future minimum lease payment under non-cancellable operating CEAEMAERU TSN Z R RFERE
leases in respect of land and buildings which fall due as follows: RRAEERT

Within one year —FR 25.8 15.3
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_EFERF(BREEREMTE) 25.5 20.2
51.3 35.5

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group CEHENREEREN A AEYERETE
for its office premises and staff quarters. Leases are negotiated for LN ZEE  c HEFHEEI AHRE - 95
an average term of two years and rentals are fixed for an average —EWMERNELTE

term of one to two years.
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THE GROUP AS LESSOR

Property rental income earned from investment properties and other
properties during the year was HK$386.4 million (2017: HK$339.6
million) in aggregate, of which HK$378.0 million (2017: HK$331.7
million) was generated from investment properties of the Group.
Investment properties and other properties with an aggregate
carrying amount of HK$11,426.0 million (2017: HK$8,711.4 million)
were held for rental purposes at the end of the reporting period.
Depreciation charge for the year in respect of other properties was
HK$1.4 million (2017: HK$1.4 million). The properties held have
committed tenants for a period from one to thirteen years. At the
end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted with tenants
for the following future minimum leases payments under non-
cancellable operating leases which fall due as follows:

SEALEA

BREMEREMMERFARRZWERS
A& H7386.48 EHE T (20174 : 339.6
BEBIT) HF378.0B8 BT (20174F ¢
3NT7TEBEL)REEBIEEME - BNikE
HiR - BRTEA £11,426.05 &8 £ (2017
F 87NN ABEBBILIZREMEREMIZE
DEEHERR AFENEBEMDES
MELHE1ABEETL(2017F : 148 EE
JL) e i EWECAENEER—ZE+=F
TE - RIEHAR EEEEBFETY > iR
BB amERN Ty MEH 2 R R &
EAEMZTOT

Within one year —FR 365.0 308.2
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_EZELT(BEEEMT) 515.8 420.5
Over five years RELE 24.2 43.5
905.0 772.2

38. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES 38. RIKERIFTE

HONG KONG

In order to comply with Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
Ordinance, a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“MPF Scheme”)
with employer’s voluntary contributions has been established on 1
December 2000.

For the members of the MPF Scheme, the Group contributes 5%
of the relevant payroll costs to the MPF Scheme, subject to a cap
of monthly relevant income of HK$30,000 effective 1 June 2014 for
the MPF Scheme, which contribution is matched by the employee.
The Group also makes voluntary contribution in addition to the
mandatory contribution.

The amount charged to profit or loss represents contributions paid
or payable of HK$21.3 million (2017: HK$21.1 million) to the MPF
Scheme by the Group, less forfeitures on voluntary contribution
of HK$5.7 million (2017: HK$4.1 million) arising from employees
leaving the Group prior to completion of the qualifying service
period.
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At the end of the reporting period, there is no forfeited contributions,
which arose upon employees leaving the retirement benefits
schemes and which are available to reduce the contributions
payable in future years (2017: nil).

MAINLAND CHINA AND OVERSEAS

The employees of the Group in mainland China and overseas are
members of state-managed retirement benefit schemes operated
by the respective local governments in relevant jurisdictions.
The Group is required to contribute and recognise a specified
percentage of payroll costs to the schemes to fund the benefits.
The only obligations of the Group with respect to these schemes
are to make the specified contributions and recognise the
respective retirement pay in accordance with the terms set out in
the schemes and relevant jurisdiction requirements.

The total cost charged to profit or loss in respect of the above-
mentioned schemes in the relevant jurisdictions amounted to
approximately HK$5.1 million (2017: HK$3.9 million).

39. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group
will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the
return to shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and
equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged
from prior years.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt, which
includes long-term bank and other loans, short-term bank loans
and other borrowings as disclosed in Notes 27 and 28, net of
cash and cash equivalents and equity attributable to owners of
the Company, comprising issued share capital, reserves and
accumulated profits.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure on a
periodic basis. As part of this review, the directors of the Company
consider the cost of capital and the risks associated with each
class of capital. Based on recommendations of the directors of
the Company, the Group will balance its overall capital structure
through the payment of dividends, new share issues and share
buy-backs as well as the issue of new debt or the redemption of
existing debt.

RBEHR - WARA R E TR R ERIKTER
IR Wz R Mt B R AT AR K A
Z R HIRR (20174 : &) ©

B B R 3t Ko S

SE BN FEIMER R m AR RIAE R
EZﬂﬂﬁﬂzﬁ‘%ﬂ%ZI%%&ﬁi?ﬁ?ﬁﬁ#%ﬂZﬁi
g - REARTERAZIETEADLABREG
SR RSB R ; ‘|’i‘JZ§§§ BRI
FErEIME - SEZHE-—BEE/IELAREZ
- WIREZFA 2GR AR RAER
ZREHRTBZENRE

£

M EMNEBEE AR ZETEINRESR 2
BRKARA BE5ABEEBIT(2017F  3.9E &5

JC) °
39. EXERERE

RERKBIETSEBIAEFELE &
HEBEABTER  WHEBERERRANER
BEFEMARRMGHZARR - KE 28
RERBEFERFTE -

SEZEXRERERERFR(EPRENE
2T R8I BEZ RMRIT R EMER - 28
RITERMEMEES - MBERELBSFERA
B)RARARHEBAEGEEZ(BREETR
K FHEEREREN) ©

ARREFTERRSENER - (ERILERE

Z—®n  ARREFCERESKANERE
BEARZEMAR - REARBDEFTZEE &

AR AR~ BITHAR - BRI R BEATHT
BEBRRERREER  BATEBRRERNG
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40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
CATEGORIES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

40. €T R
ST A ¥ER

Financial assets TREE
Held-to-maturity investments BHEIEE
Loans and receivables (including cash

and cash equivalents) RIRE&EEHAE)

Available-for-sale financial assets, AHEESREE -
at fair value BAFEE
Financial liabilities TRAasE
Amortised cost B A

BERKERHRIAR(BRERE

130.2 1556.9
10,452.7 10,766.0
110.6 87.9
9,137.9 9,252.9

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group’s major financial instruments include held-to-maturity
investments, available-for-sale financial assets, trade receivables,
other receivables, other assets, amounts due from associates,
loans to joint ventures, amounts due from joint ventures, bank
balances and cash, trade payables, deposits received and other
financial liabilities, bank and other loans and other liabilities. Details
of these financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The
risks associated with these financial instruments include market risk
(currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk), credit risk and
liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out
below. The management manages and monitors these exposures
to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and
effective manner.

Currency risk

The Group does not have significant exposure to foreign
currency risk as majority of the Group’s sales and purchases are
denominated in the currency which is the functional currency of
the respective group entities except for certain bank balances,
loans to joint ventures and held-to-maturity investments which are
denominated in foreign currency, other than the functional currency
of the respective group entities.
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The carrying amounts of the group entities’ foreign currency
denominated assets and liabilities at the reporting date are as
follows:

SEEBNHREANINSIIBZEERAEZ
FREET

Assets Liabilities
BE aE

2018 2018

HK$’M HK$’M

Currency BEER BHEER
Renminbi AR 11.3 9.7 - -
US dollar T 4,494.2 4,478.0 - -
Thai baht Rk 397.8 343.1 - -
Singapore dollar s T 53.9 - - -
Others EHfb 7.8 10.9 - -

Sensitivity analysis BRBREDN

The Group is mainly exposed to the currency risk of US dollar and
Thai baht. The sensitivity analysis excludes balances which are
denominated in US dollars for an entity with Hong Kong dollars
as its functional currency since Hong Kong dollar is pegged to US
dollar.

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a 5% decrease
in the functional currency of the respective group entities against
the relevant foreign currencies. 5% is the sensitivity rate used
when reporting foreign currency risk internally to key management
personnels and represents management’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates. The
sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency
denominated monetary items and adjusts their translation at the
year end of the reporting period for a 5% change in foreign currency
rates. The analysis illustrates the impact for a 5% weakening of
the functional currency of the respective group entities against the
relevant foreign currency and a positive number below indicates an
increase in profits for the year and in exchange reserve. For a 5%
strengthening of the functional currency of the respective group
entities against the relevant foreign currency, there would be an
equal and opposite impact on the profits for the year and exchange
reserve.

SEERAZETNFRELZEHER - A
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B ©
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Increase in profits

Py byl

2018

HK$'M

Currency BEATT
Renminbi AR 0.6
US dollar T -
Thai baht Rk 1.0
Singapore dollar N3 T 2.7

Increase in exchange reserve

B 5% fk 5 48
2017 2018 2017
HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M
BEBT HEBT BEBT
0.5 - -
- 212.7 212.7
0.7 18.9 16.3

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is unrepresentative
of the inherent foreign exchange risk as the exposure at the end of
the reporting period does not reflect that during the year.

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in relation to
held-to-maturity investments (see Note 19) and fixed-rate bank
deposits and borrowings (see Notes 24 and 27). The Group is also
exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in relation to variable-rate
bank deposits and borrowings (see Notes 24 and 27), advances
from non-controlling shareholders (see Note 28) and mortgage
instalment receivables (see Note 20). It is the Group’s policy to
keep its borrowings at floating rate of interests so as to minimise
the fair value interest rate risk.

The Group’s exposures to interest rates on financial assets and
financial liabilities are detailed in the liquidity risk section of this note.
The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk is mainly concentrated
on the fluctuation of HIBOR, other relevant interbank offered
rates or other benchmark interest rates arising from the Group’s
borrowings.
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Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on the
exposure to interest rates for non-derivative instruments at the
end of the reporting period. The variable-rate bank deposits have
been excluded from sensitivity analysis as the management of the
Group considered that the interest rate fluctuation is not significant.
For variable-rate bank borrowings, advances from non-controlling
shareholders and mortgage instalment receivables, the analysis is
prepared assuming the amount of liability and asset outstanding at
the end of the reporting period was outstanding for the whole year.
A 50 basis points increase or decrease is used when reporting
interest rate risk internally to key management personnels and
represents management’s assessment of the reasonably possible
change in interest rates.

If interest rates had been 50 basis points higher/lower and all other
variables were held constant, the Group’s:

° profit for the year ended 31 March 2018 would decrease/
increase by HK$33.5 million (2017: HK$34.1 million). This is mainly
attributable to the Group’s exposure to interest rates on its variable-
rate bank borrowings, advances from non-controlling shareholders
and mortgage instalment receivables.

Other price risk

The Group is exposed to market price fluctuation through its
investments in both listed and unlisted securities. The management
manages this exposure by maintaining a diversified portfolio. The
level and volatility of the prices of securities may be affected by
general economic and market conditions, such as interest rates,
availability of credit, inflation rates, economic uncertainty, changes
in laws (including taxation law), trade barriers, currency exchange
controls, and national and international political circumstances, if
applicable.
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Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on the
exposure to price of securities investments at the reporting date.

If the prices of the respective securities investments had been 5%
higher/lower:

° investment revaluation reserve would increase/decrease by
HK$5.4 million (2017: HK$4.3 million) for the Group as a result of
the changes in fair value of available-for-sale financial assets.

Credit risk

As at 31 March 2018, the Group’s maximum exposure to credit
risk which will cause a financial loss to the Group due to failure
to discharge an obligation by the counterparties and financial
guarantees provided by the Group is arising from:

o the carrying amount of the respective recognised financial
assets (including trade receivables, other receivables, other assets,
amounts due from associates, loans to joint ventures and amounts
due from joint ventures) as stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position; and

° the amount of contingent liabilities in relation to financial
guarantees issued by the Group as disclosed in Note 35.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the Group
has delegated a team responsible for determination of credit limits,
credit approvals and other monitoring procedures to ensure that
follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts. In addition, the
Group reviews the recoverable amount of each individual trade
debt at the end of the reporting period to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In this
regard, the directors of the Company consider that the Group’s
credit risk is significantly reduced.

With respect to credit risk arising from loan to an investee, loans
to joint ventures, amounts due from associates and amounts due
from joint ventures, the Group reviews the recoverable amount at
the end of the reporting period to ensure that adequate impairment
losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. The exposure to credit
risk is limited.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk in connection with held-to-
maturity investments and bank balances is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit ratings and corporates
with strong financial position.
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Other than loans to joint ventures, amounts due from joint ventures
and amounts due from associates, the Group does not have any
other significant concentration of credit risk over receivables. Trade
receivables consist of a large number of customers, spread across
diverse industries and geographical areas.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and
maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate
by the management to finance the Group’s operations and mitigate
the effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The management monitors

the utilisation of bank borrowings and ensures compliance with
loan covenants.

The Group relies on bank borrowings as a significant source of
liquidity. As at 31 March 2018, the Group has available unutilised
overdraft and bank loan facilities of approximately HK$6,813.2
million (2017: HK$6,417.3 million).

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the
board of directors of the Company, which has built an appropriate
liquidity risk management framework for the management of
the Group’s short, medium and long-term funding and liquidity
management requirements.

The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for its financial liabilities based on the agreed repayment
terms except for the bank loans with a repayable on demand
clause. For non-derivative financial liabilities, the table has been
drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial
liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group can be
required to pay. The table includes both interest and principal
cash flows. To the extent that interest flows are floating rate, the
undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate at the end of the
reporting period.
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Liquidity risk table FEHESREE
Repayable
on demand Total Carrying
or within 2-5 Over undiscounted  amount at
1 year years 5years  cash flows 31 March
REXS, AEE  M3A31A
-FREE WERE IENE  BEREE ZEHE
HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M
BEAT BEATL BEATL BEATL BEATL
2018 20185
Non-derivative financial liabilities {74 4RAR
Trade payables and accrued charges BT Z SR N EFE R 233.6 - - - 233.6 233.6
Deposits received and other financial ~ EUiiE4 RH M4 R
liabilities =4 150.4 - - - 150.4 150.4
Bank and other loans BIREMER
- fixed-rate -EE 35.4 35.4 797.8 - 868.6 796.3
- variable-rate %8 1,191.2 1,112.0 4,778.0 - 7,081.2 6,789.4
Other liabiliies EthEE 41.6 0.5 358.0 809.9 1,210.0 1,168.2
Financial guarantee contracts IBERAH 1,013.7 - - - 1,013.7 -
2,665.9 1,147.9 5,933.8 809.9 10,557.5 9,137.9
Repayable
on demand Total Carrying
or within 2-5 Over  undiscounted amount at
years 5 years cash flows 31 March
M3A31H
MERE RENE ZIREE
HK$'M HK$'M
BEAT BEAT
2017 20174
Non-derivative financial liabilities ~ 3fi4+ 2 FAE
Trade payables and accrued charges B Z ZEH N EFE R 278.6 - - - 278.6 278.6
Deposits received and other financial ~ BUIRE REM SR
liabilities af 128.1 - - - 128.1 128.1
Bank and other loans FAREMER
- fixed-rate -8 3.3 35.3 832.3 - 902.9 795.5
- variable-rate -8 1,670.0 363.7 5,276.5 - 7,310.2 6,998.4
Other liabiliies EtEE 0.7 419 224.7 812.4 1,079.7 1,052.3
Financial guarantee contracts BBERAY 167.7 - - - 167.7 -
2,280.4 440.9 6,333.5 812.4 9,867.2 9,252.9
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As at 31 March 2018 and 2017, all bank loans are classified in
respective time band based on the agreed repayment terms except
for the bank loans with a repayable on demand clause.

The amounts included above for variable interest rate instruments
for non-derivative financial liabilities are subject to change if
changes in variable interest rates differ to those estimates of
interest rates determined at the end of the reporting period.

Bank loans with a repayment on demand clause are included
in the “Repayable on demand or within 1 year” time band in the
above maturity analysis. As at 31 March 2018, the aggregate
undiscounted principal amounts of these bank loans amounted to
HK$441.3 million (2017: HK$833.3 million). Taking into account
the Group’s financial position, the directors of the Company do
not believe that it is probable that the banks will exercise their
discretionary rights to demand immediate repayment. The directors
of the Company believe that such bank loans as at 31 March 2018
will be repaid within two years (2017: within three years) of the
reporting date in accordance with the scheduled repayment dates
set out in the loan agreements, details of which are set out in the
table below:

A2018F N201763A31H * MERITEXR
TiEHEENEY  UWEERE ESE - AF
AT e B ESREE IR ZIRITE RN

FREAFTASHAGIATAY E
BOFBYFIE 2 BB B S R 2 2 F
ERHEERBEHES -

AR R EREEKERZBITERFT AN
FHEBASTZRERSE—FREE M
DEFP o P2018FE3A31H » 2 FERITER
ZABBAREBEEIA.3E B E T (2017
F:8333BEMBIT) c KEREEE 2B
Mg RABZEFRBRITHEIEITHEERIS
BEREBFEN - KAARIESHE - B2018
FEABNAZKSRITERBILBERBHEA
HETERAR  NRE AR F (2017
F:=F)NEE FHERINTE

Total
Within 2-5 undiscounted Carrying
1 year years cash flows amount
REH
—FR MELE BEREHE REE
HK$’M HK$'M HK$'M HK$’M
BEER HEAT BHEAET BEER
At 31 March 2018 201853H31H 5.5 444.0 - 449.5 441.3
At 31 March 2017 2017943 A831H 11.4 1.4 839.0 861.8 833.3
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The amounts included above for financial guarantee contracts
are the maximum amounts the Group could be required to settle
under the arrangement for the full guaranteed amount if that
amount is claimed by the counterparty to the guarantee. Based
on expectations at the end of the reporting period, the Group
considers that it is more likely than not that no amount will be
payable under the arrangement. However, this estimate is subject
to change depending on the probability of the counterparty claiming
under the guarantee which is a function of the likelihood that the
financial receivables held by the counterparty which are guaranteed
suffer credit losses.

FAIR VALUE

The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities are
determined as follows:

° the fair values of financial assets with standard terms and
conditions and traded on active liquid markets are determined with
reference to quoted market bid prices; and

° the fair values of other financial assets and financial liabilities
are determined in accordance with generally accepted pricing
models based on discounted cash flow analysis.

The consolidated financial statements include holdings in unlisted
equity securities which are measured at fair value using valuation
techniques based on inputs that can be observed in the market in
addition to unobservable inputs such as company specific financial
information (Note 19).

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying amounts
of financial assets and financial liabilities (excluding available-for-sale
financial assets) recorded at amortised costs on the consolidated
financial statements approximate their fair values.
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41. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES N METEFELEEGEZY
ARISING FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES R

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities arising TR EEREFDMELEBECEZH (R
from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash BRENIIRSED) METHFELEZE
changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for BEARSRECIRKRBEREFNERLS
which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in the cREMEXRTOHANETHRERELA
Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows as cash flows from & o

financing activities.

Advances

from non-
Dividends Interest Bankand  controlling Club
payables payables otherloans shareholders  debentures

BITR FER
EARE  EANE  A#ER  RRBR eFES
HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M
BE%T  HEER  BEEn  EEEn  HEAR

At 1 Apri 2017 20174 A18 - - 7,793.9 196.8 8555 8,846.2
Financing cash flows BERERE (195.0 (208.9) (327.4) 107.5 (35) (626.7)
Currency realignment AR - - 118.4 - - 118.4
Interest expenses FERS - 208.3 - - - 208.3
Amount included in the cost of SAHERRES

properties under development forsale  MEMAZ % - - - 1.9 - 1.9
Dividends declared BERRE 195.0 - - - - 195.0
Others Hh - - 08 - - 08
At 31 March 2018 #2018%3A31H = - 7,585.7 316.2 852.0 8,753.9
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42. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES

AND JOINT VENTURES

(@ Details of principal subsidiaries incorporated and have their

principal place of operations in Hong Kong are as follows:

31 March 2018
201853A31H

Issued

Name of company share capital

ARER BRTRA

HK$

BT

Ace Spring Limited 1
RER AR

Active Future Limited 1

[ERBRAT

Allmedco Group Limited 1,500,000
AmMed Cancer Center (Central) Limited 2
AmMed Hong Kong Limited 10,000
REBABBARAA

Beaufort Hotels Limited 1
Cardiomed Limited 1
TEFEARAA

Co-Success Investment Limited 2
ERRRERRAT

Discovery Bay Commercial Services Limited 2

R EEERRERAT

Equity
interest
attributable
to the Group
EEEGRE
%

Btk

100

100

45,6

100

100

100

100

100

50*
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2. TEMBAT  BEAD

RE&ERQT
(@ HEBFBIMRZREIZLEMHUNE
BZIEBMBARFELT

31 March 2017
201743A31H
Equity
interest
Issued attributable
share capital to the Group
BEIRA EEEERE
HKS %

BT

Principal activities

IRER

Property investment

ESE

Property investment

YESE

1,500,000 45.6¢  Trading of medical and
dental equipment and

supplies
BEREATHREREER

Provision of cancer treatment
service and diagnostic
imaging service

REERDARIRS RiE RS

10,000 100 Investment holding

RERR

Provision of hotel management
services

REEEERRS

Investment holding

RERK

N/A N/A
TER TR

Property investment

ESIE

2 50" Commercial leasing agent

BEHERE



Name of company
ARER

Discovery Bay Enterprises Limited

Discovery Bay Financial Services Limited
WRENBREERAR

Discovery Bay Golf Club Limited
W EEEAREERAT

Discovery Bay Hotel Limited

Discovery Bay Marina Club Limited
WREEEEERAF

Discovery Bay Property Limited
WRENFBRAR

Discovery Bay Recreation Club Limited
BRLRLEARAT

Discovery Bay Road Tunnel Company Limited
WREBEERAR

Discovery Bay Services Management Limited

HRERBERARAT

Discovery Bay Transit Services Limited

BREREREARAT

share capital

31 March 2018

2018%3H31H
Equity
interest
Issued attributable
to the Group
ERTRA EEEGRE
HK$ %
BT BAt
400,000 50*
2 50*
2 50*
2 50*
2 50*
2 50*
2 50*
2 50*
2 50*
2 50*

31 March 2017

201743A31H
Equity
interest
Issued attributable
share capital to the Group
HK$ ’
e
400,000 50"
2 50
2 50"
2 50"
2 50"
2 50"
2 50"
2 50
2 50"
2 50"

Principal activities

IREH

Operation of a shipyard
HEME

Provision of financial
services to first hand
purchasers of properties
in Discovery Bay

RAERENEL—FER
B BRSE

Provision of club facilities
RtEmRiE

Hotel operator
EEeE

Provision of club facilities
G RE

Provision of property agency
services

RENERERE

Provision of club facilities
e RmRiE

Road tunnel operator
RiE=E

Estate manager and principal
lessee of communication
network in Discovery Bay

EREBRMRLHABR
ZEBEBA

Provision of bus and garage
services

RUCLREERYE
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31 March 2018 31 March 2017
2018%3A31H 201743 A31H
Equity Equity
interest interest
Issued attributable Issued attributable
Name of company share capital to the Group share capital tothe Group  Principal activities
ARER BRORE  SEEGRE R EE(ERE  TEER
HK$ %
BT Btk
Discovery Bay Transportation Services Limited 2 50* 2 50" Provision of ferry services
BREMEREERAT RAURRRS
Fame Wood Limited 2 100 2 100 Property investment
BRERAT NERE
Gains Century Limited 1 100 1 100 Investment holding
ERBERAR RARR
Grace Investment Limited 2 100 2 100 Property investment
EERBERAA NERE
Greenyield Limited 2 100 2 100 Property investment
RABRAT NERE
Hagent Investment Limited 2 100 2 100 Property investment
B RERRAA NERE
Health & Care Dental Clinic Limited 10,100,000 51.05 10,100,000 57.05  Provision of dental health
ERFREBAERAR and care senvices and
operation of dental clinics
RETHREEERER
BETMDM
Health & Care Group Limited 20,510,000 57.05 20,510,000 57.06  Investment holding and its
EREESEERAF subsidiaries are engaged in
development and operation
of dental clinic chain
REAR  MANMERA
AfezERER
BEERTRDM
Healthway Medical Centres Limited 1 100 1 100 Operation of medical centres
[RERERLBRAR LEBERL
HKR (PRC) Limited 2 100 2 100 Investment holding
EREX(MEBARAA RARR
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Name of company
ARER

HKR Limited
BERRRFARAT

HKR Properties Limited
BRREMFERAR

Hong Kong Health Resort Limited

Hong Kong Resort Company Limited
FREXARAA

Kinter Limited
[FEBRAR

Lam Island Development Company Limited

HRRSERAT]

Lee Wo Company, Limited
MAMBRART

Noble Glamour Limited

SEERAT

Parocka Investments Limited

Partner Ally Limited
FXARAT

Pearl Development Limited
BEERARAA

31 March 2018
201853A31H

Issued
share capital

ERTRE
HK$
ko

389,243,374.35*

2,000,000

300,000

20

1,000

Equity
interest
attributable
to the Group
EEEGRE
%

Btk

50*

99.99

31 March 2017

201743A31H
Equity
interest
Issued attributable
share capital to the Group
R EEEERE

HK$

2 100
2 100
4 100
389,243,374.35™ 50"
1 100
2,000,000 99.99
300,000 100
1 100
20 100
1,000 75
2 100

Principal activities

IREH

Property management

ESE

Property investment

VESIE

Property investment and
investment holding

MERERRARR

Investment holding and
property development

RERRRNEER

Property investment

VESIE

Property development

VE

Property investment

VESIE

Investment holding

RERR

Property investment

VESIE

Investment holding

RERR

Property investment

VESIE
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 #Z=2018F3A31 B I F/E

31 March 2018
201853A31H

31 March 2017
201743 A31H

Name of company
AEER

Qualigenics Medical Limited
BEREERAA

Quebostage Limited
EHARRA

Rainbow Alpha Holdings Limited
REZERERAR

Royston Investment Limited
BEREREBRAR
Scoot Development Limited

Smaragdine Limited

TCS Project Management Limited

Victor Century Investment Limited
BRAREERAA

Wells Estate Services Limited

RienFRBERLT

Issued
share capital
BETRA
HK$

B
3,000,000

100,000

Equity
interest
attributable
to the Group

KEELERE
%
A7l

100

100

75

100

100

100

100

100

100
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Issued
share capital

3,000,000

100,000

Equity
interest
attributable
to the Group

RERGRUE

75

Principal activities

IRER

Operation of diabetes and
endocrine disorders clinics
and provision of cardiac
treatment

BERRRRADBERDM
PREBRLERAE

Property investment

MERE

Property development
NRER

Investment holding

AR

Investment holding
RERKR

Property development

E

Provision of project
management services

REERERRE

Provision of financial
services to first hand
purchasers of 2GETHER
REE - FEZRENBRE

Property management,
estate manager and
investment holding
NERERERURRERR



31 March 2018

201853A31H

Equity

interest

Issued attributable

Name of company share capital to the Group

ARER BRARA  SEEGRE

HK$ %

B BAk

Wells Property Management Limited 1,000 100
BIXERARAA

Yintaly Construction Company Limited 2 100
EFRETIRARAT

*  According to the shareholders’ agreement of Hong Kong Resort Company
Limited (“HKRC”), the Group is able to control more than half of the voting
powers of the board of directors (which determines the relevant activities) of
HKRC and its subsidiaries.

**|n addition to 1 ordinary share, 100% in the value of HK$389,243,373.85
deferred shares are also held by the Group. The deferred shares held by the
Group are shares whose shareholders are neither entitled to receive notices,
attend, vote at any general meetings nor to receive any dividend out of operating
profit and have very limited rights on return of assets of the company.

#  Allmedco Group Limited (“Allmedco”) is classified as a subsidiary of the
Company as it is a 80%-owned subsidiary of Health & Care Group Limited (“H&C”)
which in turn is a 57.05%-owned subsidiary of the Company. The Company has
control over the board of directors of H&C and Allmedco.

31 March 2017

201743A31H
Equity
interest
Issued attributable
share capital tothe Group  Principal activities
R RERERE TEEE
HK$ t
e
1,000 100 Property management
and estate manager
NERERER
2 100 Property investment

VESE

© REFBEXBRAR(TEBEE ) ZBRWGE
KEAIAZEHEERELEMBRARCEEE(OREHR
HREEN) BIBF B R -

= BREHB1IRLTBRIN  £EITEE100%EE
389,243,373.858 L Z B IERL 17 - EEH H IR TR
MZRREEEFEDBN HEEARRERAEER
G HRZE - INEEFIRE & EE R P DR 2 AR
B REREZAREEERZEERRER o

# m@ M Allmedco Group Limited ( [ Allmedco | )
REREBEEEGRAR([ER])EE80%EE 2
BARTF - mERRAARAGIHERS7.05%m 2 M B A
Al BAImedco D ABRAR ZHB AR o NAF]
HiEfE RAImedcor EEE A B RHIHE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 #Z=2018F3A31 B I F/E

(b)  Details of other principal subsidiaries are as follows:

Name of company

ARER

Abraham Holdings Limited

Abraham Investment Holdings Limited

Beaufort Holdings Limited

Beaufort International Hotels
(Singapore) Pte Ltd

CDW Building Limited

GenRx Holdings Limited
ENERERAR

Hanbright Assets Limited

Health & Care (Macau) Dental
Group Limited
fERORM) THEERRAT

Healthway Phiippines, Inc.

HK Resort International Limited

198

Place of
incorporation/

registration
R/
Bis

Liberia
2R

British Virgin Islands
ABRARES

Cayman Islands

RERS

Singapore

R

Cayman Islands

RERE

British Virgin Islands
EERARES

British Virgin Islands
AEGAREE

Macau

i1y

Phiippines
FaE

Cayman Islands

AERS

Principal
place

of operation

TEEE
it ]

Hong Kong

Singapore

g

Hong Kong
30

Note™
i

Note™

i
Macau

B

Phiippines
FaE

Note™
i

()

31 March 2018
2018348318

Nominal value
of issued
share capital/

registered capital

BRfTRA/
afteszEE

Nil
&

US$t
1%7

HK$10,197,932
10,197,932 1

$81,000,000
1,000,000% ¢
JPY420,240,000
420,240,008

HKS$5,100,002
5,100,002/

US$t
1%7

US$t
1£7

MOP25,000
25,0002 7

PHP19,137,500
19,137,500
FRERR

HK$2
BT
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Equity
interest
attributable
to the Group
el e

%

BAk

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

57.05

100

100

31 March 2017
201743A318

Nominal valug
ofissued
share capital/

Ni

USS1
1%

HK$10,197,932
10,197 93270

§51,000,000
10000008
JPY420,240,000
420,240,0000

HKS$5,100,002
510000277

USs1
%7

US$1
1%

MOP25,000
25000257

PHP19,137,500
19,187,500
FRERZ

HK$2
T

Equity interest
attributable
to the Group
&E

57.06

100

HFEZMBARGFENAT

Principal activities

TERK

Securities investment
BHRE

Securities investment

BHRE

Investment holding
REHR

Investment holding

L

Property investment

S

Investment holdling

Investment holding

RERK

QOperation of dental
clinic in Macau

ERMERTHD A
Investment holding

L

Investment holding

RABR



Name of company

DaLR

HKR Asia-Pacific Pte Ltd

HKR China Limited
FRARTEARLA

HKR Company Limited

HKR Japan KK

HKR Shanghai Limited

BERZ LEARAA

HKRJ Akasaka TMK

HKRJ Development Co., Ltd.

HKRJ Graphio GK

HKRJ Haluwa TMK

HKRJ Roppongi TVK

HKRJ Souei GK*

Place of
incorporation/
registration
AL/
BitR

Singapore

g

British Virgin Islands
REAARES

British Virgin Islands
ZREARES

Japan

AR

Brtish Virgin Islands
FREARES

Japan

AE

Japan

A

Japan

AE

Japan

£

Japan

AE

Japan

Eh

Principal
place

of operation
IZEE
3%

Singapore
R

Note™

piz*

Note™
iR

Japan

B

Note™
iR

Japan

B

Japan

£

Japan

B

Japan

A%

Japan

B

Japan

A

31 March 2018

201853831A
Nominal value Equity
of issued interest
share capital/  attributable
registered capital  to the Group
Rk L3
&R ZEE FEfb R
%
Bat
$$5,000,000 100
5,000,000 7t
JPY6,872,780,000
6,872,780,0008
THB24,700,000
24,700,008
Us$t 100
1%7
Us$2 100
PEY
JPY10,000 100
10,0008
USst 100
1%7
JPY2,700,100,000 100
2,700,100,0008
JPY10,000 100
10,0001
JPY2,000,000 100
2,000,000H
JPY2,075,100,000 100
2,075,100,0008
JPY4,125,200,000 100
4,125,200,0008
JPY1,000,000 100
1,000,0008

31 March 2017
2017£3A31H
Nominal value
of issued  Equity interest
share capital/ attrioutable
registered capital {0 the Group

5 55

1L

$85,000,000 100
5,000,000 7
JPY6,872,780,000
6,672,7800005 E
THB24,700,000
24,700, 00055

US$t 100
B3

Uss2 100
E

JPY10,000 100
10,0008

US$t 100
1%

JPY2,700,100,000 100
2,700,100,0008

JPY10,000 100
10,0008

JPY2,000,000 100
2,000,008

NA N/A
N Qeli

JPY4,125,200,000 100
4,125,200,0008
JPY1,000,000 100
1,000,000H

Principal activities

Investment holding

L

Investment holding

T

Investment holdling

RERK

Property investment

VESIE

Investment holdling

RERK

Property investment

VESIE

Property investment

VES &

Property investment

VESIE

Property investment

VES &

Property development

S

Property investment

VES &
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 #Z=2018F3A31 B I F/E

Place of
incorporation/

Name of company registration
R/
ARER B

HKRJ Veneo GK* Japan
BE
HMC, INC. Doing business under Phiippines
the names and style/s of e
HEALTHWAY MEDICAL
Hojo Pte. Ltd. Singapore
il
Mantle Investments Limited British Virgin Islands
ABRARES
Pine Isle Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands
EBRARES
Prinia Pte Ltd Singapore
it
Ruthin Investments Pte Ltd Singapore
il
Sathom Park Co., Ltd. Thailand
RE
Sky Phoenix Enterprises Limited Brtish Virgin Islands
ABEARES
Suki Pte. Ltd. Singapore
il

Principal
place

of operation
IZEE
3%

Japan

BE
Philippines
FaE
Singapore

g
Note*
liRa

Hong Kong
(30

Singapore

R

Singapore

g

Thailand
R

Hong Kong
B

Singapore

g

31 March 2018
201853531H
Nominal value Equity
of issued interest
share capital/  attributable
registered capital ~ to the Group
BRTRA £
&R ZEE iR
%
Bat
JPY1,000,000 100
1,000,008

PHP10,250,000 100
10,250,000
FREHR

JPY2,023,260,000 100
2,023,260,0008

Us$t 100
1%7

Usst 100
%7

§§2 100
MW

862 100
P
JPY1,362,730,000
1,362,730,0008

THBY933,600,000 100
933,600,000% %

Us$t 100
1%7

851 100
17
JPY673,750,000
673,750,0008
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31 March 2017
2017£3A31H
Nominal value
of issued  Equity interest
share capital/  atfributable
registered capital {0 the Group
5B

JPY1,000,000 100
1,000,000H

PHP10,250,000 100
10,250,000
FEERE

JPY2,023,260,000 100
2,023,260,0008

US$t 100
1%

Usst 100
1%

S52 100
B

852 100
2B
JPY1,362,730,000
1,362,730,000H

THBY33,600,000 100
933,600,000%

US$t 100
1%

S$1 100
1%
JPY673,750,000
673,750,008

Principal activities

Property investment

VESIE

QOperation of medical
clinics
BEREDM

Investment holding

L

Securities investment

Investment holding

RERK

Investment holdling

RERK

Property investment

ESIE]

Hotel operator and
owner

BERERER

Investment holding

RERK

Investment holding

e



31 March 2018
2018534318

Nominal value

of issued

share capital/
registered capital
ERTRA
ez EE

Place of
incorporation/
registration
st/
BitR

Principal
place

of operation
IZEE
3%

Name of company

DaLR

RBEE(MM)BRAR] PRC PRC HK$760,000,000
hE PE 760,000,000 7
EE( LS ERSHERAT PRC PRC US$1,500,000
hE HE 1,500,000% 7
SRERNEZERNA PRC PRC HK$915,000,000
hE PE 915,000,000}
RE(H9EBERRAF PRC PRC US$14,000,000
hE PE 14,000,000£ 7
BEREERERA PRC PRC RMB1,000,000
hE HE ARE#1,000,0007
EEREERERAE PRC PRC RMB1,000,000
hE PE AR #1,000,0007

*  These companies are engaged in securities investment business of the
Group and have no specific principal place of operation.

ok

These companies act as investment holding companies and have no specific
principal place of operation.

#  These companies are wholly foreign owned enterprises.

# The Group can enjoy all economic beneficial interest, instead of equity
interest, of the companies by contractual terms.

@  Formerly known as 3 H M E X HFPRAF and change of name with
effective from 20 October 2017.

31 March 2017

2017£3A31H
Equity Nominal value
interest of issued  Equity interest
attributable share capital/ attrioutable
to the Group registered capital  tothe Group  Principal activities
iR TEEH
%
Bat

100 HK$760,000,000 100 Property development
760,0000007C VESHE

100 US§1,500,000 100 Property management
1500000£7C VESS

100 HK$730,000,000 100 Property development

730,000,000 7 and investment

holding

NEURRRERR

100 US$14,000,000 100 Property investment

14,000,000 70 VESE

100 N/A N/A Property development
1R IR DEER

100 N/A N/A Property development
ER MER  EER

© RSARRFEEZEFRALE  BMLANE
ZEBRBHY -

v ERAAKRERRAR AMEEFEZIES
BIE

Y REATRRINELE -

# RERANGFIANZFERSZAREEKEES R
a0 MR AR RS

° FIBAREEREEERAR  RBEERH2017
F10H20H #EAERL ©

B FEEEEREEARLT 2017/2018 £ W
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 #Z=2018F3A31 B I F/E

(c) Details of principal associates are as follows:

Name of company

DREH

Polyoung Limited
BEBRAR

Tung Chung Station
Development Company
Limited

Place of
incorporation
B2ty

12

Hong Kong

ER

Hong Kong
EE

2[]2 B HKR International Limited Annual Report 2017/2018 W

31 March 2018
2018%3A31H
Attributable
interest held
by the Group
SETE
i

%

B

31

31

© EEHER

31 March 2017
201743 H31H
Attributable
interest held

by the Group
KB

31

AR

Principal activities

IEERH

Provision of financial
services to first hand
purchasers of Coastal
Skyline

MEXEFE—FERIE
IR

Property investment

NERE



(d)

Name of company

DREH

Advantage Investor Limited

Dazhongli Properties Limited

AP EMEBRAT]

Strongbod Limited

Ultimate Champion
Investments Limited

Everbeam Investments
Limited

EAREARRA

Everbeam Mortgage Limited
ERRIBERDA

Gainwick Limited
MBER AR

(B FHERR
BRAR

B

City Grace Co., Ltd.

Details of principal joint ventures are as follows:

31 March 2018

2018F3H31H
Attributable
Place of interest held
incorporation by the Group
KB
A1 AR L B L fE
%
AR
British Virgin Islands 50
HBRRRES
British Virgin Islands 50
EBERARES
British Virgin Islands 40
HBRRRES
British Virgin Islands 50
EBERARES
Hong Kong 50
EE
Hong Kong 50
&k
Hong Kong 40
EE
PRC 50
FE
Thailand 49
EE

* The Company is wholly foreign owned enterprise.

B FEEEEREEARLT 2017/2018 £ W

(d)

31 March 2017
20174%3H31H
Attributable
interest held

by the Group
SEME
ity

%

BA

50

50

40

50

50

50

40

50

49

ZATBBINEDE -

TEARATHBNOT

Principal activities

TREHR

Investment holding
REER

Investment holding
REZRR

Investment holding
REER

Investment holding
REZRR

Property development

NEER

Provision of financial
services to first hand
purchasers of La
Cresta

mE¥T—FEREMH
IR

Property development
MEER

Property development

MEER

Property development

NEER
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 #Z=2018F3A31 B I F/E

(e) Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have material
non-controlling interests:

The table below shows details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries of
the Company that have material non-controlling interests:

Proportion of ownership
interests and voting rights Profits (losses) allocated

() WAEANFBRIERF2ANBAF
S

TRUIEEEAT RS AATERE
G PN PETE

Place of held by non-controlling to non-controlling Accumulated non-
Name of subsidiary incorporation interests interests controlling interests
FERER
s RERERR PEFHERER
MED R AR o 17 K 3L 3tk B REE LA 2 Al (E18) Rt FERER
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M
BEERT EBEBT HEERT BEAT
Hong Kong Resort Company Hong Kong 50% 50% 132.5 171.9 2,462.0 2,387.2
Limited and its subsidiaries &5
(note)
EREERRARR
HMBRAR (W)
Individually immaterial (0.7) (7.3 (22.4) (19.4)
subsidiaries with
non-controlling interests
BRI R 5]
FERMERA
131.8 164.6 2,439.6 2,367.8

Note:  Hong Kong Resort Company Limited and its subsidiaries are engaged
in the development, management and provision of essential and recreational
services for residential housing and leisure projects principally in Discovery Bay,
Lantau Island.
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Summarised consolidated financial information in respect of BREHEEBEAIERER A ATESHB A A
each of the Company’s subsidiaries that has material non- AR ERBEEINWNT o NXFIRGS
controlling interests is set out below. The summarised consolidated HEERME BN EBRNEHAT 258 -
financial information below represents amounts before intergroup

elimination.
HONG KONG RESORT COMPANY LIMITED AND ITS EAEMERE AT NENE AT
SUBSIDIARIES

Current assets mBEE 2,846.7 2,510.2
Non-current assets EREEE 4,154.5 3,897.2
Current liabilities mEEE (1,110.4) (623.4)
Non-current liabilities EmEBEE (936.0) (978.8)
Equity attributable to owners of ZAN/NETEZ SN

the Company fEfh R 2,492.8 2,418.0
Non-controlling interests FEIE AR = 2,462.0 2,387.2
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 #Z=2018F3A31 B I F/E

For the year ended 31 March

HZ3H31ALEE
2018 2017
HK$’M HK$'M
BEET BEBTT
Revenue A 866.9 1,062.3
Expenses Sz (602.0) (718.5)
Profit attributable to owners of RN EVGEA N ER T
the Company 1324 171.9
Profit attributable to non-controlling JEFEE A 25 FE A i
interests 132.5 171.9
Profit for the year AN A 264.9 343.8
Other comprehensive income RN EEE AFEML
attributable to owners of the Company HEm2mEmkas 2.3 -
Other comprehensive income FEVEAR M R B
attributable to non-controlling interests Hih 2wk 2.3 -~
Other comprehensive income for the year AR [E E b2 Uz 4.6 _
Total comprehensive income RN EEE AFEML
attributable to owners of the Company FHEN =BT 134.7 171.9
Total comprehensive income FEIE IR R R
attributable to non-controlling interests FHEW B 134.8 171.9
Total comprehensive income for the year  ARNFE 2 mE WS A58 269.5 343.8
Dividend paid to a non-controlling RIDE S
shareholder RS A% B, 60.0 -
Net cash outflows used in operating CIEEBITRIR S
activities piIaepEa] (404.5) (90.7)
Net cash outflows used in investing KEESHFARS
activities T FRE (159.9) (157.2)
Net cash inflows (outflows) from (used in)  BEESEENFFE(FRFA)
financing activities WemARH ) F5E 278.2 0.2)
Net cash outflows W& L F5E (286.2) (248.1)
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All of the above principal subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures,
other than Abraham Holdings Limited, Beaufort Holdings Limited,
Hanbright Assets Limited, HK Resort International Limited, HKR
Asia-Pacific Pte Ltd, HKR Company Limited, HKR China Limited
and Noble Glamour Limited, are held indirectly by the Company.

The above tables list the subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures
of the Group which, in the opinion of the directors of the Company,
principally affected the results or assets of the Group. To give
details of other subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures would, in
the opinion of the directors of the Company, result in particulars of
excessive length.

Other than club debentures as set out in Note 28, no other loan
capital has been issued by any of the subsidiaries.

43. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the year, other than balances with related parties as shown
in the consolidated statement of financial position, the Group had
significant transactions with related parties as follows:

(@ Transactions with entities controlled (or jointly controlled
as joint venture) by CCM Trust (Cayman) Limited (“CCM Trust”)
and certain discretionary trusts. Four (2017: Four) directors of the
Company are among the discretionary beneficiaries of the above
trusts at the end of the reporting period. The trusts have controlling
beneficial interests in these entities and the Company:

B Abraham Holdings Limited + Beaufort Holdings
Limited + Hanbright Assets Limited * HK Resort
International Limited * HKR Asia-Pacific Pte Ltd -
HKR Company Limited « 7 i B % th B & [
NI REEBRARN - B FENE
NE - EEARREEARHEHBEARRBE

B -

FERIAL AR ER AU EEEEREES
EAYEIRENBAT  BEATRABA
A ARFEERS - HIILBHBLF - B
BARRAELAESABRTE -

FRBSFE28PT 5 2 & ATE SN - BLEAE (RIS
NABRTHMBERERAE

43. BB R B

BRER & MR R PR ERBAR T 2 SRRSO - &R
BFERNEBBTETIEARSWT

(a) ECCM Trust (Cayman) Limited ([ CCM
Trust]) R&E FRIEEEMES 2 EiE (K HER
ZEHzEERR)ETIRS RIEHRE
NAME(2017F - WB)EFER LMEFRZ
BEZEA - ZEEIRZEEERAARHE
BEEREL

Transactions with the entities: HZEETRIRS
Rental income received BUWE Z e WA
Management service fee received BRE 2 BRI &
Other services provided BIR M 2 H A AR

6.0 6.0
0.7 0.7
0.2 0.3
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 #Z=2018F3A31 B I F/E

(o)  Transactions with Hanison Construction Holdings Limited and (b) HERFERERARDFRE W
its subsidiaries, in which CCM Trust and certain discretionary trusts (CCM Trustk A THIBETHEEE Pé )
have beneficiary interests: 2R

Construction service fee EERKE 0.4 0.4
Other service fees HA RIS & = 0.8
(¢)  Transactions with associates and joint ventures of the Group: (c) HEEBEARIEREERRIZIRS

Management fee and other operating EI R =R =/NC] M&HX 2 ERE
service fees received from joint ventures REMEERIEE 41.8 27.2
Interest income received from MBS & 2 B UCER 2 F) B A
an associate 0.1 0.2
Interest income received from m& &R aE B KA
a joint venture 11.2 10.1
Rental expense paid to a joint venture MeEE AN 2HEER 3.1 -
(d)  Compensation of Key Management Personnel: ) FEZEEBEAEMS :
The remuneration of directors during the year is as follows: E=ERFAZMeNT :

Short-term employee benefits SHAR BT
Fees we 1.8 1.7
Salaries and other benefits e RHMER 20.6 20.5
Performance related incentive payments 4B 25.8 15.3
48.2 37.5
Post-employment benefit BEER 2R A
Retirement benefits schemes contribution 3R RIE 524 5% 0.2 0.2
Equity-settled share-based payments LARESS A E AR (D B AL
PANEN 26.8 13.6
75.2 51.3

The remuneration of directors is determined by the remuneration EEVMeHTMEZEESL2E/FIETIRERER
committee having regard to the performance of individuals and MHBBIEETE -
market trends.
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44. INFORMATION ABOUT THE STATEMENT
OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position of the
Company at the end of the reporting period includes:

44. B RAAR DTz B AR R &
Z &

WBREIR - BRAQRZBBRRE 2 AR
(EEE

Non-current assets SERBEAE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BB MR E 34.8 13.9
Interests in subsidiaries (Note 45) M~ alEm (MI5E45) 14,111.6 14,541.3
Other assets HEm&EE 117.2 117.2
Amounts due from joint ventures A &R EFRIE 577.1 508.0
14,840.7 15,180.4
Current assets MBNEE
Deposits, prepayments and other e ERNRER
receivables H b IR 96.4 139.7
Bank balances and cash RITHAM MRS 780.3 143.7
876.7 283.4
Current liabilities mBaE
Trade payables, provision and JENESERAR - BER
accrued charges FERTE 93.0 25.4
Amounts due to subsidiaries FERHI B A 7 78 4,919.1 5,394.7
Bank and other loans due within —FRNEHZRITR
one year HAth & 600.4 1,227.3
5,612.5 6,647.4
Net current liabilities mEEEHE (4,735.8) (6,364.0)
Total assets less current liabilities BEERREAE 10,104.9 8,816.4
Non-current liability EMBAE
Bank and other loans due after —FIBEIHZRITR
one year HiE® 6,246.5 5,946.0
Net assets AESE 3,858.4 2,870.4
Capital and reserves EAR KRG
Share capital [N 337.5 337.5
Reserves (Note 46) et (Mi3E46) 3,520.9 2,532.9
Equity attributable to owners of ZIN/NSIEZ SN
the Company JEfLHE R 3,858.4 2,870.4

The statement of financial position of the Company was approved
and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 20 June 2018

and is signed on its behalf by:

CHA Mou Zing Victor

Deputy Chairman & Managing Director

B

B L /EREFRUETE

AAR)Z AR RERER2018F6 A20H &=
ETeHERTETE  YHTHINEEREE
Z

CHUNG Sam Tin Abraham
Executive Director
f5/0\H
HiITEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e SRR M

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #Z=2018F3A31 B I F/E

45. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES OF THE
COMPANY

45. X2 T B 1~ F =R

Unlisted shares, at cost IEETRRD - IREKAE 2,553.0 2,604.6

Amounts due from subsidiaries S NGIE ¢z
Interest bearing portion (note) FHEE D (M5E) 3,641.6 3,907.8
Non-interest bearing portion % B EBD 7,917.0 8,028.9
14,111.6 14,541.3

Note:  The amounts are unsecured, bear interest at the prevailing market
borrowing rates and have no fixed terms of repayment.

46. RESERVES OF THE COMPANY
MOVEMENT IN RESERVES

Share
premium

K@
HK$'M
HEAT

M ZEFEREER  RROTTSEENEFE
N EREEE R o

46. XN Rl f#
et

Share
options

Capital
redemption Accumulated
reserve reserve profits Total
R4 HE BEXER
1] i
HK$'M HK$'M
BEER HEET

RataA st
HK$'M HK$'M
HEERL  EHEER

At 1 April 2016 R2016F4 715 1,537.9 - 3.1 1,168.4 2,709.4
Loss and total comprehensive KEEEER

expense for the year FEATEE - - - (190.1) (190.1)
Recognition of equity-settled HERMEREE RN

share-based payments BERW 25 - 13.6 - - 136
At 31 March 2017 #201743831H 1,637.9 13.6 3.1 978.3 2,532.9
Profit and total comprehensive AEZHEFR

income for the year PEKEAE - - - 1,094.1 1,094.1
Recognition of equity-settled BRNEREE LR R

share-based payments BERZER - 28.9 - - 28.9
Dividends paid Bk E - - - (135.0) (185.0)
At 31 March 2018 M2018%3H31H 1,537.9 42.5 3.1 1,937.4 3,520.9

Under the Companies Law (Revised) Chapter 22 of the Cayman
Islands, the share premium of the Company is available for
distribution or paying dividends to shareholders, subject to the
provisions of its memorandum and articles of association and
provided that immediately following the distribution of dividends,
the Company is able to pay its debts as they fall due in the
ordinary course of business. In accordance with the Company’s
articles of association, dividends can only be distributed out of
the accumulated profits of the Company, which amounted to
HK$1,937.4 million (2017: HK$978.3 million) as at 31 March 2018.
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

EFEBBERE

RESULTS

For the year ended 31 March
BZ3A3MBLEE

Turnover EERH 2,222.3 2,234.1 4,238.5 5,421.9 4,207.5
Profit from operations BB 2,797.5 1,015.6 1,311.8 1,959.1 1,463.3
Finance costs 7% % A (208.3) (191.7) (172.0) (202.4) (173.0)
Share of results of associates D {HEE L N 7 24 (0.2) (0.2) (2.3) 9.2 0.3
Share of results of joint ventures {54 & /A T 248 48.4 260.6 155.2 15.9 (103.7)
Profit before taxation & 55 B e A 2,637.4 1,084.3 1,292.7 1,781.8 1,186.9
Taxation 18 (200.5) (95.8) (150.0) (198.7) (130.9)
Profit for the year NEE i F 2,436.9 988.5 1,142.7 1,583.1 1,056.0
Attributable to: TEI RS
Owners of the Company RAREA A 2,305.1 823.9 783.9 910.0 834.6
Non-controlling interests JEFERRAE AR 131.8 164.6 358.8 673.1 221.4
Profit for the year REERF 2,436.9 988.5 1,142.7 1,583.1 1,056.0
N
FINANCIAL POSITION B AR R

At 31 March
M3A31H

Total assets BERE 34,636.7 29,630.6 27,766.9 29,2437  28,415.1
Total liabilities BfE®E (12,479.3) (10,877.0) (9,507.4)  (9,461.1)  (9,828.1)
Non-controlling interests e R (2,439.6) (2,367.8) (2,203.2) (3,054.9) (2,391.1)
Equity attributable to owners of AR &HEAF A

the Company fEfLHE R 19,717.8 16,3858 16,056.3 16,727.7  16,195.9
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PARTICULARS OF MAJOR PROPERTIES

At 31 March 2018 7201843 H31H

A. PROPERTIES HELD FOR/UNDER

DEVELOPMENT

Descriptions

B
1. The remaining phases,

Discovery Bay, Lantau Island

(@) Residential

(b)  Commercial

(c) Others

2. Qasis One, Hangzhou City,
Zhejiang Province, the PRC

3. Riviera One, Jiaxing City,
Zhgjiang Province, the PRC

4. Land Lot No. 2017-28,
Jiaxing City,
Zhejiang Province, the PRC

5. Land Lot No. 2017-34,
Jiaxing City,
Zhejiang Province, the PRC

6. Rama 3 Road Project,
Yannawa District,
Bangkok, Thailand

KBUHER
BTEH

REDTT A MM
EREEZBE

FEIA R ED
BEEXBRE

PEMIEERD
2017-285 138

HENIE R AR
2017-34%51 42

ZFEEAYannawaE
Rama 3 Road’8 B

Gross floor
area (sg. ft.)
HAEEERE

(FAR)

273,061

76,300

367,289

552,925
(site area)
(wEmE)

501,188
(site area)
(wHEER)

194,635
(site area)

(tBEE)

133,807
(site area)

(tBEE)

416,180
(site area)
(EmEE)
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Stage of
completion

TREER

Construction
under progress

TRRETH

Construction
under progress
TiR#fTH

Not yet
commenced

HAET

Construction
under progress

TRRETH

Construction
under progress
Ti2iTH

Planning in
progress
REETD

Planning in
progress
REETH

Planning in
progress
REETTH

FERR/IZRDZ2UE

Expected
completion
date

REzAA

2018-2019

2019

No definite plan

EEEE

2018

2019

2021

2021

2021-2023

Attributable
interest to
the Group

58
Eit#ER

Nature of
property

NEUE

Residential 50%
FE

Commercial 50%
[EES

Retained for future 50%
development

HERRER

Residential 100%
F=E

Residential 100%
=z

Residential 100%
F=E

Residential 100%
=z

Residential 100%
=



B. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES HELD FOR

B. BERENWFFEREESR
ARZE

Attributable
Gross floor Nature of interestto Category
Descriptions area (sq. ft.) property the Group of lease
HAREEE &8
(EER) MEME Bz HEER

7. 3houses located at Bijou Hamlet, RIS EeEms 7,193 Residential 100% Medium
Discovery Bay, Lantau Island SELRFR = R

8. 4 houses located at Headland Village, — AU (L 1 & 2555 10,251  Residential 100% Medium
Discovery Bay, Lantau Island 4ETERFR = R

9. 10 units comprising lowrise NG p =yt i 16,759  Residential 100% Medium
and duplex apartments located at 10fEE AL (IR EEH B FE HHf
Peninsula Vilage, RAE BRI
Discovery Bay, Lantau Island

10. 1 highrise apartment located at RIE L= EREE 1,068  Residential 100%  Medium
Greenvale Vilage, Discovery Bay, 1EEEEN = i
Lantau Island

11. 23 highrise apartments located at RE g =ERRE 15,118  Residential 100%  Medium
Parkridge Village, Discovery Bay, 23R FE ]
Lantau Island

12. 6 midrise apartments and RELHSENSES 6,373 Residential 100%  Medium
1 combined unit located at o1+ B E L K FE HHf
DB Plaza, Discovery Bay, HEREERL
Lantau Island

13. 2 lowrise apartments located at NG =y 2,483 Residential 100%  Medium
Siena One, Discovery Bay, sy il ='e FE i
Lantau Island QB B & fir

14. 1 lowrise apartment located at NGy 1,315 Residential 100%  Medium
Siena Two, Discovery Bay, sy ifis=y FE i
Lantau Island HEREEN

15. 1 lowrise apartment located at NELg=EEER 976 Residential 100%  Medium
La Vista, Discovery Bay, EIE B F= i
Lantau Island

16.  14/F of Century Tower Il and AHBILTE 3,663 Residential 100% Long
Car Parking Space No. 12 on Level 1, s FliR /= B 157 I 155A FE &5

Century Tower, 1 and 1A

Tregunter Path, The Peak, Hong Kong

i KEN 1418 K
i AEE1BEES
1257 EfiL

B FEEEEREEARLT 2017/2018 £ W
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PARTICULARS OF MAJOR PROPERTIES
TEVRFE

At 31 March 2018 7201843 H31H

Attributable
Gross floor Nature of interestto Category
Descriptions area (sq. ft.) property the Group of lease
RS 58
BR (ERR) MEME EhEz HEER
17. 5 highrise apartments located at RUE LR 5,477  Residential 100%  Medium
Coastal Skyline, Tung Chung, EXGRF F=x R Hf
Lantau Island 518 B &L
18. 2 highrise apartments located at NG 1,838 Residential 100% Medium
Tung Chung Crescent, RIBER FE i
Tung Chung, Lantau Island AR EESR
19. 6 highrise apartments located at NG 4,524 Residential 100%  Medium
Seaview Crescent, Tung Chung, byt FE h
Lantau Island 618 B Efi
20. 6residential units and 8 car parking  HE T REZR 14,514  Residential 100% Long
spaces of Chelsea Residence, #1158 1038F 1695 FE =H
No. 169 of Lane 1038, REERE_E
Huashan Road, Changning District, — 6fE{F T &1 K 8{E= (I
Shanghai, the PRC
21. 2 highrise apartments located at R e = % e 1,438 Residential 50%  Medium
Peninsula Vilage, Discovery Bay, 2fEE B ENL = H
Lantau Island
22.  Horizon Place Akasaka, Tokyo, AARRER 81,624  Residential 100% Freehold
Japan Horizon Place Akasaka F=E KAERE
23.  Souei Park Harajuku, Tokyo, AEER 14,040 Residential 100% Freehold
Japan Souei Park Harajuku F=E KAERE
24, Veneo Minami Azabu, Tokyo, AARRER 18,299  Residential 100% Freehold
Japan Veneo Minami Azabu F=E KAERE
25.  Haluwa Shiba Koen, Tokyo, BARRR 35,246 Residential 100% Freehold
Japan Haluwa Shiba Koen F=E KAERE
26.  Graphio Nishi-Shinjuku, Tokyo, AARRER 27,314 Commercial 100% Freehold
Japan Graphio Nishi-Shinjuku EES KAKHE
27. Commercial Centre, KU =2 180,910  Commercial 50% Medium
Discovery Bay, Lantau Island GELIN GES H H
28.  Shop 401 on Ground Floor, R e = % E 7,417 Commercial 50% Medium
Coastline Villa, Peninsula Vilage, BEEH T401E BE hE

Discovery Bay, Lantau Island
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Attributable
interestto Category

Gross floor Nature of

Descriptions area (sq. ft.) property the Group of lease
HRERE ]

R (FAR) MEME EhERz HEER

29.  Commercial Centre, NELw=E—RE 160,276  Commercial 50% Medium
Yi Pak, Discovery Bay, HEHL GES R
Lantau Island

30.  West Gate Tower, T 146,531  Industrial 100%  Medium
7 Wing Hong Street and RDEXRETH I% ]
8 King Lam Street, FIBMET8:
Cheung Sha Wan, Kowloon Fas e

31, CDW Building, R 975,520  Commercial 100% Medium
382-392 Castle Peak Road, FEERE7-0TH [GES ]
27-37 Mei Wan Street, F1L3E382-3925%
Tsuen Wan, New Territories hmARE

32. 325 car parking spaces FTRAEPT B RIE225 N/A  Commercial 100%  Medium
at Tuen Mun Central Square, A9 R S TER BE HHf
22 Hoi Wing Road, 3258z
Tuen Mun, New Territories

33. 3 units of DANG, nREE 6,837  Industrial 100%  Medium
2-6 Fui Yiu Kok Street, RE A2-65% I% HHf
Tsuen Wan, New Territories DANG 31 E i
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PARTICULARS OF MAJOR PROPERTIES
TEVRFE

At 31 March 2018 7201843 H31H

C. PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE

C. FFLEW

Attributable
Gross floor Nature of interestto Category
Descriptions area (sq. ft.) property the Group of lease
EEEER .|
R (EER) YHEME EiEkz HEER
34. Lot No. 1613 in Demarcation HRAETEH 3,731 Residential 100%  Medium
District No. 222, L EHF2225 = hE
Kap Pin Long, Sai Kung 16135
New Territories
35, Remaining units of FARAM 105,339  Residential 75%  Medium
2GETHER, | 3 = hE
Tuen Mun, New Territories BT EfRL
36. Remaining units of ZEEA 33,179  Residential 100%  Freehold
The Sukhothai Residences, The Sukhothai (net saleable area) == KAERE
Bangkok, Thailand Residences (FERER)
BT EfL
37.  Remaining units of FEEETRER 221,162 Residential 100% Long
Elite House, EFHE13105% = &
No. 1310 Ding Xi Road, L EMGE
Changning District, BT B
Shanghai, the PRC
38.  Remaining units of City One, FENNT & 28T 41,085 Residential 100% Long
Jiaxing City, Zhejiang Province, ERERRE F=E =
the PRC BTEM
39.  Remaining unit of HARR 1,750  Residential 51%  Freehold
Proud Roppongi, Proud Roppongi F=E KSR
Tokyo, Japan BT EfL

21 B B HKR International Limited Annual Report 2017/2018 W



CORPORATE INFORMATION AND

INVESTORS’ CALENDAR
NAERRREZ B

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
58
Mr CHA Mou Sing Payson (Chairman)
BB E(FE)
Mr CHA Mou Zing Victor

(Deputy Chairman and Managing Director)
BT (B F EREFLEIE)
Mr CHUNG Sam Tin Abraham?#
EOHEEE
Mr TANG Moon Wah
BmExLE
The Honourable Ronald Joseph ARCULLI
BEBREE
Mr CHA Mou Daid Johnson
EREEE
Ms WONG CHA May Lung Madeline
TEERERTL
Mr CHEUNG Wing Lam Linus
SRIKFR I
Mr FAN Hung Ling Henry
PRttt
Ms HO Pak Ching Loretta
ffaaEXt
Mr TANG Kwai Chang
BEZEE

# Also alternate to Mr CHA Mou Sing Payson
P REEHBELEZRFEF

AUDIT COMMITTEE
EREES
Mr TANG Kwai Chang (Chairman)

HEZSEE(FE)
Mr CHEUNG Wing Lam Linus
SRIKFR I
Ms HO Pak Ching Loretta
e AL+

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
-+ =

FMEES

Mr CHEUNG Wing Lam Linus (Chairman)

SRIKFR (L)

Mr CHA Mou Zing Victor

R E

Mr FAN Hung Ling Henry

NOMINATION COMMITTEE
REZEES

Mr CHA Mou Sing Payson (Chairman)
EMBTE(FE)

Ms HO Pak Ching Loretta
(CRIEI=Rdnn

Mr TANG Kwai Chang
BEZ L
COMPANY SECRETARY
NEME
Ms LEUNG Wai Fan
RES L+

REGISTERED OFFICE
SR

P.O. Box 309, Ugland House
Grand Cayman, KY1-1104
Cayman Islands

PRINCIPAL OFFICE
IBMBR

23/F, China Merchants Tower
Shun Tak Centre

168-200 Connaught Road Central
Hong Kong

BB T EEH168-2005
BEERLBEBAE23E

SHARE REGISTRARS

ROBFELRE

Hong Kong

BB

Computershare Hong Kong
Investor Services Limited

Shops 1712-1716

17th Floor, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai, Hong Kong

BERBRREHFEZLERAA

BBET 2EANER1835

AP O7#1712-1716F

Cayman Islands

FRSHS

Maples Corporate Services Limited
P.O. Box 309, Ugland House
Grand Cayman, KY1-1104
Cayman Islands

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR
BB

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu

=g o AR SFTANTT

PRINCIPAL BANKERS
S / 4=

FEERELT

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited

FERIT(EA)ERAR

Hang Seng Bank Limited

BARITERDA

The Hongkong and Shanghai

Banking Corporation Limited

BALBELRITARAA

Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

BITSRIT(EB)ER AT

MUFG Bank, Ltd.

R S = ZUFJRTT

LEGAL ADVISORS
EEEE

Hong Kong Laws
BEAE

Kao, Lee & Yip

S AT

Mayer Brown JSM

LT E2RTT

Reed Smith Richards Butler
BB (RS RATT

Cayman Islands Laws
FEHSAE

Maples and Calder

B ERMELA

SEHK STOCK NAME/CODE

B X PR A9 B R/ AR 40 X5

HKR Int’l &% 82 2£ B /00480

INVESTORS’ CALENDAR
REEB®

2018 Annual General Meeting
2018 F IR IBAFARE

22 August 2018
20188 H22H

Closure of Registers
EERNES

17 to 22 August 2018 (Annual General Meeting)
2018817 E22B (RFAFAE)

29 to 31 August 2018
(Final Dividend and Bonus Share)
20188 A29R =31 H (KAIKE RATAR)

Dividend Payment Date
HX!LA/}]E%X El Hﬂ

Expected Bonus Share
Issue Date
TEHRAT IR 5217 A A
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2018F9H17H

COMMUNICATION
e

Website #4t: www.hkri.com

Tel &5 (852) 2238 1188

Email & #:
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cs@hkri.com (Shareholders /2 &)
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